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| PART I

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Data, time and place of meating of security holders.
The Annual Stockhoiders’ meeting of NOW Corporation {the "Company”) will be hald at 10:00 am on 07 June

2018, at No. 2244 Espafa Boulevard, Sampaloc, Manila, The Record Date for the Annual Stockhoiders'
maeting is sef on 30 April 218,

The complste madling address of the Company is Unit 5-1, 5" Fioor, OPL Buidding, 100 C. Palanca Streat
cormer Dela Rosa and Gil Streets, Legaspi Viliage, Makati City 1229,

The apprevimate date when this information statemant is first to be sent to the Company's stockhoiders ig 17
May 2018

ltem 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

in the event that any security hoider shall vote against any cofparale action enumerated under Section 89 pf
the Corporation Code on Appraissl Rights, such securily holder may ewercise his appeaisal righis, in
scrordance with the procedures and reguirements under Sections 82 1o 85 of the Corporation Code

The matters to be acted upon at the Annual Stockhoidars' meeling as cpecified in the aHached Motice of
Stockholders’ Meeting are not such as will entltle a dissenting stockhoider o axercise his appraisal ngid

Item 3. Interest of Certaln Persons In or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

Any hoiger of substantial interest, direct or indirect, or person who has been a director ar officer of the
regisirant at any lime since the baginning of the ast fiscal year, ar &ach nomines for election &% a direcior of
the registrant, or each associate of any of the foragoing persons. shall be propery heard and noted

The registrant is not aware of any substantial Interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or cihenwise, of
each of the following persans in any matier to be acted upon, other than efaction 1o office:

1. Esch person who has been a director or officer of tha registrant at any time since the beganning
of the last fiscal year,

2. Each nominee for election as a director of (he registrant,
3. Each associate of any of the foregoing persone.

Ne director of the registrant has infarmed the regesirant in writing that he imtends te eppose &ny mction to be
taken by the registrant at the meeting

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4. Vioting Securities and Principal Holders Thereaf

a  Number of Commen Shares Outstanding as of 02 May 2018; 1,517,278, 150 shares

b. Asof D2 April 2018, thers are 461,450 441 common shares owned by foreigners. ar 30 41%

©. Siockholders of record of the Company as of 30 April 2018 shall be entifled to notice of. and to vete at

the Annual Stockhoiders’ Meeting, on a one-share-one vole basis. No deaclor has cumulative vating
nghts. Mo discredionary authority for salicitation of cumulative wating may be exercised



Altached herefo as ANNEX “A™ is the Notice of the Annual Stockhaiders' Mesting.
d. Securty Dwnership of Certain Record and Beneficial Cwnars and Managemeni

I Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners (Mors
than 5% as of April 30, 2018)

Titeof | Name, Address of Record Gwner | Name of Citizenshi pio of Percentage
class and Beneficial Shares
Relationship with Issusr Crener and Hisid
Relationship
pwith Record
Orivmiar
| Comman | PDG Nominee Corp. = Filiging Direct Filipina | 565,781,662 | 37 2800
Common | Tep Mega Enterprses Limited )
Room 50% Fu Fal Commercial Derect Chineze 342 146 855 | 22 85500
Centre, Hillier 31, Sheungwan, Hang
Kang
Comman | Vefarde, Inc
| Linit 51, 5™ Flgor, OPL Buildmg, 100 | Diract Filiping 200571550 | 132142
C._ Palanca 51, Legaspi
I Village, Makat City
_E:umm-s:n Emerald Investmants, Inc
Unit 3. 5" Floor, OPL Building, 100 | Direct Filiping 176,738,360 | 116454
C. Palanca St Legaspi
Village, Makati City
' Commen | Jayce Link Hokdings Limited
Room 503 Fu Fai Commercial Dirsce British V1 | BB 208 552 5.6818
Centre, Hilkier Strest, Shaungwan,
Hafg Komg

Commaon | Food Camp Industries and '
Marksting. Inc Direct Filipine | 81,726843 | 4 80us
Uit 51, 5" Floor, OPL Builging, 100
C. Palanca Stresl, Legaspl Village,
Makati City

| Common | Gamboa Holdings, Inc, Direct Filpino | 72,484 720 | 4.7760
Unit 5-1, 5" Fioor, OPL Building, 100
C. Palanca 5t,, Legaspi

Village, Makati City

Tre shares of the above shareholders will be voled by the following peaple during the sharehalders
maeting of the Company:

Gamboa Holdings, Ine. - Mal V. Valarde

Emeraid Investrents, Ine — Jose S Alejandro

Food Camp Indusinies and Marketing, Inc. — Elena H Dirnailig
Top Mega Enterprises Limited —~ Romeo C. Escobar, Jr

Jayee Link Heddings Limited - Kristian Noet & Pura

Velarde, Inc. - Jonah Kasthen V. Rosern

0 Security Ownership of Direciors and Management as of 30 April 2018,

The diractors and officers of the Company have no security cwnarship in the capdel stock of tha
Lompany other than the qualifying shares recorded in the names of the directors but benaficially cwned by
Vedarde. Inc , Gamboa Haldings, Inc. or Food Camp Industries and Marketing. Inc




! .
Title of Amount and Nature of | Percent
Class Hame of Baneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership Citizrenship | al cindn
- | =
| Comman | Thomas G, Aguine 1 (Direct) Filipino [ =01 |
Camman Jose 5. Alsjandro 110 {Direct) Filiping | =0 [
Common | Mel V. Valarde 10 {Direct) Filiping <01
| Comman | Vicerte Martin W. Araneta 1 1 ({Direct) Filping <01
Common | Gerard Bnn R Bautista 1 {I;li.ra&} Filipani <01 1
Common | Ramen Guillermo R. Tuazon 1 {Direct) Filiping <01 '
Comman Mariou B: Ubano 1 {Direct) Filiping = El'_
Commaon Domingo B. Bonlfacio 1 (Direct) American <01
| Commen | Winnita V. Ysog 1 {Daract) Filipino <01 |
Common | Angaline L. Macasaat 10 (Direct) Filigino =01 I
Vicante | Pefanueva (Trezswrer | O Filipino 0
| and Chief Financa Officer) 1
Andre Gian P. Aguirre (Chief Audit | 0 Filipina i
Exacutive) _ |
Miguel Antonio 8. Regal a Filiging 0
(Compliance Oficar)

Nane of the members of the Campany's directars and management owns 2 0% aor mare of fhe
outstanding capital stock of the Company,

i Woting Trust Holders of 5% or Mare

The Comgpany knows of no person holding more than 5% of common shares under a woting trust o
similar agresment

v  Chamzses n Conloal
There are no arangements which may result in a change in conirol of the Company

e. No proxy solicltstion is being made. Mo change in contral of the Company hes occurred since the
beginning of the |ast fiscal year.

item 5. Directors and Executive Officers
a. Information required of Directors and Executive Officers
. Directors and Officers

Thomas G. Aquino, age 83, Fliping, Chairman of the Board of Directars, He was efecied as member of the
Board on June 2, 2018 He is a Semior Fellow ot the Center for Research and Communication, =
mullicisciptinary policy group of the University of Asia and the Pacific. Ha is currenly the President of NOW
Telecom Company, Inc. (formerly Next Mobile, Inc ) He is an indepandent mambar of the Board of Direclors
of ACR Corperation, A Brown Company Inc., and member of the Board af Trustees of Asian Institute of
Joumnalism and Communication. Dr. Aguino served as Senior Undersecretary of the Philippine Depariment of
frade and Induglry and supenvised the country's intermational rade promotion, rade negotiations under (e
Waorld Trace Organization and the ASEAM Free Trade Arpa, as well as bitateral trade lalks with the country's
majer ecomndmec trading pariners. He also sarved a8 overall kaad country negodiator for the Phiippires in the
Japan Philippines Economic Partnership Agreement and was country representative io the High-Level Tass
Force on ASEAN Economic Integration. For his govermnment servies Or. AgQuino was conferred the
Fresidential Service Award (ar Lingked Bayan) for Bxtracndinary contribution of national impag! on public
interast. security and patrirmony and was a recipient of the Gawad Mabini Award with the rank of Grand Cross
or Kamanong) for distinguished service o the country both at home and abroad. Dr. Aguino abtained =
Doclorate in Business Administration in 1980 from the IESE Business Schoal, University of Mavarne in Spain,
MS in Industrial Economics in 1972 from the University of Asla and the Pacific, and AB in Economics in 1870
fram the School of Economics of the University of the Philipgines



Jose 5. Algjandro, age §3. Filipino, Vice Chalmman and member of the Board of Direcfors. served as
Chairman of the Beard of Directors of the Company on June 2, 2008 unéil March 22, 2007 when he resigned
from sasd positon and was elected as the Company's President. He sarved a& President until Janiuary 21

2008, Mr. Aejandro has also been a Member of the Board of Directors of NOW Telecom Company, Inc
{farmerly Mext Mobde Inc ) since 1988 and he now serves as the Board's Chalmman, He = a business and
managament professional and leader with over 25 years of corporate experience He was the former
Prosident and Chief Executive Officer of East Asia Power Resources. a local publicly-iisted independent
power producer during the period of local aconomic crisis (1097-1988), Country Manager for the Powar
Systems Busness of General Electnc Co. from 1987 o 1985 and Vies President -Marketing a1 GE
Philippines, Inc. and General Manger of GE Appliance Co. In these capacities, he led the growth and success
of this leading U.5. global diversified corporation in the Philippines. He holds a Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor
of Law degrees from the Atenac de Manila Universdy,and is 8 member of the Philippine Bar

Mel V. Velarde, age 54, Filipino, President and Chief Execetive Officer and Membar of He Board of Diectons
was elected Vice-Chaisman of the Company's Board of Directors on June 2, 2008 and served 88 such untll
March 22 2007 when he was elecied as Chairman of the Board of Directors. On January 21, 2008 he
resigned from his chairmanship and was agam electad as Vice Chairman of the Board until June 2, 7011 He
was siecled as President of the Company on June 13 2011 Mr. Velarde is the Vice-Chairman and the
Chairman of the Executive Committee of NOW Teiecom Company Inc (formery Next Mobis, Inc) He
sarved as Fhillppine Commissioner to the United Nations Educational, Seientific and Cultural Organizations
and Chairperson of the Committee on Science and Technology. Mr Valarde has bull & carcer in
brogacasting, cable TV, lelecommunications and infarmation communications lechnology. He was former
Executve Vice President and General Manager of Sky Cable. He obtained his Bacheior of Ars in Libesal
Studies Major in Interdiscplinary Stedies (Summa Gum Laude) at Bosion Liniversity, Massachusetts, US He
completed the Owner/President Management Program at the Harvard Business School Harvard Univarsity
Cambridge, Massachusetis, He has also completed courses leading to & Masters Degree in Business
Economics at the University of Asia and the Pacific. He has taken Sirategic Planning, Marketing and Finance
at the Asian Institute of Management, In addition, he took up the following executive courses: \Waalth
Management al Wharton Business School, University of Pennsylvania; Strategic Fimance, University of
Mictegan, Cosporate Restructunng and Business Transformation ot Harvard Business Bchoot, Dgital
Marketing at Harvard Buginess Schoal, Managing Businesses in China, Tsinghua Liniversity and Harvand
Husiness School; Directing Documentaries at the London School of Film and Television, Broadcasting and
Cabia Television, Satelite Communications, Data and Interne! Communicatons at the United Starss
Telecommunications Training Institute; Cybersecunty Planning, Implementing and Auditing of Crtical
Secunity Controls (BANS, Washington D.C); and Advanced and Compatitive Safling Cerifications at the
Swain 3aiing School at Torfola, the British Virgin Islands. Caribbean He has also completed digital
cnematography, digital editing and film production management al University of Calfomia. Los Angeles
[UCLAY, Film Instifuie, CA,

Vicente Martin W. Araneta W, age 54, Filipino, Diecfor He also serves as Director arnd Presidant of
Facilities, Inc. and as Chairman of Real Properties, Inc., the holding company of Faciibes, Inc and owner of
the Palladium Subdivision He is also @ member of the Board of Direclors and Chisf Financial Officer of
Activisia, Inc, & 360-dagree markefing services company specializing in Out-of-Home, events, point-of-sale
&nd channel actvation, tourism marketing, sports marketing and creative senices He it an incorporaton
founding member, Treasurer and Director of the Philipgine Chamber of Commerca and Indugtry — Pasig City
InG.. He serves as director and chief financial officer of Algo-Rhythm Communications, Inc., Amibadigital, Inc.
ard ActivCare Home Health Solutions. Inc. He & currently the chief financial officer of Awesome Lab Inc . He
% 350 8 member (on-leave) of the Managemant Association of the Philippines and of the Chamber of Real
Estate and Builders Associations, Ine. He oblained his Bachelor of Arts Degree in Interdisciplinary Studies at
thie Ateneo de Manila University in 1085. Mr. Arenefa | a member of the Ateneo Alumni Assooation Ine and
sarved at 8 member of its Board of Direclors for the peried 2005-2007 and 2009-2012 He is Alsn he
Fresiden! of Ataneo, Inc. and a member since 2011 of the Philippine Assccistion of Congrass Exhibetors)
Organizers & Suppliers, Inc, (PACEOS). He is the ncorporator of the Mandaluyong Business Fousdation Mr
Araneta also served as Director for the period 2004 to 2005 of the Philpping Science High School
Faundation,

Gerard Bon R. Bautista, age 54 Fiping, Director, was elected a8 a member of the Board of Directors on
dune 2, 2016, He is also currently the Chairman aof the University of Baguie Foundation. He i= a pariner in



ENMN Bautista Associates, an Architecture & Planning firm established in 1888 and the President of Eduplan
Fhilippines, Inc.. a leading educational pre-need insurance company, He is a Charer Member of the Rotary
Club of Makatl, Greenbelt, He is Blso curmenlly a member of vanous associations, namaly, tha Harvard
Architectural and Urban Society. the Harvard Club of the Phils, the Harvard Alumni Allance for the
Erviranment, the Harvard Alumni Entrepreneurs. the Philippine Jaycees Senate, Rockwel! Club the Porsche
Club of the Philippines, and the Rockwedl Club, Baguio Country Club. He served as President of (he Makati
Jaycees He obtained his Bachefor of Sclence in Archilecture in the University of the Philippings in 1287 he
obtained post graduate studies in Infarmatan Technology for Architects in the Ateneo de Manila Univarsity. In
2002, he obtained post graduate studies in Financial Forecasting in \he Center for Rasearch and
Communications in Mandaluyong. Likewise in 2002, he oblained post graduate studies in Finance far Saniar
Execiutives in the Asian Institule of Management in Makati City. Ha also obtained post graduata siudias in
Actual Planning and in School Planning and Design in Harvard University in Cambridge, Massachusetis

Ramen Guillermo R. Tuazon, sge 59, Filipino, Direclor s also the President of the Asian Institule of
Jounalism  and Communication (ALC) and Secretary General of Asian Media Information and
Communication Centre (AMIC). Mr. Tuazon |s also currently the President and Trustee of the Asian Insfitute
of Jolrnalism and Communication, Inc. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of the Singapore-based
Asz:an Media information Cenfre Since 2007, Mr. Tuazon was the Chairman of the Commission on Highes
Education Technical Committee for Communication and member of the CHED Technical Panel for Social
Sciences and Communication. He serves as UNESCO Communication & Information Advisar He aiso served
UNESCO in varieus capacities: UNESCO Specialist for Myanmar from November 2012 to Jenmuary 214

representatve of the UNESCO Regional Director to the UN Country Team in the Philipgines fram 2010 10
2012. He has co-authored six books. co-edited 15 bocksimenagraphs, written over 10 handbooks/modulas,
pubtishied numerous arficles in mtermational and national boaks, journals, and monegraphs. Among his latest
publications are. Multiciscipiieary Inquiry on the Culture of impunity in the Wil of Joummalizls (2013), and
Media and Informalion Liferacy. Curdcwlum for Teachers (UNESCO Pars, 2011). He has confributed in
saveral |mermational publications including Medis amd Information Literscy and Intercelumsi G
(NORDICOM, 2013) and Gender Sensive indicators for Media (UNESCOD, 2012). He was a peer reviewsr fof
the recent UNESCO publicabon, Global Medis Information Lieracy Assessment Eramewovk Gountny
Readiness and Competencies (2013}, Mr, Tuazon completed his Master in Communication Management from
the AlJC and Bachelor of Science in Commerce from the University of Santo Tomas where he also took
graduats wark in adverising.

Marlow Buenafe Ubano, 45 years old Filiping, Independent Director has besn in praciice of law for fifjeen
years. He is the Founding Partner of the Ubano Sianghic & Lozada Law Offices which was established n
June 2002 He i= cumrently a8 Governor of Integrated Bar of the Philippines — Western Visayas Region. He
served as Assistant Secretery for Legal Affairs of the Philippine Department of Tranaparatian and
Communications from 2011 1o 2013, He was the Commissioner of the Commission on Bar Disciplire,
Intégrated Bar of the Philippines from 2005 1o 2007, He also servad as President of the Integrated Bar of the
Fhilppines - Capiz Chapter from 2007 to 2008 and again in 2011, and as Deputy Govemar of the Integrated
Her of the Philippines — Western Visayas Regien from 2011 1o 2013, Aity. Ubanc was awarded the
Prasidential Plague of Merlt fram the IBP National President in 2007, and a Flaque of Recognition as the
Mast Dutstanding IBP Capiz President In 2008 Atty. Utana is a Mamber of the Assan Law Association and
the Intellectual Properly Association of the Phils., Inc. He obigined his Bacheiar's Degree = Law and Palitical
Science in the University of the Philippines.

Domingo B. Bontfacio, age 64, American, Independant Direclor was slected as Independent Diractar on 20
danuary 2017. He Is curently the Executive \ice President & General Manager of Autormated Technology
(Phil] Ine. Cannectivity Division In addition to these, Mr  Borifacio was the President of Cirtsk Advanced
Tachnologies and Solutions, Inc. - Leguna from 2014 1o 2015, President & CEO of REMEC Brosdband
Wirelaes [nternational, Inc. — Laguna from 2005 to 2014; President & CEQ  of REMEC Manufacturing,
Philippines, Inc. (Formerly Pacific Microwave Corporation stquired by REMEC, March 2001) from 2001 to
2005, Founder, President & CEO of Pacific Microwave Corporation, Philippines from 1985 to 2001; Director of
Operations of Optical Micowasve Networks Inc, San Jose, Californis, U.SA. from 1885 to 1895
Manutacturing Manager of Litton Industries - MSS Division, Santa Clara, CA, U.SA from 1887 to 1080
Manufacturing Manager of Gould inc. — Microwave Products Divigion, San Jose. CA. USA from 1883 to
1987, Manutacturing Manager of Dexced Inc. — SATCOM Division, Santa Clars, GA. U S.A from 1880 to 1983
and a member of the Technical Stal, Varian Associates, Solid State Div., Santa Clara, CA, UJ.5.A fram 1877-
1980, Mr. Bonifaco is also & member of the board of directors of Automsted Technclogy (Phil), Inc. of Menlo
Realth and Wellneéss Innovations, Inc. and of REMEC Broadband and Wireless, Ing, from 2005 to 2014} a
member of the board of trustee of Philippine Chamber of Industrial Estates end Ecoropes and of
Semiconducior and Electronics of the Philippines from 2011 to 2013 and Chairman of the Board of El Circulo
Masantoiens Scholarship Foundation. Mr. Bonifacio obtained his B.S. Electranics and Communicahons in Hwe



University of Santos Tomas. He passed the Electronics and Communication Engineering Licensure
Examination. Phiippines in 1877. He also ook Microwave Engineering in the Univarsity of Califormia, Berkiey,
CA

Winnita V. Ysog, age 53, Filiping, Director, was elected a8 member of the Board of Direciors on 02
Septermper 2018, She served as Marketing Manager of Wizard Academy. a school which oHerad preparatory
educstion, She also served as Managing Director of Albmax Broadcasting, Inc. In 2004, ene served as Vire-
Chairman of the Exscutive Commitiee and Vice-Prasident of the Human Resowrce and Cuality Administraton
of Mext Mobile, inc. In 2009, she venlured into the beauty and wellness business and set-up Vanilla Spice
She is the President of Jonahs and Seths Holdings, Inc. She oblained her Bachelor of Sciance Majer in
Tourism degree from the Liniversity of the Phiippines, Diliman, where she received an award of Proficienay in
French. She also obtained her Masters in Management from the Asian Institute of Management Makati City
Sha is now the owner and founder of Mabuhay Ako - Bag of Life 350 and curently, the President of Raotary
Cluss of Kamuning East, Ratary Intemational Disirict 3780,

Angeline L. Macaseel, age 45 Filipino, Corporate Secretary and Member of the Board of Directors, |5 a
member of the Phillppane Bar. She is alzo currently the Corporate Secretary and Chigfl Information Officer af
ihe Lompany. She is also the Corporate Secretary of the varous companies under the Velards Group such
&% Velarde, Inc, Gamboa Hoidings, Inc., Food Camp Industnies and Marketing, Inc., Emerald Investmients,
Inc , as wall as enfranchised companies such as NOW Telecom Company, Inc., GHT Network Inc MNews
and Entertainment Netwaork, Inc., among many cthers. She enswes the compliance af these companies with
A4 requiatory requirements as well as the legal requirements Invalving specific transactions. Her extensive
engagement involves all forms of liigation and in all fora.  She alss has axtengive practice in the Securilies
and Exchange Commission. Philippine Stock Exchange. and the National Telecommunications Cammission
In addition & litigation, Ms. Macasaet has corporate practice all the way 1o the more complex engagsments of
managemant buy-outs, corporate mergers and share swap.

Vicente | Pefianueva, age 54, Filipiio, Treasurer and Chiel Finance Officer He was macted by the
Company's Board of Directors as Acting Chie! Financial Officer on March 12, 2014 He brings to the
‘-ompany mare than 30 years experience in Corporate Finance, Controllarship, Audit and Accounting. Before
he joined the Cormpany, he was the Finance and Accounting Manager of Aruze Global Shared Sanices and
wag in-charge of Corporate Accounting and Reporting of seven companies - Fram 2012 to 2013, he was the
Aocounting Managar of Century Peak Metsls Holding Corporation, also a pubsicly listed comgany, From 2011
o 2012, he served as Accounting Manager of Great Image Services Corporation, From 1987 to 2011, ke
served a5 Servor Financial Planning, Budget and Accounting Manager of Universal Leaf Philippines Inc. a
multinational company. Mr. Penanueva is a Cerfified Public Accountant He gradusted from Atenen D
Davao University in 1985,

Andre Gian P, Aguirre, age 38 Ffipino, Chisf Audt Execufive. Mr. Andra Glan P. Aguirre has besn an
Acling Treaswer of NOW Corporation since 05 August 2016, Mr. Aguirre has 13 years of axparience In
Corporate Finance, Controfership, Audit and Accounting wilh ROW Corporation, He served as an Acting
Chief Finance Officer of NOW Cerporation from 05 August 2018 to 20 January 2017, He sarved as an Audlt
Manager of Sieon Conllo Parone and SCP, one of the lsading auditing firms in the country, of which he was
sssignad o manage the sudit of various companses in different industries. He also worked for Shell Business
Service Cenire, wherein he was the Senior Utilites Accountant for a cluster of chemical pisnts based in the
Netharancs from 2010 to 2012 He also worked for Sycip Gorres Velayo & Coo ["SGV7) for almost ais (8)
¥BETS a3 an auditor assigned to banks and other financial instthulions. He is a Centified Public Accountant He
graduated from the Philippines School of Business Administration - Mania in 2003,

Miguel Antonio 5. Regal, age 33, Filiping, Compliance Officer Alty. Miguel Antorio S. Regal is a member of
the Philipping Bar. He is also eurrantly a Legal Counsal and the Compliance Officar of NOW Corporation. He
E58I515 In the compliance of the varous companies under the Velarde Group such 8s Velarde, Ino., Gamboa
Haoldings, Inc, Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Inc, Emerald Invesiments Inc. NOW Telecom
Company. Inc., GHT Metwork, Inc., News and Entedainment Metwork Corporatian, among many others. with
all regulatory requirements as well as the l=gal requirements invalving specific transactions. Prior 1o jaining
the Company, he practiced law as an Associate of tha Suarez & Narvasa Law Firm and also served as the
Assistant Corporate Counsel of Major Homes, Inc., B real estate davelopment company, He has significant
sxperance in handiing cases involving Business & Corporate Law, Litigation & Dispute Resolution, Labar
Law. Intelleciual Propeny Law, and Civil Law



On 15 March 2018, Atty. Lucas C. Carpio, Jr. tandared his resignation as an Independent Director of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation effective on the same date The resignation of Alty. Carpio was not due
to any disagreement with the Company on any matter relating to the Company's cperations. policies or
prachces

Nominations to the Baard

There will be a regular election of directors and officers for the year 2018 to 2015 The MNomination
Committes shall pre-screen and shortlist all candidates nominated to become a member of the Board af
Directors in accordance with the qualificatons and disqualification under Sec. 2221 of the Manual on
Corporate Govemance

The nomination procedure is 0 accordance with SRC Rule 32 on the requirements an nominaton and
alection of indepandant directons,

Mominatisn Committes
The Chairman and Members of the Nomination and Election Cemmilles are as followes,

Vicenie Martin W Araneta |l - Chairman
Jose 5 Alsjandro - Member
Mariou B, Ubano - Member (Indepandent Director)

Mr. Mel V. Velarde, President and CED of the Company, will nominate the candidates for
ndependent dirsciors, None of the Company's directors and executive officers is relatad up o the
fourh civil degree of consanguinity or affinity, except for Mr, Mel V. Velarde, President and Creef
Executive Officer. whose sibling, Ms. Winnita V. Ysog was elected &s a régular director dunng the
Annual Stockholders” Meeting held on 01 June 2017, The term of office of electsd direchors will ba
one (1) yaar.

The following wese nominated as the regutar Durectors of the Company for the enswing year

Thomas G. Aguino
Jose 5. Adajandro



fel V. Velards

Wicerte Marfin W. Aranata 1l
Gerard Bnn R Bautista
Ramon Guillermo B Tuazon
Winnifa V. Ysog

Angeting L Macasael

The following will be nominated for re-slecton a5 indepandent Directors for the ensuing year

Marlou B Ubang Damingo B. Bonifacio Andrew J, Lorken

The Certifications of Quaiication of Independent Director of Atty. Mariou B. Ubang, Mr. Domingo B
Bonifacio. and Mr. Andrew .| Lorken are hereto attached as ANMEXES |, et and "0", respectively

Officers

Thomas G. Aquino, Chalrman of the Board (See above)

Jose 5. Alejandro, Viee Chairman (See abova)

Mal V. Velarde, President and Chief Executive Officer [See above)
Angeline L. Macasaet, Corporate Secretary (See abova)

Vicente |. Pefanueva, Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer (See abowa)
Andre Glan P. Aguirre, Chief Audit Executive (See above)

Migue! Antonio S, Regal, Compliance officer (See above)

W Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings of Directors and Officers

There are no pending legal proceedings imvofving Bankruptcy Petition, Conviction by Final Judgmeant or
Being subject to any Order, Judgment or Decres, or Violation of a Securities commodities Law fev ek
any direcior. any nominee for election as direcior, executive officer, underwriter ar control persan of the
Carmgany s @ parly of of which any of thelr property is the subject thereof have occurred during the past
five (5} years up fo the latest date thaf are material to evaluation,

iii. identity of Significant Employees

Thera is ne person whe is not an executive officer who s expactad to make & significant contribution to the
business of the Company

Iv. Family Relationship

None of ihe Direclors, Advisors and Executive Officers is related up to the fourth civi degree of
consanguinity or affinity, except for Mel V, Velarde whose sibling Winnita Ysog is beng nominated as
regudar diregtor for the enswuing year.

v. Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings of the Registrant or its Subsidiaries! Afiliates

O 17 November 2017, the Company filed an administratve cass agairst Mr. Jose P. Dorrmidea, Sk [
Hegional Trial Court Branch 154, of Pasig Clty. In a Letter dated 08 January 2018, the Supreme Court
netified the Company that the copy of the Verffied Complaint forwarded to the Supreme Court on 18
Descamber 2017 by the Office of the Chisf Juslica.

b. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions (See Note § of 2017 Consslidated Finarcial
Statements)

Mone of the Adwiaors, Execufive Officers and Managemen! employees are relaled by affinity or
cansanguinity, except for Mel V. Vetarde whose sibling Winnita Ys0g is being nominated as regulas
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director for the ensuing yesr In the nomal course of business; the following transactions have been
erdered intd with related parties affecting consolidated ataterments of income:

Related parties Catagory
Velards, Inc Management Fee

Year
20497
2018

2015

Interest

016
2015

NOW Teleoom Company, Inc Services 2017

206
2015

Cost of services

207
206

2015

Maw and Entertainment Netwark, Inc.  Services 2017

2016
2015

Cost of services idata

2017
2018

2015

GHT Metwork  Services
Ine

a7
2018

2015

INIX
Broadband, Ing

Interest 2017

Cost of Sales General &

Admin
Beverues  and services  expenses
PIM|MH F-"' F'F'-'
240,000 - -
240,000 = -
7,800,000 o
7,500 000 - =
—d 1.?“.?1” -
- Tre715 =
25,600,000
15,450,000 = =
10,000,030 - -
- 1,364, 054 =
- 1,608 012 -
20,600,000
15,450,000 = =
10,600 000 = =
487,033

|



2018

467,033 - -
L 467 033 = =
Knowledge Outside services 2017 - B.411,848 3,344,164
Professionals
Service
Consuiting
2018 - 43 2B 81D 74808693
2015 - 40,054,608 G602 182
Seftweb Bales 2017 - = &
Consulting, Ing
2018 5412232 = -
2015 12,0838 054 = -
+College of the 2017 =
Phillppines, lnc. Lesse 530,000
2018 - - B30 313
215 = - B30.313
2017 PS4.707.033 m11,533.720 R4,384,477
<016 P44510625 P45 703245 MB.420.006
2015  MZ32B054 M4005459 2B
L.532,505

The Group entered into transactions with refated parties; principally consisting of the fallowing:

@ The Parent Company grants inferest-free advances to NOW Telecom Company, Inc for working

capial and administrative requirements  Amounts owed by NOW Telacom Company, Inc. as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 amaounted to PE3, 745439, B51, 346,501, and B31,408 455,

respectively

On August 30, 2005, the Parent Company entered inic a Loan Agreamant with IMX Braadband

Inc. {181} for research and development purposes in connection with IBFs plan to expand e IT
platform and introduce |T-related products and services. The loan is subject to .09 interest pes
annum and is payable no later than August 30, 2010. Partial pre-paymants on the prncipal may
be made prior io this dale. The interest is due and demandable only on maturity date  Interest
was reduced by the parties to 5 5% per annum in 2007 and shall be subjact to annua! repricing

gubsenuant ta 2007,

On June 25, 2010, both parties agreed to extend the maturity of the loan from August 30, 2010 to
August 20, 2012 On August 31, 2012, both parfies agreed fo further extend the matunty of the
loan up to Augusi 30, 2015, with the intarest rate further reduced jo 3% per annum starting
January 1,2013 On August 31, 2015, both parties sgread b axtend the maturty of the lcan to
five (5) years ending August 30, 2020, Interest was retsined at 3% per annum,  Interest income
amounted to P= 467,033 in 2017, 2018 and 2015 reflected a5 part of "Others’ in revenue, As of
December 31, 2017, 2076 and 2015, amounts owed by 18I, Including interest, amounted P
27.497 744, B27,030,711 and B25 583 678, respectively. IBI is an #fitity under commeon control

Az of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015 the Group has sulstanding ksbilties o Emerald
Investmant, Inc. (Ell) amounting to ®2 802818 which arcse from tha Group's sub-lease
agreement with Ell that ended in 2011

Amounts owed by Ell as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 ja P40 848,

On January 1, 2013, the Parent Company renewed is service agreement with Knowledge
Profassionals Senvice Cooperative (KPSC) for a period of four {4) years beginmng Jasuary 1,
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2013 to December 31, 20168, On Janusry 3, 2017, the Parent Company renewed fs service
agreement with KPSC for a period of five (5} years beginning Januery 3, 2017 to January 2, 2022

Under the service agreamant, KPSC shall provide consultancy and manpower services depending
of the services specifically required by the Group, Amounds owed to KPSC, in relation o the
service agreament, emounted to RT3 038,402 B15 450 244 and B18. 718 181 as of December 31,
2017 2016 and 2015, raspactivaly

The Group's administrative and management functions, including key management parsannel, are
being handied by parsonmsl of KPSC!

Outside services incurmed by the Group for the provision of key management personnal servicas
that are provided by KPSC amounted to P2 863 846, W6 176,177, and P8 858 809 in 2017, 2016
and 2015, respectively,

On January 31, 2017, both parbes mutuaily agreed o terminate the service agreement following
tha change in the business operation of the Group

& Due o related panies include interest bearing advances from Velarde, Inc. for working capital and

invesiment requirements. Interesi rate for these loans & at 18,0% per annum ar 1.5% per manth

On January 22, 2015 Velarde, Inc. agreed o convert s advances amounting 1o
Php200.000.000.00 inte equity intersst in the Parent Company for 200,000,000 comman shares
with & par value of Php1.00. It was further agreed that the remaining balances and subseguent
advances from Velarde, Inc. shall ne longer be subject to interest and shall be due on derand
ises Mote 17)

Interes! expense booked as additional amounts owed to related party amounted to ril in 2017
2016 and 2015,

On April 28, 2018, the Parenl Company's Board approved the conversion into equity of the
advances from Velarde, Inc. amounting to F284_000,000.00 al a conversion price of Php1 22 per
share computed on the volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company's sharss for a 30
Cay fraceng period ‘ended Apnl 14, 2018 On June 2, 2016, the stockboiders of ihe Parent
Company spproved the said incraase in the Parent Company's authorzed capital stock

Un June 20, 2016, additional sdvances were incurred from Velarde, Inc. through the latter's
payment of the lcans payable to bank on behaif of the Parent Comgany amounting to
44 500,000.00 (see Mote 11)

Quistanding accrued interest presented as part of the “Accounts payable and accrued expensss”
amounted to B55 903, 568 as of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015 (see Note &)

Due to Velarde, Inc. presented as part of “Due 1o related parties” amounted to Fi41 326 865, B
68,322 816 and B223 458,035 as of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 3015 respectively

The Group charges Softweb Consulting, Inc. and Velarde, Inc. management fees for the
administration and operations of the companies  Management fees charged fo Softweb amouned
ol in 2017, 2016 and 2015, reflectad as pan of “Others” in revenus. Payrnents are due within 5
days upon receipt of mvoice. Management fees charged lo Velarde, Inc. amounted to B240 000 in
2017, 2018 and 2015 refected as part of "Others” in revenue

Tne Group has outstanding trade receivables to Velarde, Inc. amounting to #1,880,000,
1,440,000 and 1,200,000 a5 of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015, respectively

13



The Group entered into a non-intérest bearing loan agreement with Porean Electric Vehues, Inc
(Pom@on). As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amounl due from Poraon
Eleciric Vehicles, Inc. amaunted t& #2160 300 whizh iz due on demand

On January 1, 2011, the Group entered into a sublease comract with I-Callege Philippines. Ing
{ICoilege) for the period November 1, 2011 to May 31, 2012 with a manthly rental fee of P=77 528
The term of the |ease can be ranewed upon mutual conseni of both parties. The masi recen
renewal of this sublease agreemant is for a period of three (3) years from

Movember 1, 2014 io October 31, 2017 All other tarms and conditions of the sublease agreement
dated January 1. 20711 ramain in full force

Fent expense incurred by the Group amounted fo RSE0 313 in 2017, 2096 and 2015 in
connection with this, the refated due to |-College amounted Yo #5738 925, R4 06 612 and B
3,876,300 as of Decernber 31, 217, 2078 and 2015, respectively

The Group sells |BM licenses 1o Softweb, an associate.  Sales of IBM license to Softweb
amaunied b nil, ®5 412 232 and P12,068,054 In 2017, 2016 and 2015

The Greup entered into agreements with Thumbmob, Holy Cow and Softweb for the sibscription
of their respective shares, Pleass see Mote § for detailed discussion

in January £015. the Farent Company enterad ino two separate one (1) year senvice agreements
with GHT Metwaork, Inc. (GHT) and News and Entertainment Meatwork, Inc (Mawsnat) bo provide
bandwidth services to its customers. The Parent Company provided the infrastructurs build-up
and technology design and consultancy. Service revenue from GHT and Mewsnst ameunted to #
10,000,000 each in 2015 reflected & par of “Service fess” in revenue

In 2016, the FParent Company entered into contracts with GHT, Newsnet and includas NOW
Telecom whereas the Parent Company will provide project management services, design and
planning services and installation services covering up to 10 major network hubs for @ lodsl
contract price of P45,000,000 each. Right to receive payments arise upon ecceplance of GMT
Newenet and NOW Telecom of completed hubs. Payments are due upon receipt of involce. A
total of 8 and 10 hube were completed for GHT and Newsnet respectively in 2017 Senice
revenue redated (o infrastructure build-up recognired in 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted to B
45,000,000, ®306.000.000 and ¥20_ 000,000

Included in the contract enfered in 2015, 1he Parent Company will provide technalogy consultancy
services for @ period of ten (10) years with @ monthly fee of 50000 each for GHT and Newsnet
Sarvice revenue recognized in 2017 and 2018 amounted o PS00 000 and P450.000 each for GHT
ang Meawznat,

The Group prowged technical service related with Rohill TetraNode System to MOW Telecom in
2016 which the Group recognize a service ravenue amaunting to 7 500,000

Parant Compary aiso entered info B confract with NOW Telecom to provide managemant

services commencing from January 2017 to January 2020 with an agreed manthly fee
of ME50,000 Service revenue refated lo management consultancy services to NOW Telecom
dmouriled o BT,800 000 in 2007

The Group has outstanding trade receivables from the related parties:

M7 2018 2045
GHT 44,032,048 28 504,000 11,200,000
Newsnet 53,441,580 28,504,000 11,200,000
NOW Telecom 13,102,508 8,400,000

Value-aadded sonices [VAS)
In 2013, the Parent Company entered into three (3) separate agreaments with NOW Telecom

GHT and Newsnet (tha Parties), whersin the Parties mutuaily agreed to esllaborate and
irdarcenned thair respective networks in ordar for the Pamnl Gompany o provide VAS 1o the pubac s &8 chaud
hostng services, vitual private nebwerk, mulimeda content and pregram serdces, onfing gema BefYices, coud-
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Daged mubmedia confamncng sendces, web hosting and cloud-tssed mail and messagng servces (WAS
conirecis|

On December 5, 2016, the parties agreed to amend Chaptar 5. of ther VAS conracts (o 804 provsion on meeanus
shanrg from the broadband revenue

On Decembar 23, 2018, tha parties agreed ko amend thair VAS coniracis to indude additicnal fees fom actual
usage of bandwidth and cther provision on charging o the Parant Company on @ cost-phis margin arrangament
Tata! cost of data sardces changed fo cost of senvices ampantsd fo B3, 1231 774 and RZATE BT in 3017 and 2016
iekGectvely

A of Dacemnber 31, J01T, 2016 and 2015, fhe sutstanding amounts dus fmom GHT amainited ta B8 S80 805 @
5177301 and B5,000 18D, respectvely. The group alsa Bas an outstanding amaunts due from Nowsnat Erourting
ta W15.350.811, ®10.735.980 and M5 067 544 #a of Decembar 31 2017, 2016 and 2015, respactivety

Itam &, Compersation of Dirmctoms and Exscutive Oficars

The sggregals companstion of execsilive offcas ard desdiomn of tha Company fod the last 2 years and projecied B (he
‘curent year [2018) ace as fliows

; ACTIAAL
2017 2018
COMPENSATION OTHERS TOTAL
& Frea {5} MG
highly  compansaten
Executive Cfficers
6,502 TER 00 5178 118 19,678,877.00 133580, 477 4%
Al direciors and  escecuihe
officars a5 a
Araug Lnnamad
[ 295 000.00 295,000.00 4T 11&_1 7a
[Projected 2018 =
COMPEMSATION OTHERS TOTAL
A Five {8 mest highly compensabed
Esmoutive Orificers
6.831,510.36 5,100,000 11,734,510,35
Al dreciors snd axecustive officers s 8
rLip unnamed
300,000.00 300,000.00

Trs lﬂmﬂnﬂmmﬁﬁﬂiﬂwmpﬁtﬂmdilﬂmﬁfﬂlﬂ.ﬁHMHmmmpmy 1
Thamas G Aqune, 2 Mal V' Velarde, 3 Angaiine L Macasaet 4 Vieende | Pefianueva 5. Ma. Menta G Libd

Standard arrangaments ar olher arangaments pursuant 1o which dirgcdons of the Corporation are compensasied
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Standard Arrangement
Oines then gayrent of reasonable per diem, there are no slandard srangements pursusnt 10 which dirdos ol he

Corporalion Bre compensaled, or are io be compensaled, deecily of ingirecly, for any services provides 85 a directer
far tha lapt completed fiscal year and tha ensuing year

Other Arrangements

Thene s ro other armangamants pursuant to whash any director of the Comporation was compensatea or 15 to 0=
compersaiet. drectly of indirecily, during the Corporation's ast completed fiscal yaar, and the ensuing year, for any
sanice pravided a3 & deactor

Employment Contracts and Terminaticn of Employmaent and Change-in-Control Arrangemant

There ére noSpeciel employment contracts detween Ihe Coparasion and the named execulive olficens

Thare are no compensatarg plan or arrangemant with respect ba 3 named execubve oificar.

Warraniz and Optiens Ouistanding

Ther are no outstanding warmanis or cgtions held by the Comparation's Chiefl Esecutive Officar, the named executive
officers. and all officers and dvectors a5 a group

fem 7. Independent Public Accountants

The auditing firm of Syop Gares Velayo & Co. (506GY & Co) s the mcumbent sxternal sudior of the Company far iba
calerder year 2017 The sad audiing- firn will be mcommended for re-agpaintment & tha OF June 2098 ennual meesing ol
sharehricens 1o condoct the audil far fiscal year 2018

Repesertatves of 56V & Co are especied fo be present 8l tha Arnusl Blockhoiders’ Mesling whane fthey will have ke
apporiunty to make a statement  they désre o do 50 and am axpedied 1o he avedanle 1o respond b0 approonals questions

Ther bad been no deagresmeants with S&V & Co,, wih regard o accountng policies ang financlal deciosures of e
Company

Trhe audgng firn of S3V & Co, has been 1he axiermal @udkar of the Company far |e (6al geven (7] veemns. Thens have besan

fa differert parirers in charga from 3010 o 2316, For the 2017 sudil. tha pariner in chamga was Jhoanne Feiza © Go Tha

Company & in complance with SAC Aue 68, paragraph 3bi(1v) mgarding compliance 'wih the S-year rofetian of exdemal
audiars

it Foes

The sggregate fees Bitled far eash al the lest tee (3) kesssl pears for pralessianal senaces randared by e axtemal
aumstar for the audt of the of the parert Company and HResowce Congubing Inlemalicnal, Inc {subsidiary) annsal fingncial
statemants & FnpS50,008.00 for 2017, PhpS00.000.00 for 2018 and Php2B0 00000 for 2045

The extarmad sudilol does not renoer any other assurance and senvices melated to the perfformance of the auds nor
does i rengier any professional servios faf lax accounting, adwice, planning and any ather fom of 2 services:

n 2017, 3GV & Co did the raview of the intesim Condensed Consalidabed Firdnsal Statements & al Seplember 30
2017 and far the nina-manth periods anded Seplember 30 2017 ard 2016 There wene na alhers sigrificant prodessional
sennces rendesed by SGY & o dunng the period.
Audit Committas
The Craimman and Members of tha Audt and Risk Managerment Sommitisg ang:

Marisu B Ukans - Chairparsan {independent Diractar]

Hamgn Guillermo B, Tuazon — Member
Gerard Bon B Baubsia = Mambar

Hem & Compensstion Plans

MD SC00 18 5% Be laken by the Company with mespect bo amy plan pursuant 1o which cash or nan-cash compansaton may
be paid or destnbuted

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
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item 9. Authorization of Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

Fheee 5 N

item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There are no matters or actions to be faken up in the meeting with respect to the modfication of any class
of the Company's securities or the issuance of authorization for issuance of one dass of the Company's
sacurties in exchange for oulstanding securites of ansther class,

ltem 11, Financial and Other information

The Certifications of Qualification of Independent Director of Atty. Marlou B. Ubano, Mr. Domingo B,
Bonifacio, and Mr, Andraw Lorken are hereto atteched as ANNEXES "B", “C", and D", respectivaly

Cither data related to the Company’s financial information such as the Consolidated Audied Financial
Sialemenis as of 31 December 2017 1ogether with the Siatement of Management Responsibilty; the

Irtenim Financial Statements as of 31 March 2018, the Certification on Appaintment or Employment in
Gowvermment Entity, and the 1% Quarter Repart for period ended 31 March 2018 (SEC Form 17-0) are
heredo aftached as ANNEXES "E", "F", “G", and "H" respactively

Hem 12. Mergers, Consolldations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

Mo aClion will be taken with respect to any ransaction involving the following:

8. = merger or consolidation of the registrant mto or with amy other person or of any other person info ar
with tiw registrant,

the acquisition by the registrant ar any of its secunity holders of securities of anothar parson;

the Bcquesition by the registrant of any other going busingss or of the asseds thereof,

tha sale or other transfer of & or any substantial part of the assete of the registrant. or

the: liquidation or dissohution of the registrant

L+ = T i A =

item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There are no matters or aclions to be taken up with respect to acquisition or dispesition of any proparty by
the Company

Itern 14. Restatement of Accounts

Nona.

D, OTHER MATTERS
Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

The following ere included in the agenda of the Annual Stockholders Mesting for approval of the
Stockhoidars:

1 Minutes of the 2017 Annual Mesting held on 01 June 2017

17



2 Oiher progosed Actions:

Action will ba taken to approve and ratify the acts of the Board of Directors and Management of
the Company from ihe Joirt Organizational and Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors hald on
28 June 2017 up to the date of the annual meeting of stockholders on 07 Jume 2018 Thesa acis
were adopted in the ordinary course of business and Include the alection of corparate officars and
committes membars.

3 Appoiniment of &n Extamal Audtorn; amd
4 Final 1erms of the conversion price retated to the increase in authorized capital stock and
conversion of shareholder advances info eguity

ltem 16, Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All mattars or aclions to be submitied In the meeting will require the vote of the security hoiders:

ftem 17. Amendment of Charter, By laws or Other Documents,

The reason for the increase in authorized capital stock is o ensble (he Company 1o raise iz capital and
implement the convarsion into equity of the 284M advances accumulated since year 2011 from &
sharetalder, Vislarde, Inc.

The general effect of the Increases in authorized capital stock will provide the Company with funding 1o
furdher strangthen its businesses. Moreaver, the conversion of adwvances info equity will help in the
continuing efforts to achieve debl-free status for NOW Corporation.

item 18, Othar Proposed Actions

Qther than the matters indicated in the Motice and Agenda. there are no other actions proposed to be
taken at the meeling.

Item 19, Vating Procedures

Al keast a majority of the outstanding capilal siock of the Company shall be sufficient 1o carry the vote far
matters submiied io-a vole af the Annual Stockholders’ Meeling. The manner of voting and counting vales
will be s follows:

. All outstanding stockholders as of record date of 20 Apnl 2018 are entitled 1o vote, one 1o one. and
shadl have the night to wvela. Atty. Angeline L Macasaet, the Corporate Secretary, will count the
votes cask.

2. For purposes of slecting directors. cumulative voting shall be folowed. Tha siockholdars may

have the option 1o cast all his'her votes in favor of one or distribute hsher voles among
nomineas. Only candidates nomimnated during the meeting shall be entitied to be volad

3. Consistent with the provisions of the By-Laws of the Company, voting need not be by baliot ard
will be done by show of hands, unless required by law. or upen motion by any of the stockhalders
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UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE ANNUAL REPORT

THE REGISTRANT UNDERTAKES TO PROVIDE WITHOUT CHARGE TO EACH STOCKHOLDER
A COPY OF THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPORT OR SEC FORM 17-4 UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO
THE COMPANY ADBRESSED TO.

AMGELINE L. MACASAET
Corporate
WOV CORPORA
ik &i, E™ Flgor, OPL Building, 100 C. Palanca Street comer Dela Rosa and Gi Streats,

Legeepl VElage, Makati Cily

Y

PART IL

INFUHRMA TION REQLWRED N A PROXY FORM

There are no proxy solicitations,

PART HI,
SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonabia inguiry and o the best of my krowledge and balief, | cartify that the information sat forth
in this repont ls irue, complete and cormect. This report is signed in the City of Makasi on this 3 day of May
2018

1

|
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

General Information

WO Corparation (The "Company”) was ariginally incorporated on June 5, 1998 as MF Schroder &
Co.. Ing., initlally o engage In the purchase and =3 of securities. MF Schrodar & Co, Inc. was fhen a
whally-owned subsidiary of Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation (AIB), & full-fledged and duly licensed
mwesiment house.

In Januany 2002, MF Schroder & Co, Inc, was renamed Cashrounds, Inc. (Cashrounds), with the
primary purpose o engage in the business of securities brokerage relating io the-sale, fransfer or exchange
of every deschiplion of shares of stock and bonds, and io execufe such transactons with tha use of
informathen technology

On March 22, 2005, a Memorandum of Agreemant was executed by AIB and Gamboa Holdings,
inc. {Gamboaj, whereby AIB agreed o sell and Gamboa agreed to purchase 18171286 or 2/3 of the
shares of stock of Cashrounds af an aggregate purchasa price of PhpT4, 395 000 00

The sale of Cashrounds shares 10 Gamboa was made on June 3 and Augus! 30, 2005 which
resulted In Gamboa owning 88.87% of Cashrounds

On April 28, 2006, Cashrounds entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with NOW
Telecom Company, Inc, formery known as Nexd Mobile, Inc. (NOW Telecom) and five coniroiling
shareholders of NOW Telecom nemely, Top Mega Enterprises Limited, Joyce Link Holdings Limited.
Garmboa Holdings, Inc, Emerald Investments Inc., Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Inc (the five
companies collectively known as NOW Telecom Shareholders) whereby existing shares of NOW Telecom
owned Oy the NOW Telecom Sharsholders were swapped with new shares |ssued by Cashrounds
pursuant 1o an increass in authorized capital stock

As a resull of the above-mentioned exchange of shares of stock, the NOW Talecom Shareholders
acquered 87% equity interest of Cashrounds, while Cashrounds acquired 19% of NOW Telecom

On Septermber 18. 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the increase
In the authorized capital slock of Cashrounds to Php1. 320 bilion with correspanding increase of its paid-up
cepital to Phpl 317.278,350 as well a3 the change of the corporate name from Cashrounds, Inc, io
Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc,

On July 24, 2008, the SEC approved the amendmani of Articie Il of the Articles of Incorporaton of
the Compamy's Primary Purpose to read as folows:

To angaga in the business of providing lelecommunications, media and infarmation
iecAnoiogy products and senices, such &5 b nof fimiad o the research, deveiopmant,
production, management, marketing, and operation of the folowing felecommunications
value added serviges through companies duly licensed fo engage in wired and wirsless,
fixed and mobde communicalions; soffware and hardware lechnology, business process
outsourcing, call cenfer and olher information technelogy applications; digial medis and
ather media excep! mass media; and (o do al achvities: directly or indirectly connected
ferawith ar inciderd [hersin,

On December 10, 2008, the Phillppine Stock Exchange (PSE) approved the application of the
Company 1o list additional shares to cover ite share-for-share swap transactions with the sharsholders of
NOW Telecom  In addition, PSE likewise approved the Comgpany's transfar from the SME Board 1o the
Second Board of the Exchange,

On February 20, 2008, the PSE issued a circular informéng the investing public of the Company's
lrsting of additional 1,289,278 350 commaon shares effective February 24, 2009. This |s to cover the share-
for-share swap transactions wilth the shareholders of NOW Telecom, namely, Top Mega Enterprises
Limited. Gambea Holdings, Inc., Emerald Investments, Inc., Joyce Link Holdings Limited and Food Camgp
Industries and Marketing. Inc., af a swap price of ™1 00 per share,

The transfer of the Company from the SME to the Second Eoard finally ook effect on June 26,
00,
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Cn March 12, 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company (BOD} approved the Company's
fransfar from the Second board to the First Board of the Exchange.  |n addition, the BOD approved the
Company's incraase in authonzed capital sleck from P1.32 billion to P5 biftion as well as the listing of the
addiicnal shares from tha increase. Finally, the BOD approved the amendmeant of the Company's By-
Laws that will @tiow wanver of pre-armplive fghts.

On August 3, 2010, the BEC approved the Amendment of the Seventh Article of the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company to read as follows:

Mo stockhoner shal fdnes any pre-emplive rght of subscapiian i any class of shaes of
stock of its Corparation, whelther Io the presem auwthonzed capifal stock or any future
increases Hheraof,

On Septermber 1, 2010, the Company enteréd into an agreement with Softrigges Interactive, Inc.
and Mr, Carles T Sevilla whaneby the Company shall subscribe 1o new shares of stock of Sofingges
Interactive, Inc. totaiing 34,134 which will be equivalant to 50% equity interest in Softrigger Interactive, Inc
past investment.

On Octobar 1, 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with Holy Cow Animation. Inc., Ms
Marityn O L. Montano and Mr. Danilo F. Montano whereby the Company shall subscribe to new shares of
stock of Holy Cow Animation, Inc. Iotaling 53.837 shares which will be equivalent to 50% equity interest in
Hedy Cow Animation, Inc. post investment.

Haly Cow Animation, Inc. is engaged in the business of providing computerized animation senvices
for film andfor television, including concepluakzation, production and execution of shows, programs and
advirtising campasgns using animation.

On December 20, 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with Softweb Consuiting, Inc
Mz, Bheanie T. Vitoria, Mr. James Michae! V. Sankiage and Ms. Angel Madonna V. Santiago whereby the
Cammpany shall purchaselsubscribe to shares of slock of Softweb Consulting, Inc. tolafing 5,060 whizh wil
be equivaient to 50% equity interast in Softweb Consulting, Ine post investment

Softweb Consulting, Inc. is engaged in the business of IT consulting services and reseller of
software and hardware and other related products.

~On December 21, 2010, the Company entered Inte a8 subscripion agreement with Thumbmok
Philippines, Inc. {Thumbmob) to subscribe io new shares of stock of Thumbmob totaling 145834 shares
which will be eguivalent to 50% equity inferest in Thumbmob, post investment. The invesiment and
gubscnptlm Agreament with Thumbmob is subject o the confirmation by the Board of Direclors of the
MEAny.

On March 8, 2011, the Company filed with PSE its application for transfar from the Second Board
io the Firs! Board of the Exchange.

The amendment of tha Company's Secondary Purposes to include the following was ratified by the
stockholders of the Company during the June 2, 2011 Annual Stockholders' Meating

8. Toprovide professional services and manpower in the field of telecommunications, media and
information technology.

b To buy, sal, lease, assemble, import, expord, process and deal in any and all classes of
matenials, merchandise, supplies and commadities of every kind and nature

¢ Toact as commission agent, manufaciurer's representative, or principal for the purchase, sale
distnbution, manufacture, assembly, import or expord of any and all classes of materials
merchandise, supplies and commodities of every kind and nature; and

d. To engage in and carry on the business of gemeral and refail merchants, traders, factors
agents, manufeciurers, processors, dealing in or with any and all ciasses of materials
merchandise, supplies and commodities of every kind and nature

On March 17, 2011, the Company's Board of Directors confirmediratified the establishment of the
Gompany's whally-owned subsidiany namad J-Span T Services, Inc. in Tokyo, Japan The Board llkewise
approved the establishment in the Philippines of @ wholly-owned subsidiary 1o be named |-Rescurce
Consulting International, Ing,
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On May 25, 2011, the SEC approved the incorporation of -Rescurce Consulting Intemationat, inc
a% 3 wholly owned subsdiary of the Company. The primary purpose of |-Resource Congulbing Intarnational
Inc. (5 o provide consufling, technical advice and professional adwisory services 1o persons, firms,
asspoiation, corporatons, parnerships and olher enlities

On June 10, 2011, the SEC approved the incorparation of Porteon SEA, Inc, a whally-owned
subsicary of the Company with the primary purpose of engaging in the business of mamnufaciunng
marketing and sefling of vehicles of all lvpes, including but not Imited to electric vehicles

The amendment of the Secondary Purposes was approved by the SEC on August 25, 2011

On September 02, 2011, the Company entered into a Memarandum of Understanding with Huaws
Irternational Pie, Lid., Huawei Technologies Phils., Inc, and NOW Telecom. The parties desire to explora
tne possbility of entering inta a business relationship which will allow each party to provide its respadtive
contnbulion in order (o altain the commen purpose of implementing NOW Telecom's nationwide busld-up
plans, The milestone agreement is expecied 1o enhance the information capabiliies of the Company and
ROW Telecom in partmership with 1he word's largest information technology company Huawel

On August 25, 2012, the SEC spproved the incorporation of I-Professional Search Nefwors. Inc., a
whally-owned subsidiary of the Company. The primary purpose of |-Professional Search Network, ne 8
the recruitment and placamant of workers domeatically, This is aimed al broadaning the Company's base
in the area of service-related Dusiness as well as fo complement the Company's other wholly-owned
subsidiary, FResource Consulting International, Inc., which provides consulting, technical advice and
professional advisory senices to persons, firms, association, corporations, parinerships and other entifies

The Boerd of Directors and Stockholders of the Company approved the name change from
Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc. fo Now Corporation on 02 July 2013 and 06 June 2013
respectively, On 16 August 2013, the SEC issued the Certificate of Filing of Amended Aricles of
incorperabion and the Cenificate of Revision of the Title of Amended By-Laws cerlifywg the said name
change

On December 27, 2013, the Company paid the amount of Php3,000,000.00 for the Company's
subscripban o 110,000 shares (at Php100.00 per share) on the proposed increasa in the suthorized capital
stock of l-Resource from Php1,000,000.00 to Php12,000,000 of increase from 10,000 shares to 120 000
shares, The proposed increase in the authonized capital stock of -Resource was approved by the SEC an
April 2, 2014,

During the Special Stockholders' Meeting held on January 22, 2015, the shareholders approved
ihe Tofiowing: 1) increase of the capital stock of the Company from Php1 328 to Php 1208 or an increase
of Php80OM; 2) conversion of advances made by a sharehoider, Velarde, Inc., in the amoumt of Prp20om:
4} epplicaton for listing with the PSE of the additional 200M shares to be issued from the increase in
autnonzed capilal, and 4) waiver by a majorty vole representing the outstanding shares held by the
minanty shareholders presant of the conduct of a rghts o public offering of the shares 1o be subscribed by
Velarde Inc. The Company's Board of Directors had previously approved a higher increase of Php2 7B
during ils November 27, 2014 meeting However, upon further study and discussion, 2 lower amount was
recommended and approved by the Board during 2 special meeting hald on 22 January 2015 priar to the
Specisl Stockhoiders’ Meeting scheduled on the same day,

On 17 Dacamber 2015, the Secunfies and Exchange Commission approved the Company's
increase In authorized capital from Phpt 320,000.000.00 divided into 1,320,000 000 shares of the par
value of Phpt 00 each fo PhpZ 120,000,000 00 divided into 2,120,000,000 shares of the par valus of
Phpt 00 sach

At the 20 April 2018 Special Mesting of the Board of Directors, the Board approved the increase of
the sulharized capital steck of the Company from Php2 1208 o Php3 08, The Board likewise approved the
COMVErsion into aquity of the 2840 advances accumulated since vear 2011 from a sharehalder, Velarde,
fnc., at & conversion price of Php1.22/share computed! based on the daily average of the volume-weightad
average price of NOW shares for a 30-day trading period ending 14 April 2016; Finally, the Board approved

the listing of 216M shares that will be issued oul of the said conversion and increase in autharized capital
Block

In its 02 September 2016 Special Meeting, the Board of Directors approved the amandment of the
Seventh Articte of Incorporation 1o suthorize the creation of Sixty Milion (80 000.000) Redeematic,
Corverible. Non-Participating and Mon-Voting Preferred Shares with or without Detachabie Warrants with
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& par value of One Peso (Php1.00) per share. The Board likewise approved the seiting of the special
stockholders’ miating on 08 November 2016 with the record date of 28 September 2018

Dunng the 08 November 2018 Special Stockholders’ Mesting, the sharehoiders present by o
unanimous voie, approved the following. 1) Minutes of the Annual Stockhoiders' Mesting held on 02 Jung
2018, 2) Amendment to the Seventh Article of Incorporation (creation of 60M Redeemable, Convertible
Nen-Participating, and Non-Voting Preferred Shares with or without Detachable Warranis with a par value
of Oné Peso [Php1.00) per share; 3) Approval for listing of 60M Redesmable Convertible, Mon-
Faricipating. and Non-Vioting Prafermed Shares with or without Detachable Warrants with a par vafue of
One Peso [Fhp1.00) per share; 4) Approval for issuance and public oMering of B0M Redeemable,
Convertible, Non-Participating, and Mon-Voting Prafermed Shares with or without Detachable Warrants with
a par value of One Pesoe (Php 00) per share,

The Shareholders ikewise expressly granted the authorty to the Board of Directors o determing
{1) whether the issuance of the Preferred Shares shall be with or without warrants; (2) the actosl rumnbaer of
wamanis io be issued in connection thereto, which shall in no case be more than two (2) limes the (otal
number of Preferred Shares to be issued: (3) the total number of undarlying common shares 1o be issued in
connection with such warrant, which shall in no case be mome than the number of warrants 1o be issusd:
and (4) fo determena all other terms and conditions of the warrant including the strike price

In s 21 December 2016 Reguiar Meating, the Board of Direclors approved the filng of the
Registration Statement. Listing Application and the terms and conditions and such ofter relevant acts
conneclion with the intended public offering of shares of the Company,

On 10 January 2017, the Secuniles and Exchange Commission isswued to the Gompany a
Certificate of Filng of Amanded Amicles of Incorporation (Amending Aricle VI reclassification of
FG0,000.000.00 Common Shares to Preférrad Shares thereof

Al the 20 January 2017 Special Mesting of the Board, a resclution was passed approving the
issuznce of detachabls warrants in connecbon with the public offering of the Company's prefared shares:

On 20 February 2017, NOW Corporation received fram the Suprame Cowrt Bids and Awarcs
Commitiee for Goods and Services the Notice of Award for the Instaiiatan of the Judiciary Email Syetam of
the Supreme Court {the "Project”). The Project. which includes the email and collaboration of 7000 users,
is beng underiaken by the Company together with is joind venture partner, Accent Micro Technologies.
inc.. utilizing the Integrated Business Machine (IBM) Collaboration Solution portfolic. NOW Corporation is
8 premier business pafner of IBM, having received for two consecufive years the Top IBM Social
Caollaborations Pariner Award for the years 2014 and 2015, for being instrumertal in the digtal
ransformation of enferprises across industries incliding banking, redad, logistics and gowemment
instutions

On 13 March 2017, NOW Corporation signed with Tata Communications a Global Partner
Programme Agreement. The Agreemant allows NOW to provide to its exssfing and future enterprise clients
actess o Tata Communicalions international portfolio of global managed network senices, managed
secunly services and unified communications and collaboration offering. Tata Communizations (s a leading
global provider of A New World of Communications to muttnational enterprises and service providers. The
company leads from the fronl to create an open infrastnecture, partner ecosystem and platforms for
busnesses to stay competitive in this digital age

Al the O7 August 2017 Regular Meeting of the Beard of Diractors, the following resslutions were
approved. 1) Acceptance of disengagement of SB Cepital Investment Corporation (“SB Capital™) as ona of
ne Joint Issue Managers, Joint Booknanners and Joint Laed Underwriters. 2) Appointment of S8 Capita as
the Company's Financial Advisor, 3) Granl of authority to the Chalrman and President and GED 1o
negoliate and engage the services of an Issue Manager, Bookrunner, Lead Underwriter for its proposed
public: offer of preferred shares; 4) Reducton of the Company's proposed public offering of its prefernsd
shares from 15M praferred shares with 30M warrants to 5M preferred shares with 30M warants thus
regulting in the reduction of the offer size from Php 1 58 to Php 500M.

On 25 September 2017, the Company mandated Unicapital, iIncorporated “Unicapital’) to replace
Philippine Commercial Capital Inc. ("PCCI") as Issue Manager, Lead Underariter, and Bookrunner for the
Company's planned offer and sale of Converible Preferred Shares with Detachable Warrards in the
Fhilippines by way of & follow-on public offering and the ksting of the same with the Exchange (the “Offer),
Sppécations for which were filed before the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Exchangs,
respectvely.  The Company shall continue with the Offer, subject to certain amendments pursuant 1o new
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discussions betwesn Unicapital and the Company, the terms of which shall be distiosed at the appropnste
fime.

In itz 20 December 217 Regudar Meeting, the Board approved, in relation to its condwct of Pubiic
Ciffering by way of a Folow-0n Offeding ("F30%) of its Preferred Shares of stocks, the offer and sale of ug
to 10,000,000 out of the 60000000 redeemable, corwerdible, non-participating and non-vobing preferred
share with detachable warants out of the wnissued porion of the authorized capital siock of the
Corporation (the “Offer Shares”) and up to 20.000,000 Detachable Subscriplion Warranis to be ssued free
of charge with 20,000,000 underlying common shares (collactively, tha “Wasmant®),

On 22 December 2017, NOW Corporation filed ifs Registraton Sisfement and Prospecius with the
Secuities and Exchange Commission (SEGT pursuant to the Compamy's application for the Follow-On
Offering of 5,000,000 redeemable, converiible, cumulative, mnon-parficipating, non-woling, Peso-
denominated, prefarred shares with an Oversubscription Option of 5,000,000 with & par value of one paso
(®1 00 per share, wilh 10,000 000 detachable subscription wamants to be issued free of charge with
10,000,000 underying common shanes, with an Owversubscription Option of 10,000,000 Warranis and
10,000,000 underlying commaon shares of MOW Corporation

NOW Corporation else has a pending application with the Philipping Stock Exchange ("PSET) for
the lishng of 200M additional shares. On 20 February 2018, the PSE issued A= onittal comment and
inquines. The Company is currentty in the process of providing the information and documents reguested
by the PSE

In = 15 March 2018 Reguler Mesting, the Board rescheed to delegate to the Executive Cammillae
the satting of the final conversion price related o the conversion into equity of the Php264,000,000 00
advances from a sharehoider. Said conversion into equity was previcusly approved in 2017 by both the
Board and the Stockholders, respeciively, and was likewise promptly disclosed to the Phiflippeng Stock
Exchange.

{2} Business of the Company

Pursuant to its new phimary purposs, the Company hag recently shifted ks operations inko
Telecommunications, Madia and Tachnobogy (TRT). 15 new prmary purposs 5 pimarily engaged in the
business of providing telecommunications, media and information Technology producis and services uncsar
its three key operating business segments, namely: (i) Software Licenses and Services, (i) IT Manpower
and Resource Augmentation; and (iii} Broadband and Wireless Cable TV Services, The Company's diverse
products and senvices porfolio include software application development and maintenance, collaboration
software solutions, web intagration, wab and mobile applications development, lechaical and mainierance
sarvicas, |T mangower and resolrce augmentation, project implementation and managemant, managed
senvices outsourcing and fixed wireless broadband services, among olthers. The Company ass offars
valius-added services fhrough parnerships with companies licensed o provide wired and wireless, fixed
and mobile communications and cable TV services

Amaong the programs thai the Company is cwrrantly offering would be TMT sendices such 25
broadband natworks worldwide, cloud hosting sanice, virlual private networks, multimedia conbent, anling
gaming. web hesting, cloud-besed multimedia conference, clowd-based mall and messaging savice
eleciranic communicalions network and services,

In 2018, the Company expanded its service offanings with the introduchon of its “Fibar-in-the-fr”
fixed wireless broadband senice with a CIR of up 1> 700 Mops, a first of its kind in the Philippines. Throwgh
itz partmership with NOW Telecom and Mewsnet, & wirsless telecommunications opetator and a cabie TV
sarvice provider, respectively, the Company offers en affordable, afternative and high-speed broasdband
service of up 1o 700 Mbps and wirelesa cable TV services to the underserved and unsened large
enlterprises siuch as schools, hospitals, hotels, high-end residentiai bulldings, and commercial bulldings with
multipte BF'D locators. Cumrently, the Company’s clent brosdband subscription ranges from 5 Mbps 1o 100
Mbps, which may be further increased to up to 700 Mbps, depending on the cliends’ bandwidth
requirements. The Company positions its fixed wireless broadband senice either as primary, allennative or
3% an auxikary link to axsting roadband senice providers

The Company's Fiberin-the-Air fived wireless broadband service allows s subscribers fo
download, upload, siream and share files simultameously withoul compromising performance. The
Compary deploys competitively priced high-speed broadband bandwidth rescurces weth high svailability
throuwgh its Peint-io-Point and Point-lo-Muftipoint Radics. From providing Softwere Licenses ano Services
to adding IT Manpower and Resource Augmentistion and Broadband Wireless Cable TV Services the
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Company intends to deliver high-speed broadband servicas with @ CIR of up 1o 700 Mbps which may be
bundled with emesprise collaborations solufion, wirsless cabie teevision and interactve mufti-media

applications.

Business Fafners

NOW Telecom Company, Inc. {“NOW Tebecom™), i2 a busingss pariner which is in @ ursgue
position 1o mest the unabated increase in demands for high speed broadband connectivity of large and
miedium enterprises, govemment organizations, educational and medical ingtifulions, financial instifutions
riulti-benant! mulii-leved commercial and residential budidings, clustered urban regidential communities and
special economes zones. This company i at the forefrant in employing the latest staie-of-the arl wireless
lechnodogies to address the demends of clients for customized solutions yat culting edge broadband

technology

The International Business Machines Corporation (IBM"), s an American multinaticnal
technology &nd consulting corporation. Since establishing its prasence in the Philippines in 1837, it has
evolved to become the leader in information technology, providing hardware, software and |T-enabled
services to both local and global clients 1BM is known for the quality of s products and sarvices in a long-
standing fradition of excellence, cusbtomear satisfaction, and commitment to business ethics and integrity

The Aslan institute of Joumalism and Communication, Inc. {“AC"}) = a Knowladge
Managemeni Center organized in 1980 as & graduate school of journalism, founded on the phalosaphy that
godmmunication is & vital development resource o be used o advance the common good. [t has a salid
record of more than 30 years In the communicaton field — as & graduate school for commurscators and
journafisis; a center for continuing eduecation in journaism,. communication, and kRowiedge managemsnl,
and a research and consulling firm advotating policies and implementing programs and projects that
address developmen Bsues and concerns both at the levels of national decision making and community-
based initiatives,

Brands

WebsiteExpress Biz ("WebsiteExpress Biz"| is a one-stop shop websile development sarvice -
prowiding micro, small and medium sired anterprses affardable, prafessional wabsites in as fast as 5 days

Er n

A. Soffwars Licensaes and Senvices

= |BM Celisboration Solutions

in partnership wilh IEM, the Company provides I1BM collaborations solutions such as provision of soffware
and |T-enabled s=nices almed at developing busingss soluficns and applications to ease businsss
operafions and boost productivity of business enterprises. The Company has been categonzed as &
pramiar business pariner of IBM as an affirmation of lts superior skilts and marked succoss. The Company
resalls essential IBM tools and products that ara designed to anable new capabilites thal improve buslmnees
processes and help engage chents and employess in new ways. Thess |EM tools and products include
softwara for melant messaging thal faciltales inlegrated team collaboralicn sccessible by e client's
employees across all applicalions and devices, file sharing arnd enterprise slacironic mails which the clierd
can integrate in its business application aligwing enterprises (o have easy use real-ime connections and
commurscation within thesr office space; and IBM Ustream video platform which can be ulilized by
enterprises to Salrbute content via video

Aside from these, the Compary also resells at 8 competiive price IBM smaricloud ssrvices which include
tools for social business in the doud. The Company also offers a wideé amay of [T softwane Services
including: (|} software application development, maintenance and suppod, (i) data analylics, (i) e-forms,
and (iv) porial, all aimed lo enhance the chent's overall experence. These services simplify busness
operations through integrating digital technologies and funchonality into a sysiem

The Company's senfices also include lechmical senvices namely: migration, network administrator services,
technical support and other services related 1o the mainenance of 1BM products

From 2014 fo 2015, the Company was hailed &5 the "Number One Software Collaboraton Business
Partner in the Philippines’ by IBM, a Fortune 500 muBlinational [T and consulting company, and one of the
worid's top providers of computer products and services, 1BM has been the Company's panner in delivesng
itz codimboration soffware solutions since 2010,
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» Cloud Hosting Services
Cioud hosting senices cover the vitualization of the IT infrastructure 1o mitigate the rapid pace of
lechnology obsclescence. Theee sefvices are available to individual, small medium enlerpraes and
carporate Lsars In fwo primary space calegories: () dedicated, and (I} shared.

In & dedicaled space arrangament, clients are aliocated dedicated hardware for their exclusive use. Shared
sel-up ase for clients with processing requiremants that are nat fixed, and which are clustersd Inio 3 sharad
hosting server with pre-defined perfarmance commidmants.

= irtual Private Networks
VPN s an end-to-end profection &nd encryplion servicés on network conneclivity that ensures secured
data transpart. The Company's VPN service provides anonymily on the client's connection ig the Intermel
by wsing thousands of IP addresses and various server connections worldwide. VPN services pasees
inteme! fiters allowing secure Inlemet access. It also routes all data transport traffic with new I acdress
through affliated secured servers located in various locations. This provides tracking difficulty and snsures
a slim probabdity that data fransmission will e compromised

& Clopd-based Multimedia Conferencing Senices
Clowd-based multimedia conferencing servicas consist of dloud-based server and applications capable of
hasting multimedia conferencing application that will visually connect pecple in different physical locations
in the virheal space. This service is idesl for conducling classes, presentations, evenis, meetings. and
leciuras for parficipants from multiple locations. This service provides a cost effective participation of mare
imdividuss from muttiple locations

= ‘\Web Hosting, Cloud-based Mail and Messaging Services
WWeb hosting services vary from personal to corporate with e-commerce apphcation development. confert
management, database and search engine optimzstion support. Cloud-based mal SENICES carmy & vanaty
of mail servicas ranging from electranic mail, facsimile mail, voice mail and video mail. Cloud-based mall
ganices also include siorage, calendar, contact and i8sk management, and virus protection. Thase are
available lo individual, small medium enterprses and conparate clients,

# Dagital Media Production

The Company aiso offers services such as website development, mobile applicaticn development. and
arimation tnat can be used by business enlerprises to create, manage and sustain thes markating and
communications through digital channels that are simple, functional and effective across muiliple market
sagments. These services aflow businese enterprises fo increase their engagement with potential
custamers and 1o creste 8n online prasence In order o caplure a wider base markel Ome of the
Company's notable projects is the “it's More Fun in the Philippines® website and mobile application thal
supported the campaign of the Depariment of Tourism

The Company offers its wab development through WebsiteExpress Biz. The Company has establiehed the
prand WebsileExpress Biz as its vehicle in dalivering guality and giobally compliant wabsies catering 1o
micra and medium-sized enterprises. WabsiteExprass Biz (s a8 one-stop website developmen! service
operalor thal provides development, domain, hosting, secure sockets layer certificates, shopping car,
electronic mall, among others, without engaging multiple service providers. It cperates al a subscrplion
model, providing micro and medium-sized enterprises and individuad subscribers quality, affordable and
afficiont wabsites in & span of five (5) days. One of the key features of WebsiteExpress Biz is its responsve
web design which alows a webside to be responsive in all mobile devices without developng a dedicaled
maobite application for each Kind of device.

Under its mobile application development. the Company offers customized mobile applicaiions such as
ginematic three-dimensional, game-based leaming, rich media, htmiS animation and geshses 1o Slow
businesses to enhance cusiomer experiance and Increase brand lovalty. Through its competencies in
digital madia production. the Company can cater to the requirements and specifications of sach cliant in
arder to deliver qualidy mobile applications for thesr businesses

8. IT Manpower and Resource Avgmentation

The Company, throwgh is subsidiaries i-Resource and i-Prolessional, | engaged in the business of
providing consulting, techrical advice and professional advisory services o parsons. firms, &ssocianon,
corporations, partnarshepe and other antitias,

FResource (4 an information technology resource management company thal provides T knowledge
professonals to its clients. -Resource principally deploys 1T knowledge professionais to assisl its clents in
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managing the IT cperations of their businesses ranging from shon 1o |eng-term and mission-crtical
projects. including data center management nebwork infrastructise maintensnce and softwane
managament. This is done through i-Resource’s dedicsted sourcing group and business development
MARAgErs

The services of i-Rescurce can be furiher catagorized into three sub-business segments, namely’

« T S1afi Augmeantation
Under this sub-segment, i-Resource provides IT knowledge professionals for the IT-related needs of is
chients, Skilled personnel are deployed to provide 2dditional T knowledge professcnals io the chent's
curment roster or to provide additionsl support to the client's existing project team, for & limited period.
Specifcaly, FResource offers the following services:

a) Respurce Menagement Ouwisourncing — Resource managamaent culsourcing pertains 1o the provision
of IT knowiedge professionals by i-Resource fo a client for 2 specific duration ranging from Inree (4]
manths fo one (1) year, some of which are renewable thereafter. The IT knowledge professionals
depicyed remain to be employees of -Resource during the period of engagement

b Assignment of Siaff - Assignment of siaff pariaing to the deployment of rescurce personngl by -
Resource for a client In order o augment client manpower reguirements

c) Projec! Team Ouisourcing — Project team outsourcing ensures enterprises of avadable project
teams thatl will be assigned to their project without the need to hire them girectly. The assgned
personnel may include project managers, developers, business analytics and quality assurance
besters

« Managed Services
Aside from providing T knowiedge professionals, the Company, through -Resource also services its
clients by aliowing them to outsource certain business process lo -Resource. This managed services also
include trainings of IT candidates and leam development for its clients. In addition, this sub-segment

COVErs:

a) Managed Service Outsoureing - Clients may outsoures a portion of their Dusiness processes such
ae testing & quality assurance services, applications development, applications malinianance, disasles
recovery, deskiop sarvices, technology help desk sarvices, call center heip desk senices and netwark
ganices (broadband memet) o i-Resource, (n order for them to focus on their core business
actvitles. |-Rescurce services regulas or crilical projects based on targeted oulcomes and senvice
lewal agreaments.

b Train and Deploy - -Resource develops the skills of fresh graduates based on client requiremants
through boot campa. This is carried oul in collaboration with iCollege, which is a center for contnuing
sducaton established by the Company In parnership with the Asian institute for Journaksm and
Communication, 8 knowledge management cender organized in 1880 as a graduste school for
[purnaism

¢ Offsile Team Development — -Resource develops a dedicated team of IT knowladge prolessanals
specifically for the client requiremant, which are housed outside the client's office

«  Search and Select
l-Professional serves as the recrustment arm of its clients by providing the following add-on services

&) Contract fo Hire — This allows enterprises 1o try and fest IT knowledge professionals before actually
hiring by ouiscurcing them for a probationary penod of six {8) months. The IT knowlesge professionals
become employees of the client at the end of the probationary period should they qualify with the
siandards of the client, The Company charges a one-time absoaphion fee.

b) Recruftment Process Outsourcing = This provides &n end to end recruitment process for comparies
with huge IT knowledge professional requirements. it also allows enferprises to ocutscurce the
recrudment process of IT knowledge professionals for regular placements

C. Broadband and Wireless Cabla TV Sarvicos

An addition to the Company's service portfolio is the Broadband and Wireless Cable TV Services. The

Company offers high-speed broadband service of up to 700 Mbps CIR fo the underserved and unserved
large enterprises such as schools, hospitals, high-end residential bulldings, and commercial Buildings with
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multiple BPO locaiers, The Company was the first to markst the Fiber-in-the-Air fixed wireless broadband
sarvice of up to 700 Mbps in the Philippines, which allows the Company's subscribers 1o download, upsoad
aireant and share files simultaneousty withou! compromising performance,

The Company deploys high-spaed broadband bandwidth resources with high availabisty through its Point-
to-Point and Point-to-Multipoint Radios. The Point-io-Point and Point-lo-Multipoint  connectivly work
through network radic antennas that are installed atop strategically selected high rise buildings and
establishments around metropolis, The building's roaftop where the radio antennas are instsllied must have
a Ene of sight basis from the Company's nearest hub This aflows the user to send data over much greater
gistances while maintaining speed and has the advantage of connmecling users even in remoie anoas
without the need for cables. To further enhance its clients’ experience, the Company maiiains a taam of
enginsars and technical suppon evailable on & 2417 basis lo keep its subscribers connactad

PART Il - MARKET FOR ISSUER'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

On February 7, 2002, the Board of Directors approved the increass in the number of shares of the
authorzed capital stock of the Company from 4,000,000 shares 1o-40,000, 000 shares and the reduction of
par value from Phpi0 per ghare fo Phpt per share.

On July 23, 2002, the Beard of Directors and siockholders approved the affer of up to 28 000,000
shares from the Company's unissued common stock through Indial public offenng (IPC). The application
for the IPO of the Company was approved by the PSE and the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), on-June 11 and July 30, 2003, respectively. The Comgany was listed in the PSE on July 23, 2003
lssue manager and underwiter was Abacus Capital & Investment Company. The markel price (s @l bigh of
Php1,08 and low of Php 34. The following table is the summary of the Company's stock prices fram first
guarier of 2013 up to the first quarter of 2018

Year Quarter High Low Close
2013 U 0.510 0.400 0.400
i D450 0 360 0.380
e D465 0.385 0430
4m 0430 0.385 0.405
2014 i 0405 0360 0 380
2™ 1.040 0570 0.710
x 0.810 0.610 D830
4" 0.720 0.540 0.570
2015 1 0.670 0.400 0.455
2" 0.630 0.430 0.45%
3" 0.610 C.400 0.500
4 1.290 D470 0.750
2016 1® 1.140 0.580 1.100
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20 3.000 2,800 2,800
e 3.400 3,400 3440
4m 2.540 2.430 2 490
2017 1* 2 980 2.800 2 900
2 2 530 2,580 2 610
i 2.370 £.300 2.340
4" 2 880 2 800 2.820
2018 L 8200 7.560 2190
As of 18 May
2018 8.200 7870 204

During the 02 June 2006 Annual Shareholders Mesling of the Company, the shareholdere
approved the Memorandum of Agreament datad April 28, 2008 (MOA) enterad inte by the Company wih
MOW Telacom and five other companies namely, Top Mega Enterprises Limited, Joyes Link Holoings
Limited. Gamboa Holdings, Inc. Emerald Investments, Inc., Food Camp Industries and Marketing, Inc. (the
five companias cofeclively known as NOW Telecom Sharesholders),

However, cerain amendments were made to the MOA in view of the fact thal upon furihes
consuliation with the PSE, Il was datarminad ihal the Company could not revise ds primary purpose at that
fime, Hence, the stockholders approved the amendment in the MOA that there will be no changs in the
primary purpose of the Company. In addition, the stockholders also approved the proposal that the
Company shall acguire only nineteen percent (19%) equity interest In NOW Telecom and not 87%, as
poginally intendes. N was agreed that the acquisibon shall ba basad an the same tarms and waluatan
stated in the MOA in the event that additional aquity in NOW Telecom will be scquired by the Company in
the fubure

The amendment in the MOA was approved by the stockholders such that the shareholders of
NOW Telecom will iransfer to the Company shares of NOW Telecom in the aggregate numbaer of 2,656 580
shates constituting 19% equity inares! in NOW Telacom in axchange for new shares of the Comparny waith
an aggregate value of Phpl 28927835000 for 19% of NOW Telecom, or effectvely al a price of
Php435 315085 00 par NOW Telecom share

in accordance wilh the amendment in the MOA, the nesded morease in authorized capila! siock of
the Company 1o accommeodate the foregoing transaction is Php1,260,000,000 at Php1 00 par valus per
share Accordingly, the stockholders approved the proposal 1o increasa the authorized capisl of the
Company by Php1, 280 000,000.

On September 19, 2006, the SEC approved the increase (n the auwthorized (to Php1. 3220 Billion)
and paid-up capital (ko Php1.317.278,.350) of the Company 85 well as the change of the corporate name
from Cashrounds, Inc. to iInformation Capital Techrology Ventures, Inc.

On September 27, 2008, the Company submitted to the PSE a listing appiication of asditanal
1,260 278,350 common shares t© cover s share-for-share swap transaction wilh NOW Tetscom
shareholders. Following the. Company’s re-application for lisbng of the same shares in Dotober 2008, the
FSE approved the same and ware listed on Febnoary 24, 2009,

On Dacember 10, 2008, the PSE approved the transfer of the listing of the shares of the Company
fram the SME Beard to the Second Board of the PSE, and the transfer finally ook effect on Juns 28, 2008

On March 12, 2010, the Board approved the Company's increase in authorized capial slock om
P1.32 billbon to P5 billlon as well as the listing of the additionat shares from the increase

On March 18, 2011, tha Company filad with PSE s appkcation for transder from the Second Board
to the First Board of the Exchangs.

The movemeant in the number of shares and capital siock amount for the yea ended December
41, 2017, 2016 and 2015 @ as follows:

2017 2016 2015

 Hatance al Numberof | Ameunt Number of Number of
_beginning of year Shares shares Amount shares Amownt
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B '4,517,278,360] 1,617,278,350

1,617,278,350

15172

E

350]1,317, 278,350 1,317,278,350|

Incresass N PUMGDEr
of shares a5 a result
af reduction in par
valug =

-

| Issuance during the
| year :

200,000,000 200,000,000

1,517,278,350

1,517,278,350. 1511,m.1mﬁ1_,511tz?u.3m|

1,617,278,350| 1,617,278,350

Mo party o person holds amy voling trust owver any of the Companys sharss There are
approwimately 68 Holders of Commen Stock as of April 30. 2018 The Top Twenly (20} Holders of

Common Stock a8 of Aprl 30, 2018 are as folows:

; Nami Nationality | No.ofshares | Percentage |
| PCO Morminee Corporation Filipino 565,781,562 37 2892%
| Top Mega Enterprises Limited Chiness 342 146,855 22 5500% |
! Welarde, Ino Filiping 200,571,550 13.2182% |
Emeraid Investments, Inc Filipino 176,738,350 11.6484%
| Joyee Link Holdings Limited British g6 208 552 5,6818%
Food Camp Industries and Markefing, Filiping 72898472 | A BOAAT:
inc.
| Gamboa Holdings, inc. Filipino 72,454 720 4 7760% |
Chua Co Kiong, William M. Filipeno 145,000 0,0086%
_De Leon, Jose Mari S, Filipino 10.000 0.0007%
Espincsa, Josaph Filipang 10,000 0.0007%
Oeata, Juditha G Filiping 10.000 0.0007%
Tareno, Mara Guis | Flliping 10,000 0.0007%
Serania. Virginia P. Filiping 10,000 0.0007%
Francisco, Richard L. Fikping 10,000 0.0007% |
Bocabil, Afban B. Filiping 10,000 0.0007% |
| De La Cuesta, Karlo 5. Filiping 10,000 0.0007% |
| Ligutan, Eninias P Fillping 10,000 0.0007%
Pagudar, Venus B. __ Filipino 10,000 0.0007%
Alvarez, Jr, Servando B. Filiping 10,000 0.0007%
Cueto, Edessa P Filipino 10,000 0.0007% |
Dividends

Mo cash dvidend was declared in the past three (3)

pay dividends on common equity of that ane likely to do so in the futura.

. Thete are no restnctions that limit the abity 1o

(427 850.225)

Thera was neither sale of unregistered secunlies nor Issuance of seculities comstitulng an examg

transaction within the iasl three yaars.
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PART Ill - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND PLANS
OF OPERATION

Registrant's Financial Condition, Changes in Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Plans and Prospacts for 2018
Parirership with Global Technology, Media and lnformation Technology Companies

The Company aims to maintain its position as the nurnber one social solutions business partner of IBM o
further stengthen the Company's brand. The Company befieves that new coldaborations will further
improve the Company's techrical competencies and anhante s reputation 85 a trushworhy and
depandable provider of diversified [T-related products and services. The Company also believes that this
will broaden the Company's cusiomer base in the [T Industry and ultimately, increase ihe Company's
FBEUITING FEVEMUAS.

High-Speed Broadband intermet Connection

The Compgany intends to start the build-up of its fiber opfic underground network. Fiber optic calde &
expected to be equipped to have a minimum capacity of 100 Gbps. It &5 also expected to serve as Ine
backbone of 1he Company's broadband business to complement its exisling Fiber-in-the-Air technology
With Fiber-in-the-Alr, the Company can provide up to 700 Mbps CIR per clent enterprise, which can ba
further increased by instaling another radic antenna with the same capacdy On the ofher hand, with fiber
optle underground, the Company can provide up to 1 Gbps per conneclion. With these two lechnologies
combined, the Company believes that it can provide better broadband senices (o the groweng rarket for
fast and maligbls nlemet Commecton

Erpadband Sanvices fo Medium and Large Emlerpnses

The Company intends to offer its broadband service fo medium and large enterprises and residental
subscribers by 2018. Tha Company is undertaking research and development actities with its supphers in
arder 1o deliver 3 more cost-efective and higher throughpul of bandwidth for this market segment The
Company believes thal this will broaden the Company's customer base end ullimately, increase Ine
Comoany's recarring revenues from its Broadband Sendsoe Busness.

Plans and prospects for 20107
»  Expansion of the Fiber Alr for Bursiness and Fiber Air for Homes

The Company imends to expand its Fiber Air network coverage in order to cover mone areas
including increase of capacity In central business districts as well as areas that are urserved and
underserved. This would cover scuthern and northemn part of Metro Manila. The Company nas
fus far cemented s postioning as one of the preferred enterprise broagband of choice as |t
confinses 1o win enferprise clients ranging from hospials, hotels, government agencies, schoois,
broadcasting companies and commercial bulldings,

In addition, the Company intends to start offering s Fiber Air for Homes to subdivisions and
villages where fibar optic or high data capacity is not available

« Confinue fo Buridle High-Value IT Services with Broadband Commecihvily

On 1op of its Brogdband connectivity service, the Company intends {o continue bundsng high-vaiue
TWT senices such B3 choud hosting service, virtual privabe networks, mulimedia content. gnline
gaming. web hosting, cloud-based mulimeda conference, cioud-based mail and messaging
sarvice, elecironic communications network arvd services, This is the Company's forward looking
sirategy whereby it shall capitalize in using new technologies that wil cater to the changng needs
of the sophigticated enterpriee and consumaer market,

s Pmfered Share Offering and Quask-Reorganizstion in arder io Efiminate Relained Daict
NOW Corporation filed its Registration Statement and Prospectus with the Securities and

Exchange Commission (“SECT) pursuant to the Company's apgplicaticn for the Follow-On Offening
of 5000000 redeemable, convertible, cumulative, non-paticipating. nonvoling, Peso-
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denominated, preferred shares with an Oversubscriptien Option of 5 000,000 with & par value of
one peso (P1.00) per share, with 10,000,000 detachable subscription warrants 10 be msued ree of

with 10,000,000 underlying commen shares. with an Ovarsubscriptian Option  aof
10 000,000 Warranis and 10,000,000 underlying comman shares of NOW Corporation

The conversion ratio of common shares to preferred shares is five-is-to-one {511} al @ comereion
price of #2000, Therafore, assuming that all holders of the Qiffer Shares axerces fhe convertitality
optian n full, converied Offer Sharas will result inlo 25,000,000 primary common shamas wihout
the oversubscription option. of result into 50000000 prmary Comman shares  with
aversubscriplion

Moreover. For ewvery one (1) Preferred Share held. the holder | entitied o recelve fwo 24
Warrants The suance will have 8 maximum of 10,000,000 warrants without ovarsubscription,
and maximum of 20,000,000 wamrants with full exercise of the oversubscription. of two (2] warants
per Preferred Share. The Warrants will have a Strke Prce of #10.00 for the duration of the
Exercisa Pariod

The Company intends fo use the proceeds of the share issuance o acquire assets for fhe
expansion of the Fiber-intha-Alr broadband network consistng primarlly of purchase of core
network faciities, point-to-point and point-to-multi-paint radics and the comesponding instalaton
services. This additional funding shall expand the Company's reach in arder {0 connéct more
buiidings st greater distances via radia aniennas.

The company infends o undergo an aguity restructuring, in order io meet capital requsternents for
the lssuance of securites, such as the aforementionad preferred equity issuance. by applying 1he
additional paid in capital created by the Offer, o wipe oul the company's mataired defict which may
be currently impairing the ability of ihe Company o declars and pay dividends

Plans and prospects for 2016

The Company pians to expand its sanice offenngs with the inreduction of 18 “Flber-m-the-Air
finvad wireless broadband service with a committed informatian rate ("CIR) of up to 700 Mbps, 8 fiest of its
kind in the Philippines. Through its partnership with NOW Telecom Inc. TNOW Telecom™) and Mews and
Ertartainment Network Inc, ("Newsnal™), a wireless telecommumicalions operalos arnd & cabla TV sardica
provider, respectively, the Company offers an affordable, alternative and high-speed broadband sarvice of
up to 700 Mbps and wireless cable TV sendces to the underserved and unserved large enlerrises such a8
schooss. hospitals, hotels, high-end residential buildings, and commercial buildings wih multiple BFO
incaters. Currently, the Campany's client broadband subscription ranges from 5 Mops to 100 Mbps. which
may be further increased o up 1o 700 Mbps, depending on the clients’ Dandwidih requirements The
Company positions its fived wireless broadband sarvice either as primary. altermative or as an auxilary link
1o existing brocsdband service prowiders.

The Company's Fiber-n-the-Air fived wireless broadband sefvice shall allew its subscribare b0
downipad, upload, stream and share files simultaneously withow compromising parformance Tha
Company shall deploy compettively priced high-speed broadband bandwidth resownces with hegh
avakiabilty through its Point-io-Point and Point-o-Mutipoint Radios From providing Software Licenses and
Sarvices to adding IT Manpower Bnd Resource Augmentation and Broadband Wirelass Cable TV Sendices
the Company shall deliver high-speed broadband services with a CIR of up to 700 Mbps which may be
nuncted with erderprise collaborafions solifion, wirsless cabie television and interactive mult-madia
applications.

Plans and prospects for 2015

Now Corporation plans to launch broadband Internet service with guaranteed spaeds with wireizss
cable TV broadcast and coud services.

tts plannad launch signals the Company's mission to achieve lrue convergence i the following
features simultanecusly: {a) browsing 24x7 Intermet throughput at guaranteed spaed, (b} walching . fhear
favorite shows from free TV such VHF and UHF signals (¢} interacting with web chennels such a5 TED
Talks, YouTube, Facebook, Twitier, Instagram. etc. (d) playing high definition, fasi moten networked
games. (e} using clowd services such as &-mall, task, calendar, files, community collaboration, wdao chal
document management with one terabyie of storage per customer, (f) watching, sireaming or downioading
high-defiritian videos and 4k/BkiBk films, (g) making phane calls on Skype and lilve video confersnce io a5
mary a5 200 participants per session — all with the Aexibility af using any device such & regular or 4%
TWe. deskiops laptops, tablets and smartphones
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Results of operatlons

Wear 2018 rch

. Total Consolidated revenues in the first quarter of 2018 is Phgd 3,845 Millicn, increased by 3.38%
or PRl 110 Miflion fram last year's first quarter revenue of Phpd2 734 Malian. The increase is due o the
increase in Broadband Revenue from Php3. #54 Milkon last year, it goes up to Php 9 550 Million this year
Sorvice Revenus slightly increased by PhpD.181 millklon from last year figure of Phpl3 TI7 miflion, it
amounted to Php18.858 million in 2018 first quarter. Service revenues pertains mainly o fees of income
samed from the deployment by the Company of professicnals io its chents to render [T-refaled solutions
and services,

. Cost and Expensas for the fest quarter of 2018 is Php28.652 Million, which is @ decresse frorm last
year's cost and expense of Php31 722 Million, This was brought about by decrease i cosl of sales and
sarvices of Php 4.314 million frem Phpi3.377 million in 2017 1o Php 8.063 in 2018. Other expenses whth
has a significant incresso are Salares and other benefits which has a8 Php3.0B3 million increase, rental
which has a Phpt 780 million increase and representation expanse which has an increase of Phpd 672
millian

& As of March 31 2018, the iotal consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpl 749 Billon
compared with last year's Php1 547 Billion or an increase of Php174.667 Milion. Current Assels increased
by Phip16E.242 Milkion or 73.21% from Php228.028 Million 2017 to Php384.870 Million in 2018 This was
due io the increpse in Trade and other receivables by Php 65476 Million, from last years Php 115600
Million, increased to this year's Php 183.078 Milkon, Amounis owed to relsted paties mcreased Dy
PhpB3.235 million from last year's Php 77.073 increased fo this year's Php 140.308 Milion.  Other curmesn
assets increased by Php23,357 million. Cash increased by Php 13.874 Milion, from Php5 414 Millian in
2017 # increases to to Php 18,288 Million In 2018. Non-Cusrent Agsets increased to Pho 354

Billion from last year's Php 1,346 Billion

. Current fiabikses increased by Php184.770 Million or 73 75% from Php223.408 Million in 2017 1o
Php3B8 178 Milien in 2018, Accounts Payable and accrued expenses Increased by Phpd 353 Mlillen G
§ 33%, from Php123.036 Milkon in 2017 it increasad to Phpi20 589 Millkon in 20718 Loans payable -
current porlion increased by Php 50,00 Milllon due to a short term laan with & local bank amounting 1o
Php50 000 milion recelved during January 2018,

. On December §. 2013, the bank has approved the conversion of the shori-ferm loangs in ihe
amourt of Php44.6M into a two-year term laan. The principal balance of the loan is paysble on January 18,
2016 This was paid in Juna 2018,

. On December 22, 2016, the Company availed a chattel morigage amounting 1o PhpS64r from &
wcal universal bank for the purchase of a vehicle, which serves as the propery morgage The new joan
requeres 50 monthly repayments undll Novemnber 23, 2021,

* On January 2018, the Company availed a shon 1erm loan amounting to PhpB0 million wilh an
interest rate of 4.80% from a local universal benk to be used in aperations. The loan together with interesi
will mature on July 27, 2008,

. As of March 31, 2018, the total Assets stood st Php1, 740 Billion, Liabdities at PhplB0 540 Million
and Equity al Phpd. 359 Bilkon
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The consalidated revenue for the year 2017 |s Php14B.674 milion, there is an increase af
Phpd3.537 milkon or 41.29% from last year's. Php105.427 mélion, The Increase |8 mainly dus 0 the
inerezss N revenue from software licenses and services which amounted 1o Php82. 187 million in 2017
representing an increase of 45 66% from Php55.041 million in 2018, Company's sales fram IT manpower
and resourse augmentation sSghtly decreased to Phpd2 274 milion from Php43.415 million in 2018
Gevenua from Broadband services lor 2017 amounted to Php24.513 million for 2017 which has an
nicresse of Phpl8 532 miflion or 309 84% from revenue in 2016 which amounied to Phod 881 million

Cost of services during the year amounted to P25.80 million, Migher by 51.47% ar P2%.18 million
compared to the PSE.85 million cost of sales and services level posted for the year ended December 27,
2016, The Increase was primarily attributed to the higher cost of culside services and daia senvices during
the year amounting to 53,82 milion compared to the amount last year of P48 43 millicn. Cosls réating to
cales increased from 10,22 million to 31.98 million when comparing ameunts from those of Decamber
31, 2016 1o thosa of December 31, 2017

The Operating Expanses is Php54.210 milllon in 2097 and Php44.098 million in 2016 Thers 18 &n
increase by Php10.112 million or 22.83% in 2017 &3 compared to 2016 and was mainly due 1o aakaries and
whges expanse, iranspartation and travel and aiso taxes and licanses amounting to Php18 B2milion

The Mat income for the year ended December 31, 2017 = PhpB.22 million or Phpd 782 milllen
higher comparad with last year's Net income of Php2 49% millon. This was brought about by 8 highes
\ncrease in revenue dusing the yeasr as compared to the increase in cost of sales and services and
cperating expansas

As of Decambear 31, 2017 the Wotal consalidated assets of the Company stood at Php1 872 ballion
comgpared with last year's Php1.547 bilion. an increase by Phpl2é 742 million of 8.06%, Curment Assels
incraased by Php121.874 milion or 60.91%%, from Phpz00.084 million In 2016 fo Pnpd21.857 million in
2017 The Increase in Current assets was mainly due to the increase in trace recelvebles from Php115.6832
millices in 2016 1o Php187 943 million in 2017 and an increase also in Amounts Dwed by Reisted Parties
from Phe72.488 milion in 2018 to Php85.956 million in 2017. Neon-current Assats slightly cecreased Dy
Php? BES million due to increase in PPE

Current liabilites increased by Php118.368 milion or 80.00%, from Php157.251 milion in 2016 to
Php315 618 milion in 2017 The increase was due to the Increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses which has an increase of Phpd4 425 million and due from related parties which has an increase
of Phe73.934 milion.  Total consolidated assets ac of December 31, 2017 stood al Fhp1 672 billion. with
Liabilites at Phpa15.87 million and Equity 8t Php1.358 billion

Year 201

The cansolidated revenue for the year 2018 is Php105.437 million, there is a slighl decrease of
Php9 957 milibon or 9% from last years Pho115 384 milion. The decrease is mainly cus 1o Ine shifting of
the Company's maln business from software licenses {o broadband. Revenue from software licenses anc
services decreased to PhpS8.041 million in 2016 from Php75.987 millkon in 2018 Company's sales from [T
manpower and resource augmentation increasad to Php4d 415 milkon in 2016 from Php30 427 million =
2015, Broadband sales for 2016 amounted toPhps.981 million.

The Operating Expenses is Php44 088 million n 2016 and Php33.04% milkion in 2015 There = o
gignificant incresse by Php11.048 million or 33% in 2018 as compared to 2015 was mainly due fo
impairment of advances by the Company 1o one of its affiliates amounting to Phpd millian and alsc due fo
an increase in sdvertising snd promation expense amounting to Phpd 524 million.

The Met income for the year anded December 31, 2018 is Php2 499 million af Phpd 737 milkon
\ower compared with last year's Net Income of Php5.235 milkion. This year's slight decreasa in revenue
was due io the shifting of the Gompany's main business to broadband services from softwane licénses
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As of December 31, 2016, the total consolidated assets of the Company stood at Phpt 547 bilion
comparad with |ast year's Php1.498 bilien, an increase by Php4B BB million or 3% Current Assets
increased by Phpd8 761 million or 33%. from Php150.333 million In 2015 to Php200 084 million in 2018
The increase kn Current assets was mainly due 1o the increase in trade recelvables from Phpgt. TER million
in 2015 1o Php115.532 milien in 2016 and an Increase also in Amounts Owed by Related Parties from
Php48 387 milion in 2016 to Php72.496 milion in 2016, Non-current Assets slighty decreased by
Phpt.068 million duse lo decreass in due from redaled party non current porion.

Current ligbilities decreased by Php218.255 million or 53%, from Php4135 505 million in 2015 1o
Phn197 250 millian for 2016, The decrease was due to the conversion of advances from &n affillate into
aguity during the year which amourted to Php264 million and payment of boan amounting to Phpdd 5
millon  Accounts Payable and accrusd expenses also decrease from Php132.827 million to Bnpl 18543
millinn Amounts Owed 1o Relaled Parties decrease by Php180 558 milkan. Mon-gurrent Liabilties on the
aftver niand increasad by Phpd48K die 1o loan availment made by tha Comparny during the year

Tota! consolidated assels a3 of December 31 2078 sicod at Phpt.347 ballion, with Liabdibes at
Php187 7 million and Equity at Php1 343 billien.

Wear

The conscidated revenue for the year 2015 1s Php115.384 milion, there |s a significant Increass
of Php41 614 milllon or 56% from iast year's Php73d 778 million. The increasa is contributed largely by an
incraase in revenue from IT Service Fees. Revenue from IT servica fees increased to Fhp&T 108 millien m
2015 from Phps7 031 milkon in 2014 Company's sales from IBM licenses and ofher services also
inereased by Php21 538 million or B1%, the sales ncreasad o Phpd8. 285 million this year from tasl years
Php2s 748 million.

The Cperaling Expenses ie Php33 045 million in 2015 and Phps0.058 million m 2014, There 5 a8
significant decrease by Php17 008 million or 34% in 2015 as compared 1o 2014 due to decresse in Interas
expanses from Php18.001 milien in 2014 down 1o Php1.054 million in 2015, General and Admmisirative
Expenses and Other Expenses increased by PhpSGEK and Php370K respectively.

The M#l income for the year ended Decemnber 31 2045 is Php5.235 million or Php43, 718 million
higher comgared with |ast year Net Loss of Php38 482 million This year's increasae in revenue contnbuled
the positivé botlom ling in 2015

Az of Decembar 31, 2015, the total consolidated assats of the Company stood at Php1 455 ikon
compared with last year's Phpl.454 bilion, an increase of Php43.803 milon or 3% Curment Assets
increased by Php20.529 million or 18%, from Phpt20 804 million in 2014 to Pho160.333 million in 2015
The Increase in Curent assets was a resull of an increase in Cash from Php2 007 millian o 20714 1o
Ph15 880 millian in 2015, There is an increase |n trade raceivables from PhpS1.803 in 20714 o PhpBE1. 768
million in 2015, There Is a decreasa in Amounts Owed by Related Parties and other curment assels from
Prp75 885 milion in 2014 to Php52.565 million in 2015 Non-current Assels incraased by Php23.275
millian due 1o the increass in the noncumrent portion of ihe emounts owed by the related parties amounting
10 Php26 564 millian

Current liabliies increased by Php279.428 milion or 20:5%. from Php136.077 millicn for 2044 o
Php415 505 million for 2015 The incréase s due 1o the reclassificaton of a Phpd4, 5 million tank loan fom
long term to current, Accounts Payable and accrued expenses aiso increase from Php120:387 méllion bo
Pho132 827 million. Amounts Owed from Related Parlies also increased by Php223.074 millian. However
Obtigation under finance lease become zero this year from PhpB75K last year Mon-curent Liahiities on
the other hand decreased significantly by Phpd40.847 milion dus fo the reclassification of a Phped.5
million bank koan from long term to current as stated above. And a decrease in Due o redgted parbes from
Prip3gs, 347 million in 2074 to zeo in 2015

Total consolidated assets as of December 31, 2015 stood at Phpt.4%6 Dillion, with Liabdikes at
Phip4 15 505 million and Egquity at Php1.083 billion
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Year 201

The consoidated reévenue for the year 20714 s Php73,779 million, a decrease of 70 from |5t
year's Php7g 318 million. The unfavorable varance of Php5.528 |s due to the decrease = [T Sarvica Faas
This year's [T Serdice Fees is Phpd7 031 milkon while in year 2013 it wag Phip53. 320 million Hiovwewar, [FiE
company's sales of 1BM licenses in 2014 increased to Php21 235 milion from |ast year's Phpl0.456
Tillion. Interest Income increased to Php472,548 from last year s Phpa71.820

The Operating Expenses is Php50.058 milkon in 2014 and Php35 670 milkon in 2013. There is
significant decrease by Php4s.612 million or 48% in 2004 a3 companed 1o 2013 The decraasa in operaing
eupenses was brought about largely by decrease on confracted outside services amounting 1o Phpd2 3683
millian &t B&8%. This is inclusive of manpower reducton for cost efficlency measures Interaet Expense
decreased by Phpi 8359 milion or 50% due 1o restruciured advances from an affiliale The savings on the
following cost ling items for 2014 as against 2013 were Oug [0 cos! efficiency messures, such as: Utilities
decreased by Php2.745 milion or §8%: Professional fees decreased by Php2 533 milllon or B5%:;
Communication decreased by Php2. 448 million or 46%, Rental dacreased by Phodgek or 12% and, others
decreased by PhpB53K or 11%. Depreciaton and Amartization decreasad by Php1. 160 milion or 18% 18
i 1o retirement of some ssasts. Hawever, thers ig increase by Php6. 278 millkon or T06% In Impairmaent
\oss in 2014 as compared to 2013, The company provided an allowance for Impairment of receivables and
other zssats Php7 167M in 2014, while in 2013 was PhpBStK

Total Net [nss for 2074 is Php38 482 million or Php4d 752 millicn less comparad with last year of
Php87 234 million. This year's decrease of cost and expenses cantributed the improved boltom line in
2014

A= of December 31, 2014, the totsl consalidated assats of the Company stood at Phpl 455 bilbon
compared with last year's Phpl.445 billion, an incraase Dy Phpf.GB4 million or 1%, Current Assels
nereased by Phpt4,742 million or 13%, from Phet15.062 million in 2013 1o Phpi2%.804 milion in 2014
The imcrease in Currant assets was a rasult of an increasa in trade recanvables by PhpE 808 milkon ar 18%.
There was an increase in Amounts Owed by Related Partes by Phpli7.117 miflion o 3%, while Cash
acoount and Other Current Assets decressed by PhpT 840 millien and Php1 527 millson, respaclvely
Non-current Assels decrsased by Phps.058 million stiributed from a decrease in Property and Equipment
and atnar Man-Current Assets by Php4. 704 millicn and Php354K.

Currend ligbilties increased by Phol 448 millen or 1%. from Php134.830 million of 2013 1B
Php138,077 million of 2014 The variance is due io an increase in Amounts Owed from Related Partles by
Php10.162 million ar 210% and decrease in Accounts Payable as well &5 decrease in the Cument portion of
obligations wnder Finance Lesss by Php6.383 milllon and Php, 333 milkon, respectively. Non-current
Liabiiies on the other hand increased by PhpdS 848 milion or 12% due to an increase in Amounts Crwad
from Related parties by Phpd7.323 milkon or 14%. On the cther hand, Mon-current portion of Obligations
under Finance Leasa is zero in 2014 and PhpBT5K in 2013

Tola! consolidated assels as of Decarmber 31, 2014 stood al Php1.455 bilion, with Liamilities a2
PHpSTE 923 million and Equity at Php877.625 million

Year 2013

Total Consolidated revenues generaled in 2013 amounted to PhpT8.32 Million or 58% Rgher ian
last year's revenus of PhpS0, 14M. The increase in Revenue was braught about by the following
1. Rewenues from IT products and services of Php3d 85M was increased by 57% or Phpid 15M
from last year's revenue of Php24.8M,
7. Rewvenues from IT resource augmentation of Php3832M was increased by 102% of
Php15 32M from last year's reveniie of Php18.0M,
3. Management fees were the same by Php5.04M both in 2012 and 2012, and,
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4 Inferest Income derived from loans and mimimal bank intarest of PhpaT] B7K was decreasad
by 5B% or PhpS53.09K from last year's interest of Phpl 12M

Oparating expenses cecreased by 11% or Php21.4M in 2013, the decrease was |argaly atiriputed
i ouiside services from PhpS8.2M to Php25 52M due to cost culting measures for developmient actvities
to support #s thrust to focus on providing high value ICT sanices Other decreases in operating BXpenses
relude Communications at Php2 14M, Professional fees at Phpi41M, transpodation and travel at
Php4 94M and Advartising and promation at Phpd 58M. The equity in net logasa of associaies snare ot
Phpd 1M, impairmant ioss on goodwill on Softrigger Interaciive, ine. Iwesiment 81 PhpZ 8M and
Commissinn of PheG07K as charged in 2012 wane of zero amount in 2013,

Total Net income (loss) as of December 2013 is (Phpa7 2 Million) or Phps0.8 MilBon less
compared with last year of Php138.1 Million). This years inciéase in ravanue of 33.586M and the
dacraase of cost and expenses by 21, 3598 contributed the improved bottom lina in 2013

fis of December 2013, the total consolidated asssls of the Company stood al Php1 445 Bilson
compared with |&st year of Php1 428 Bellion or an increasa by Php16 Milion, Current assets increased by
Php22 26M or 24% were due to the increase in Cash balance by PhpB.10M, trade recenables by
Phpt1 55M, increase in receivables by related partes by Php2 7M., while other current assets decreased
by Php142.9K. Non-curent 2ssets decreased by 041% or Pnp5.5M due to depreciation of Property and
aaupment

Current liabilies decreased by Phpi4 23M were brought about by the reclassification from curnen
to @ noncurent liability on the loan secured from a commercial bank amounting to Php40.5M which was
usad to finance the operaticnal requirements of the Company, Nencurrant liabdities increased by 43% o
Phpt17M due to reclassification of the aforementioned commercial bank loan from current liabilltes and
(e increase in amounts owed from Vetarde, Inc. in the amount of PhaT3 27M which ingludes an accrued
interest of Phpdd 38M derived when the present value of the loan was determingd since it bacame
neninterest beanng whan both parties agreed for the deferment an the eccrual and payment of interast
starting Movemiber 2012 but shafl not exceed three {3) years.,

Obligation under finance lease was ikewise decreased from Php3 6M in 2012 to PhpET5K in 2013
brought about by regular payments made (o iransportation viehicles under finance lease

On Decermber 8 2013, the bank has approved the conwersion of the shor-leom loane the
amourt of Phpd4.5 into a twe-year term |oan, The principal balance of the joan is payable on January 15,
2018

Tolal Consolidated Assets stood at Phpt 445 Billion, Liabilities at Php528 Mifion and Equity at
PhoB18M Billion.

Receivables and Payables with Related Parties Eliminated During Consolidation

The amount #iminated with related parties on trade recenables and payables are

J-Span IT Services. Inc, B4 700.817.00
Poetaon Sea, Inc. 344300
i-Resgurce Consulting Intamational, Inc. 1,781 651
i-Professional Search Mebaork, Inc. 5,071,084
Saofirigger interactive, Ing, 0 840457

Koy Varable and Other Qualitative and Quantilative Factors
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The performance indicators are the (1) Gross revenues earnad for the period, (2} Prafil Margin, 1)
et Income  Deals In process are monitored and discussed on a monihly basis, inchuding & review of the
poasibie income thal may anse from the deals that may closs for a certain peniod

Financial Soundness Indicators

| Yoar 2017 [Year 2018

| Profabiity | Profit Margin 4.22% 2.37%
i Returm on Assels .26 0.16%
: Ratum on Equity 0 46% Toe%
Book Value per share 0.804 0.888

i Earmings per share 0.0045 0.0015
| Ligudity Current Ratio 1.020 1014

Debt to Equity Debt to Equity Ratio 02320 0.1485

Assats to Equity Assets lo Equity Ratic 1.2320 1.1485

Intarest intersst rate coverage ratin | 173288 1886

The Financial Soundness Indicaiors are computed as fallews!
Profitability:

Profit Mangin % Profit margin = Net Income ! Total Revenue x 100
Raturn on Assete % Returmn on assets = Net Income | Total Assets x 100
Return on Equity % = Nat Incame  Total Stockholders’ Equity = 100

Book Value per share = Total Siockholders' Equaty / Average Outstanding Shares Eamings per
<hare = Net Income | Average Qutstanding Shares

Liquidity:
Cumrent Ratio = Curmant Assets | Gurrent Liabilities

Dbt 1o Equity:

Debt to Equity Ratio = Total liabilites /| Total Siockholders' Equity
Asset to Equily Ratio = Tolal Assats / Total Ctockholders’ Equity
Interest rate coverage ratio = EBIT / Interest Expanse

Any Known Trends, Events or Uncerainties

Thers are no known trends, demand, commifments, events or uncertainties that will have @
material impact on the Company’s bquidity, nor any events that will trigger direct of corlingent fnancial
obligation thal is matersal to the Company, including any default or acceleration of @n cbligaton, Mo
material of-balance sheel lransactions, amangemants, obligations (Including contingent obligalians;, and
oifer relationships of the Company with uncorschdated entiies or other pefsons created during the
reparting pesod.

Eveils (hal will irgger Direct or Contingent Financial Dbigatian

Thats are no known trands, events or uncenainties that have had or that are reascnably expectad
o have 3 materisi favorable of unfavorable mpact on nel galesirevanuesiincome from conlinuing
operalinns
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Thera are no significant elements of income or loss that did nat anse from the Company's continuing
operaions

Thare is & material change for the Outside Services accolnt from 2010 to 2011 of the financial
staternents. This change is due to the fact that the Company has commenced full scale operations for the
development of iis produclalservices and s preparing for the commercial aunch of some of s
products’services.  The Cornpany has started to establish teams to supporis IS business process
putsourcing pursits. I has also pul up s own operations and back-end processes thwough service
outsourcing  Management services ase baeing sourced fiom a cooperative of professionals named
Knowiedge Professional Services Cooperative.

Watarial Of-Balance Sheef Transactions

There are no matenal ofi-balance sheel transacions, amangements. obligatans {Encluding
coningent obdigafions), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities ar ciher
persons created during the repoding pericd.

Material Cormmitment for Capitel Expandifives

As the business volume builds up progressively, the Company also plans io beef up its
arganization by engaging the right talents particularly to join the talecommunications, media. information
{echnology and product development and marketing leams. The Company plans 1o spend arcund PhP30
million 1o PHP40 million in the next 2 years for capital expandidures in connection with the l@unch of ds naw
products and sarvices,

Trends, Events or Uncertainties (Material Impact on Sales)

Thera is no saasanality or cyclicality of the interim operations of the Company

Compliance with Corporats Govemance

Compliance with the principles of good corporate govermance starts with tha Board of Directors. 1}
s the Board's responsinility to loster the long-term success of the Company and secure its suslained
competitiveness in @ manner consistent with ils fiduciary regponsibilty, which it shall exercise in e Dest
inierest of the Company, its shareholders and oither stakeholders. The Board shall conduct itsell with
utmost honesty and intagrity in the discharge of is dutses, functions and responsibilities
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The Company has complied with the requirements of the Revised Manual on Corporate
Govemance for the completed year, end no deviation was made in any form 86 provided for in he
Complhance System of the Modal Manual. The Company has undartaken measures in adopting tha lsading
practices of good cOrporale governance by regularly reviewing and discussing compliance with e sad
manual, Any plan bo improve fhe Company's comporate govemance will be discussed in the coming annual
stockhoidars” maating,

On 15 December 2013, the Board adopled and ratified the Audit and Risk Committee Charter in
accordancs wih SEC Memorandum Circular Mo, 4, Seres of 2012

During the third quarter of 2014, the Company aooptad the following, Conflict of Interest Polioy,
insider Trading Policy, Relaied Party Transaction Palicy, and the Whisthe-Blowing Policy,

SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Saction 17 of the Code and Saction 141 of the Corporation Code, this
repoet is signed on behall of the issuer by the undersigned, thersunio duly authorized, in the City of Maket
on thie 3rd af May 2018,

HOW CORPORATION
. W f f -
o e VI ALt
__J,-"'HEL V. VELARDE VICENTE |. PERANUEVA
S Presidant and CEO Chiaf Finence Officar and Treasurer
o i
| II|I||I-

ANGELINE (. MACASAET
Conporate Sefratary |

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN io bafore me this 3™ day of May 2018, affiants exhibiting to me their
gowemmant-sssusd identification evidence of identity, as follows:

NAMES Competent Evidence of Identity Expiry Date
Mai V. Velarde Philippines Passport No. ECO4178707 30 January 2018
Vicents | Pafianueva PhilHealty Card No_ {5-0893471956-0

Angeling L. Macasaet Phifippine Fass 0. P3SO0TEA 05 JAdy 2022
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Faga MNa.
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il Mo, QTR Jon. 3, WE
Mhis of Ty Bol o, 40041
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.h-,E—I W jﬁr

_— e —— i o

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

I'he annual meeting of the stockholders of NOW Corporation (the “Company ™) will
he held on 07 June 2018, Thursday, 10:00 o'clock in the moming, at the Sixth Floor of
NOWPlanet Building, No. 2244 Espana Boulevard, Sampaloc, Manila with following
agenda

1) Call to Order

7} Report on Attendance and Quoram

3) Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Stockholders’ Meecting

4) Management Report and Submission to the Stockholders of the 2017 Financial
Statements

5} Ratification of All Acts of the Board of Directors and Management Since the 2017
Stockholders” Meeting

6) Appeintment of an External Auditor

7) Election of the Board of Direciors (including the Independant Directors) fisr the
Ensuing Term

8} Increase in Authorized Capital Stock from Advances of a Shareholder;
Conversion of Advances of into Equity

9 Other Matiers

10} Adjournment

The deadline for submission of proxies is on 01 June 2018, For a corporation, 18
proxy must be accompanied by its Corporate Secretary’s swom certification setting the
corporate officer’s authority to represent the corporation in the meeting, Validation of
proxies will be on 05 June 2018 at the principal address of the Company.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business hours on 30 April 2018 are
entitled to notice of, and to vote at, this meeting. At the meeting, some form of identification,
such s driver's license, passport or any government-issued 1.D. should be presented.

Makati City, 03 May 2018,

i

A,
ANGELINE CASAET

Corporate Secretary
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CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

i MARLOL BUENAFE UBAND, Filiping, of legal age and with residence address &t Mo,
9350 |bara Street. Palanan, Makatl Gity, after having been duly swom to in accesdance with law do
hereby deciare that

1. | am @ nominee for independant director of NOW Corporaton and hive been e
indepandent direcior gince 08 June 2013,

2 | am afisied with the following companiss or orpanizafions.

- I — eT o S
“Ubana Slanghic & %m 'E'ﬁm:r Jur - Presant
insegrated Bar of the Phiippnes Tor Bar 1016 Prasenl

Y Discipline I TR —
| fregrated Bar of the FRRPRINGS — Weslam Govemar 2013 - 2014
Wise
r'hﬁm_ = Meeminar mg_m—
inolkeciusl Wmuﬂ- Memiar 012 -
Fﬁmﬁﬁtﬁmﬁmﬁﬁmﬁmnﬂ Aasistant Socretary for | 2011 - 2013
Communications w ' M|
imtnqraied Bar af the Philippions = Capiz 0 |
inipgrated Ba of ®a Phlippnes — CapT Brasiden 7 - 2008 1|
B T Pilsona. Coriisian | Caadones [ 00007 ===l
an Bar
L ARl irvg Lawyer March 2008 - 2008
R o o R | s .
k} | possess &l the guallications and none of the disqualifications o senve as an

indapandant Director of NOW Corporation, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securiles Regulation
Code. fls Implamenting Rules end Reguiations and other 5EC isssances.

&, | am not related to any of ihe direciorsfoficersisubstantial shareholders of NOWY
Corporation, mrdmrﬂhdmiandhmmmmdhm
relationship/a provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code.

] To the bast of my knowiedge, | @m nt the subject of eny pending crimmal of
sdmireetrathe investigation or procesding.

& | shal faimfully and diligendly comply with my dulles and resporsibiiies as
independert director under the Securities and Regulation Coge and s Implementing Rules anc
Fegulalions, Code of Coporade Govemance and other SEC issuancas.

T { shall Inform the Corporate Secretary of NOW Corporation of any changas in he
abmemantioned informabon within five (5) days of its occurrence.

Done this ____ day of May 2018 at Makati City, Phiippines



—



gy C
CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT MRECTOR

|. DOMINGO BUSTOS BONIFACIO, Filipino, of izgal age and with residence address at Mo,
30 Alfani Street, Ponifine Heights Village Vists, Alabang, Las Pinas City, Philippines, after having
been duly ewarn to n sccordance with kaw do hereby declare that:

1 | & 3 nominee for independant drectar of NOW Corparation and have besn iis
indepandant director aince 20 January 2017

2, lam sffilialed with the following companies or organizations:

Com o osltionRelationship | __Pariod of Service |
| Budomaied Te W"%ﬁmﬁ Eﬂ;mrﬂ Manager J'me 2016 — Present
| Connectivity Oivision = N ' =
Autemated Technology (Phils.| nc. (ATEC) | Board Directer Decamber 2016 - Prosent |
__Phil Chamber of indusiriel Estates & nes | Board Trustes | 2007- Present
| Mandy Health HMF%%TMM | 2016 - Presen;
|_El Wircug Mlllﬂin_lh Smmgr_np Gb_in‘un ol #a Board M5 - Prasant

3 | possess all the gualifications and nore of the disqualifications lo serve as an
independent Director of NOW Corporation, 8s provided for In Ssction 38 of the Securitizs Regulation
Coce, Itz Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC EEUANCES.

4 Iﬂnnﬂ{m{ﬂﬂhlnjdmtcﬂmmhﬂmﬁﬂﬂEMmmﬂm
Corporation nnynﬁhﬂhﬂdm«anyﬂihsmamadmwﬂ!mmra.-.pa:lm-the
relaticnshipls provided under Rule 38.2 3 of the Securties Regulation Code.

5, To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending crimnal o
adminstrative investigation or procesding.

B | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibiities as
naependent director under the Securities Reguistion Code and its implemanting Rules and
Reguiations, Code of Corporate Gavernance and other SEG issuances.

7 Iumumrﬁmmﬁummmarﬂmmnfmymangmmm
soovementicned information within five {5) days from He occurrenes.

Dane this 10% day of May 2015 at Makat City, Phil

&mmmﬂnﬂmhhﬂm“uﬂﬂum"dar May 2078 at Makati Cty affiant persorally
dppeared befire me and exhibited his Tax Identficaton No, 108.940-875 _

Onoe o 529 B e vty 31, 201
Fage Mo pat st Mambe!
E‘E‘:b ml b kil sximlibo ) B His I

. | H et IR
series of 201A Lprrﬁ-mﬂréllii?:.i..!’ i‘-:l e
TH Mz a2 |
I:-lilr.l" i 153 Ko, &S0V i
Urbam dye, Compa B =
.Ml.lr.' peiey Bl By, Bl By



CERTIFICATION OF QUALIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, ANDREW Joseph LORKEN, _Filipino_ citizen, of legal age and with residence address at
_30 Findlay Ave, Roseville, NSW, Australia, do hereby declare that:

1. | am a nominee for independent director of NOW Corporation.

2. I am currently affiliated with Aux Armes Investments as Managing Director, having been
appointed as such in August 2016:

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of NOW Corporation, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation
Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

4, | am not related to any of the directors/officers/substantial shareholders of NOW
Corporation, any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders with respect to the
relationship/s provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the Securities Regulation Code.

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

6. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and

Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

7. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of NOW Corporation of any changes in the
abovementioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

Done this 11t day of May 2018 at _30 Findlay Avenue, Roseville, NSW, Australia_.

ANDREW Joseph LORKEN
Affiant
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and the Stockholders
NOW Corporation

Unit §-1, 5* Floor, OPL Building

L) C. Palanca Street, Legnspi Village
Makati City

Opinion

We have sudited the consolidated financial statements of NOW Corporation and its subsidiaries

(the Group), which comprize the consolidated statements of financial position as a1 December 11, 2017,
20016 und 2015, end the consolidated statements of incoms, consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for years
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial smtements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the conselidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, and ity
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

HBasis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are firther described in the dudiror s Resporaibilities for the Audl
af the Consolidared Financial Statements seotion of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
tgether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical esponsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i=
sufficient and eppropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Kev Audit Matiers

Key audit matters are these matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance i our
audit of the consnlidated financial statements of the current period. These matiers were addressed in the
cantext of our eudit of the consolidated financial statements as & whole, and in forming our epinicn
thergon, and we do not provide @ separate opinion on these matters, For the matter below, aur description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Valuation and Recaverability of the Investment in NOW Telecom, Inc. g
As at December 31, 2017, the Group has 9% equity mvestment in NOW Telecom, Ine. iRl b
B1,289 278,350, which represents 7T% of the Group's total assets. This unguoted equity mvemmﬁ T
¢lassificd us an available-for-sale financial assat and is carried at cost. Philippine Accounting Stand ;{.
(PAS) 39, Financial Instruments: Recognivion and Measuremenn, provides that investments in shares o

stock that do not have a quoted price in an active market gnd whose fair vitlue cannot be reliably

meesured shall be measured at cost less impairment  Also, under PFRS. if there i ohjective evidence of
Impairment, the Group is required to determine the recoverable mmount of the unquoted equity sec arity,
which is the present value of estimated future cash flows, and record any impairment loss

The determination of the valuation and recoverable mmount of the investment in NOW Telecom, Inc: wre
significant to our audit because the amount is mazerial to the consolidated financial staternents. The
Group also applied judgment in selecting the valuation technique and use of assumptions such as market
vilue of comparable frequencics, revenue growth rate, long-term growth rate and disecunt rate, Any
changes to these assumptions could significantly affect the recoversbility of the investment.

The related diselosures on the Group's investment in NOW Teiecom, Inc. are included in Note 3 10 the
consolidated financial statements,

Auwadiy

We invalved our internal specialist in evaiuating the assumptions and valuation methodologies used. For
frequencies of NOW Telecom, Inc. with comparable markst value, we compared the assumptions used in
valuing these frequencies such as price per MHzPop with the most recent comparable marker

amaotint camputed is a reliable estimate of fair value, We also reviewed the Group's disclosures about
those assumptions to which the outcome of the inpairment test is most sensitive, specifically those that
have the mest significant effect on the détermination of the recoverable amount of the investment in
NOW Telecom, Inc.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information eomprises the information
included in the SEC Farm 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the vear ended Decomber 3 1, 2017, but does not include the consolidatad fnancial staternents end our
auditor's report thereon. The SEC Form 20-15 { Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form | 7-A and
Annual Report for the year ended December 3 l, 2017 are expected to be made available 1o us nfier the
date of this auditor's report.
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Crur openion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
ond will not express any form of assurence conclusion thereon,

In connection with our sudits of the consoliduted financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the
other information identified sbove when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the athar
information is materially inconststent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the sudits, or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Finnncial Statemenis

Management s responsible for the prepartion and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determifnes =
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements thal are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial siatements, managernent is responsible for assessing the Growp's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of sccounting unless management cither intends to liguidate the Croup or 1o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

Those charged with governance are responaible for oversesing the Group®s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as s
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that in¢ledes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaranice that an
pudit conducted in pccordonce with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it cxists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the

nggregate, they could reasenably be expected 1o influence the economic dectsions of
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

By st G
As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment r:ﬁﬂEﬂE‘jﬂ“ﬁ-ariu“:Fﬁ?h

professional skepticism throughout the nudit. We also; . T VE-D
»  [dentify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, - :--::.';:"-q

whether dee 1o fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive @ghose risks, and
abuain sudit evidence that i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our®pinjon. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud ts higher than for one iting from error,
as frand miny involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mismepresentations, e override of
infermul contral. %

&  Obtaln an enderstanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal contrel.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of Bctounting policies used and the reasonabloness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of actounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether n material uncertainty exists related 1o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt en the Growp's ability to continue as a going concern. |f
we conclude thot a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our suditngs
repart to the related disclosures in the consalidated financial statements o, If such dieclkssyses are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based o the audit evidencs obtained up 1o
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to confinue &5 & going concern.

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlving
ransactions und events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Crbwin sufficient appropriate sudit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business sctivities within the Group 1o express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audii. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We nlso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relovant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relutionships and other
matters. that may reasonably be thought to bear on sur independence, and where spplicable, related
safegunrds,
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From the maners communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are thorefore the key oudit matters, We describe these matters in our aoditor’s report wnless low or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the marter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determing that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverss consequences of
doing so would ressonably be expected 1o cutweigh the public interest benefits of sech communication

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent suditor’s report is
Jhoanna Feliza C, Go,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

e

Thoanne Felizgs C; Go

Farner

CTA Certificale No. 0114122

SEC Accroditation No. [414-AR-1 (Groop A),
March 2, 2017, valid until Magreh 1, 2020

Tax Identification Mo, 219-674-788

BIR Accreditation No, OR-001998-103-2017,
Janunry 31, 2007, valid until January 30, 2020

PTR Mo, 6621266, January 9, 2018, Maksti City

April 8, 2018
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e

i1 K RTE
AREETSE \
Current Assets
Cash Floaoe 194 B 06 415 R
Trade and other reveivahics Mot 4) 167943 224 115,532,368 B TEE 400
Due from reinted perties (Mobe 5} 85 955 268 TE 404, 143 4E 380,557
Dtbser cusrent assels (Noie 5) 47,364,921 1439213 4,176,091
Toial Carrent Avsety 311,957 609 I ERT k] 150333 768
MNancurrent Azsety
Available-for-iale investment (Nate 6) 128927 8 LIE9 278,050 128 278 950
Advances to affifiancs (Mote §) 23502 418 21, 592018 28,502 BN
e from related parties (Mote 73 2T ANTT44 27,030,711 16563670
Property and equigment (Note 7) B, 711,463 i 4i 14,680 1,250,507
Crher noncurrent neses TI%,TIS 414 087 133,904

Totul Mosewrrent Assei

1,349 820,090 [ 346, 95], S4n

TR

TOTAL ASSETS P1671777 690 L4055 280 B 4590 752 (18%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Avcaurits payable mnd scorued expenses (Neie i Plo4,067.259 PLI19.642 574 P32 807 061
frue to related parties (Wote %) 15] 454,342 7T A0, 580 138 7K 1EG
Loans payable (Mate 1)) 97337 T 425 A4, 500 000
Total Current Lishilitien 315,618,941 197250 42 JIS508 44T
Mencurrent Linbility
Lisans payable (Hate 11§ 51614 44§07 =
Totnl Liabilities 315,970,588 197 699, i5G &3 A05 44
Eiuity
Equity ansibatabic w equity holders of the Parent Crsmgany:
Cvmsnos simck (Mote 1X) I.S1T. 278 350 1517278 130 L2777 35
Crepagis for futare Mook subscriphions (Notes 9 and 12) 264 000,000 264,000,000
Cumubstive transistion adjustment 1,152,963 1, 0441433 T E=TT
Equity reserve (Note 1) {1978, 704) .
Deeficit (421,158 169 427 950 028 A 450 6 58)
1359.294,350 I.554 460 S50 LOET BT G0
Non-controlking interest 3487 3,132 960 (5,101,006}
Tatnl Eijiidey 1355 307, 144 1,145 135 fy) |02 Bdd pdd

TOTAL LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
e e e
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended Decembor 3

017 2014 2013
REVENUES {Note 9)
Bervice foeg PI26,666201 P90,A23.757  PST108017
Bales 11698063 11048 682 4T33.an
Dby &10.161 I, 764,54] P54 483
T4B.5T4 415 105436087 (15397 08
COSTS OF SALES AND SERVICES (Note 3] BS803.478 56,646,947 75,600,143
GROSS INCOME 63170847  4F, 700,04 19,793 520
LGENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
(Male 14} S407TT 60 43,401,136 IL21Y,830
OTHER CHARGES
Interest expense (Mote | 1) 51015 72,842 15T B4
Oihers 79,898 124,170 783,832
131,913 £97.132 1837376
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,961,174 4,691 773 fi, 744,321
PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX (Note 15} 2,470,958 2,193,264 | 508, 840
NET INCOME Mlﬂ!li P2 498 59 B 235 413
e e e
NET INCOME [(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equiry holders of the Parent Company P6,T92056  F2,500.433 BS236 T4
Non-controlling interests (501, B40) (1,924} (1271}

PG, 290216 P2 495509 P5 375413

Basic/Diluted Euui!i: Per Share (Noia 16} 0045 L0016 PO

Sew aceampanying Nover to Conroliduind Financial Saremeni




NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 3
2017 2k 20105
MET INCOME P6,290216  PI.498 509 P5235 413
UTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ftem that will be peclarsifled ta profit or loss in subrequent

periods:

Cormulsiive transiation sdjustments 12,528 5533 [14.234)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME _P6 301,744 P7 488956 B5.T01, 1649
__—I“—

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE T0O:

Equity holders of the Parent Conpany P 804,564 P2 490 880 P52 470
Hnn--:murullmg interests (501,840 {1924 112711

P74 PLABESSG P3| (o9
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

1017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[ncome before income tay PRBE1, 1T P4 69].TT3 B, 744 323
Adjustments fior:
Deprecintion and emomization {MNotes-2, 7 and 14} 4,411,001 2,214,569 1,567 678
Interest income (472,507) {470,584) (T11.418)
Interest expenss (Mote 11} 52015 51962 [,053 B44
Straighi-line adjustment on rent (Nate 10) 5933
Provision for impairment losses on:
Trade and oiher receivables (Motes 4 and [4) 1,940 GRS AES 4033 gaz
Advances o affilintes (Note &) - 5,000,000 =
Ot cusrent aseets (Motes 5 and 14) - = 158,747
CUperating income before working capiml changes 12,959,556 12,65 (05 4,847 026
Decrense (Increase) in;
Trade and other receivables (S2A412,796)  (H4435198)  (3401937T)
Ciher curment assets (16,065.878) {3.481,122) (15971
Ingrense (Decrease) in sccounts and accrusd 20,779 932 {13,284 487) 11,742 Gle
Met cash used in operations (34,740,196) (38310802} [7.333,3346)
Income taxes paid {2,670, 95H) (2,103 2643 (1,508, &
Interest paid {52,015} (572 ) {Bh3 35R)
Interast received 5474 3951 7,607
St cash flovws used Elgaﬂj\'ﬂlﬂ (37,457 695) (41272921 1 O 20T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
IncrEase in:
Due from related parties (23,446,997) (24,109, 146) 2,321,936)
(Mher noncuITent Asscts {354 465) (227 928) (193,403}
Additions 1o property and equipment (Note T} (6,458,047) (5,451,837 (239 078)
Mgt cash flows used in investing activithes (30,255,509) (2%, 7ER.511) (2756417
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in due to related parties (Mote 20} 73,033,763 %8042 302 26,717, 568
Sale of i-Professionnl shares (Note 2) 168,500 - -
Payment of losns payable (Note 20} (H7.581) (44,500,000 =
Procesd from ksan I'l'l.“]]ll!d! - A5 036,377
Cash flows from financing activities 74,014,981 59 47R.379 26,727,168
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
DN CASH = 1371
NET INCREASE (DECHEASE) IN CASH 6,297,777 (11,583,253) 13972915
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,396,419 15,979,672 206,757
CASH AT END OF YEAR Fim6594. 196 P4,306419 P15.979.673
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

|. Corporate Information

Corporate Background

NOW Corporation (formerly Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc.; the Parent Lompany |
started a5 a duly licensed investment house when it was incorporated on June 3, 1996 and registered
in the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as MF Shroder & Co., Inc. I was
originally a wholly owned subsidiary of Amalgamated [nvestment Bancorporation (AIB) and was
initially engaged in the purchase and sale of securities.

In 2000, AIB expanded the services of the Parent Company by establishing an information
technology (IT) enabled facility geared towands servicing the private equity needs of small and
medium enterprises by matching them online with direct equity investors, Hence, the Parent
Company's Article of Incorporation { AQI) was changed to expand its primary purpose of engaging in
the business of securities brokerage through the use of TT.

Cm July 23, 2002, the Parent Company”s Board of Directors (BOTY) and stockholders approved the
offer of up to 28,000,000 shares from the Parent Company”s unissued common stock through initial
public offering (IPO). The pplication for the IPO of the Parent Company was approved by the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) and SEC on June 11, 7003 and July 30, 2003, respectively, The
Pasent Company was listed in the PSE on July 23, 2003 with an issuefshare price of

B1.00 per share.

In 2008, the PSE approved the application for the listing of the additional 1 285 278,350 common
shares with an issusishare price of P1.00 per share to cover the share-for-share swap tramsaétiong with
NOW Telecom, Inc. (NOW Telecom) shareholders {see Note 6).

In July 2009, the SEC approved the amendment of the Parent Company's AQI which provides for the

change in its primary purpose of engaging in the securities brokerage business to a technology, media
and telecommunication (TMT) business.

In August 2010, the SEC approved further the smendment of the Parent Company’s ADI, removing
the pre-emptive rights of shareholders with respect i subszription to any class of the Parent
Company’s shares of stock.

On December 16, 2010, the Parent Company's BOD approved the amendment in its AO! to include
secondary purpose, The inclusion of the secondary purpose was subsequently ratified by the Forent
Company’s stockholders on July 2, 2011 and was approvad by the SEC on August 25, 2011, The
additional secondary purposes include:

1. Providing professional services and manpower in the field of TMT;

b. Acting as commission agent, manufacturer's representative, or principal for the purpase, sale,
distribution, manufacture, assembly, import or export of any and all classes of materinls,
merchandise, supplies and commodities of every kind and pature; and

c. Engaging in the business of general and retail merchants, traders, factors, ngents, manufacturers,
processors, dealing in or with any and all classes of materials, merchandise, supplies and
commaodities of every kind and nature.

(in December 21, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the filing of the Registration

Statement, Listing Application snd the terms and conditions and such other relevant acts in
connection with the intended public affering of preferred shares of the Parcnt Company.



Change in Co

The SEC approved the Parent Company's application w change its name from MF Shroder & Co.,
Inc. to Cashrounds, Inc, in January 2002 and Information Capital Technology Ventures, Inc. in
September 2006,

Subsequently, on August 16, 2013, the SEC approved the change in the Parent Company s name to
its current corperate name, NOW Corporation,

O March 22, 2005, o Memorandium of Agreement (MOA ) was executed by ATB and Gamboa
Holdings, Inc. (GHI), whereby AIB agreed to sell and GHI agreed m purchase 18,171,286 shares of
the Parent Company at an aggrepate purchase price of 74,395,000 The sale of the Parent
Company's shares became effective en August 20, 2005 resulting to & 66.67% ownership inlerest of
GHI in the Parent Company.

(On March 10 2006, the Nationgl Telecommunication Commission (NTC), through the efforts of
IMX Broadband Inc. (IB1), issued & Certificate of Registration (CoR) to the Parent Company to allow
it to opernte and maintain value added services (VAS) &nd voice over intermet protocol (VOIF)
services In all cities and municipalities nationwide.

m November 27, 2015, NTC issued CoR to the Parent Company that will suthorized it as a VAS
provider for services such as cloud hosting services, virtual private network, multimedia content and
program services, onling game services, cloud-based multimedia conferencing services, web hosting
and cloud-based mail and messaging services. The CoR is valid for a period of five () years which
will expire on November 26, 2020.

In 2015, the Parént Company entered into three (3) separate agreements with NOW Telecom, GHT
Network, Inc. (GHT) and News and Entertainment Network Corporation (Newsnet) (the Parties),
wherein the Parties mutually agreed to collaborate and interconnect their respective networks in order
for the Parent Company to provide VAS to the public such as cloud hosting services, virtual private
network, multimed:a content and program services, online game services, cloud-based multimedia
conferencing services, web hosting and cloud-based mail and messaging services (VAS contracts).

(in December 5, 20186, the Parties agreed 1o amend Chapter 5 of their VAS contracts to add provision
on revenue sharing from the broadband revenue.

Om December 23, 2016, the Parties further agreed to amend their VAS confracts 1o include additional
fees from sctual usage of bandwidth and other provision on charging to the Parent Company o6 a

cost-plis margin Arrangement.

The Parent Company’s registered nddress is Unit 5-1, 5% Floor OPL Building, 100 Carlos Palanca 5t
Legaspi Village, Makati City.

Authorigation for lssuance

In the March 15, 2018 Regular BOD Meeting, the BOD delegnted to the Chairman, the President. and
the Chief Finance Officer the suthority to approve the lssuance of the consolidated financeal
statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to herein ad the Group) &5
of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and for the years then ended,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and for

the vears then ended were authorized for issue by the Chairman and President on
April 9, 2018



2, Sommary of Significant Accounting Policies

Busis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been propared under the historical cost basis,
mcluding the available-for-sale (AFS) financial asset that is not quoted in an active market, The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (B), which is the Parent

Company's functional currency, Amounts are rounded to the nearest Philippine pese, except when
ctherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated fmancial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (FFRSs).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Parent Company snd the
following subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017, 2016 snd 2015 and for the years then ended:

Year af Pemtuire of Percontage of Dwnenhip
Imorporatson  Business i) ) 2018 TS
I-Gpan IT Serviees, Inc, (JSIT] 3001 Hervice 100% 1002 10044
Poneoa SEA, [ne [Partenn) an Mamifactaring 104014 G 0o
i-Resoorce Consulting
Incernntsonal, Inc. (IRCH) 3011 Sarvice 100455 1005 104y
I-Professiomal Search MNetwork,
Inc.(1-Professional | 2003 Service T5% 100 100
Suftrigeer [nferactive, Ing, (511} 2000 Service 7% AT AT

All the subsidiaries were incorporated in the Philippines except for JSIT, which was incorperated in
Japan.

On January 25, 2017, Velarde, Inc. entered into a subscription agreement with i-Professional for the
subscription of 6, 750 common shares of the latier, representing 25% imerest, thereby reducing the
ownership of the Company in Professional from 100% to 75%. This resulted to an equity reserve
amaounting to #1.,978,794 55 of Decomber 31, 2017,

The Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

s Power over the investes {iLe. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investes)

*  Exposure, or rights, 1o variable retumns from its involvement with the investee, and

#  The ability to use ity power over the investes 1o affect 115 retums

When the Group has less than o majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstinces in assessing whether it has power over an investes,
including:

#  The contractusl arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
* Rights urising from other contractual amangements
*  The Group's voting nghts and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes 1o one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
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begins when the Group obtains control aver the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the statement of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Prafit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are antributed to the egquity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, evan if this resulis in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's sccounting
policies, All intra-group assets and liabilitics, equity, ingome, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of & subsidiary, without 8 loss of conirol, is aecounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets
fincluding poodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other compomnents while any resultant
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, Any investment retained is recognized at fuir value,

Non-controlling interest represent the portion of profit or loss and net asscts in the subsidiarics ngt
held by the Group and are presented separately in the profit or loss ond within equity in the
consolidated financial position, separately, fiom the equity attributsble 1o equity holders of the parent
of the Group. Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for s equity bolders
\ransactions. Any excess or deficit of consideration paid aver the carrying amount of
non-controlling interest acquired is recognized in equity of the Group as “Equity reserve”.

The acquisition of an additional ownership interest in subsidiary without a change in control s
accounted for as an equity transaction in accordance with PAS 27. In transactions where the non-
controlling interest is scquired or sold without loss of control, any excess o deficit of consideration
paid over the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest is recognized as part of “Equity reserva”™
sccount in the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Comparry.

ct in 2 ing Polici J Discl
The Company spplied for the first time certain standards and smendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, Adoption of these pronouncements did not
have & significant impact on the Company's financial position or performance unless otherwise
tndicated.

s Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interesiz in Other Entitfes, Clarification of the Seope
of the Standard (Part of Amnual fmprovements fo PERSs 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint vemture or
an associate (or 4 portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified

(or included in o disposal group that is classified) as held for sale,

Adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
stuteamants.

«  Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiarive
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their lisbilities prising from

financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes
{such as foreign exchange gains or lasses). The Group has provided the required mformation in
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Mote 20 to the financial statements. As allowed under the fransition provisions of the standard,
the Company did not present comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2016

Amendments o PAS 12, fmcomie Tares, Recopnirion of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions upon the reversal of the deductible
temporary difference related to unrealized losses, Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may inciode the recovery of some assets for more than their camying
AmoLnt.

The amendments has no affect on the Group's consolidated financial position and performance as
the Group has no deductible tempornry differences or asscts that are in the scope of the
nrrend ments.

Monc {

The Group presents assets and finbilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
gurrent or noncurrent classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading:

Expected ta be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or wsed to settle a lability foe st
leaz twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classifisd as noncurrent

A linbility is classified as current when:

Ii is expected to be scttled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks,

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognized in the consclidated statement of financial posstion when the
Group becomes a party to the contractunl provisions of the instrument. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets on initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this designation ot each reporting date,

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the settiement date. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of sssets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration given (in the cass of an
nsset) or received (in the case of & lisbility). Except for financizl assets at fair value through peofit or
loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs.

Financial assets under PAS 39, are classified as cither financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables,
hield-to-maturity (HTM) investments or AFS financial assets. The Group's financial assets are of the
nature of loans and reccivables and AFS financinl assets. As of December 31, 2007, 2016 snd 2015,
the Group has no outstanding financial assets at FYPL and HTM investments,

Under PAS 139, financial liabilities are classified as FVPL or other financial liabilities. The Group's
financial lisbilities are of the nature of other financial linbilities. Az of December 31, 2017, 2016 and
2013, the Group has no outstanding financial liabilities ar FVPL.

Loans and Receivabies

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed ar determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active mirket. These are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and
are not classified as financial assets held for trading, designated as AFS financial assets or designated
st FWPL. This sccounting policy relates to “Cash™, "Trade and other receivables™ and “Due from
related parties™ accounts in the consolidated stalement of financial position.

Loans and receivablés are recognized initially at fair value, which normally pertuims to the hillable
amount. Afier initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at nmortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowanse for impairment losses. Amortized cost ks
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium oo acquisition and fees that are an imegrul
pari of the effective intercst rate, The amortization, if any, is included in the “Interest income”
account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The losses arsing from impairment
of loans and receivables are recognized in the profit or loss.

AFS Financial Assety

AFS financial assets are those investments which are designated as such or do not qualify io be
classified as designated as FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables, They are purchased
and held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes i market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequenily measured at fair value, The
unrealized gains and logses arlsing from the fair valuation of AFS financial assets are excluded, net of

tax, from reported earnings and are reported as a sepurate account (net of tax where applicable) in the
equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity investments classified as AFS financial assets that do not hove quoted market price in an
active market and whose f&ir value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost.

When the invesunent 15 disposed of, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in equity s
recognized in the prafit or Joss. Dividends eamed on holding AFS financial nssets are recognized
when the right of payment has been established. The losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized as provision for impairment losses in the profit and Joss.

This aceounting policy relates 1o the Group's investment in NOW Telecom.

Other Financial Liakiitfes

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are oot designated at FVPL, are classified as
other financial Habilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group
having an obligation either to deliver cash or another fnancial asset to the holder, or to satisfv the
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obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial instruments that contain bath
hability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the equity component being nssigned
the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whale, the amount separately determined
is the fair value of the Hability component on the date of issus.

Lither financial liabilities are recognized a1 fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs, Afier initial measuremnent, other financial Habilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium,
This sccounting policy applies primarily to the Group's *Accounts payable and accrued expenses”,
“Dhue to related parties™, “Loans payable™ and other obi igations that meet the shove definition (other
than liabilities covered by other accounting standards, such as income tax payable).

redi i
CWTs, inchuded under “Other current assets™ account in the consolidated statement of financial
position, are amount withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWTs can be
utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of
creditable tux withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation. CWTs which are
expecied to be utilized as payment for income taxes within twelve months are classified 1s current
ersel. C'WTs are stated at NRV.

Value-dded Tax (VAT]
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of WAT, if applicable,

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services {output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on fom
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated
staternent of financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input
VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods andlor services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an
asset in the consolidaled statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

Vi

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an arderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement iz
based on the presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or tighiliry,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible 1o by the Group,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the usset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best intercst.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable HpLts
and minimizing the use of unobservahle inputs.




All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
sialements. are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vajue
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement 18 unobservable

For assets and lisbilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial SUEEmMEnts on a recurring
hasig, the Group determines whether transfors have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
aszessing categorization (basad on the lowest level imput thar is significant to the fair valye
measuremant as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fuir value disclositres, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on

the basi of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
feerarchy as explained above.

Impairtnen I

Carried at Amartized Coxt

The Group assesses st esch reporting date whether there s objective evidence that a financial or
group of financial assets is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost
{e:g. receivables) has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured a5 the difference between the
nsset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit
|csses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. The carmving
amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
wmicunt of the joss shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Ihe Group firs: assesses whether objective evidence of Impainment exists wndividsally for Anancial
dssets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are nol
individually significant. If it is determined that no ohjective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the sezet is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively
nssessed for impaimment.

Those characteristics are relovant 1o the estimation of future cash flows for group of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors” ability to pay all amounts due sccording to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues 10 be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If. in a subsequant pericd, the amount of the impnirment loss decreases and the decreass can be
related objectively to an event ocourring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recopnized
in the profit or loss, (o the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
ciost ol the reversal date.



AFS Financial Aasets Carried at Cosi

If there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that does not have quoted price in an active market and that &s not carried at fair value
kecause its finir value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference hetween the carrying amount of the unquoted equity instrument and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
isset such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

D i of Financial A { Lighilit
Financial Aizels

A financial asset (or, where spplicable, o part of a financial asset or pant of a Group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized where:

= the rights 1o receive cash fows from the asset have expired;

o  the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an ohligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party undes a ‘pass-through’ armangement; or

+ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and sither (&) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the usset, or () has neither tmnsferred nor
retuined substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but hus transferred control of the asset

Where the Group has transfermed its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has entered mio o
‘pass-through’ arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assst nof transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing inyolvement that tekes the form of o
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying ameunt of the
asset and the maximim amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of & written and/or purchased option (includmg a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, sxcept that in the
case of 4 written put option (including & cash-setiled option or similar provision) on an asset
mensured et fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited 1o the lower of the
fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Un derecognition of @ financial asset in s entivety, the difference between the enmmying amount and
the sum of {n) the consideration received {including any new assct obtained Jess any new linbility
assumed) and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognized dircatly in equity is recognized
in the profit or loss.

Financiol Lighiliries

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or cancelled
ar has expired. 'Where an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lender an
sihstantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantinlly modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of &
new liahility, and the difference in the respective carying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsgiting Finangial lnstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reporied in the consolidated
staternent of financial position if, and only if, there is a curmemtly enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention i setile on & net basis, or 10 reglize the usset and sctile
the Tiability simultanecusly. The Group assesses that it hus a currently enforceable right of oflset if
the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of
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business, evenl of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group and all of the
COUNETHArTias.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant mfluence. Significant influence is the
power o participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The contiderations made in determining significant influcnce are
gimilar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.,

The Group's investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity methed, the investment in an associate is initially recognized a2 cost. The carrying
arneunt of the mvestment is adjusted 1o recognize changes in the Group’s share of ned assets of the
associule since the ncguisition date. Goodwill relating to the associste or s included in the carrying
ameunt of the investment and is neither amortized oor individually tested for impaimment

The aggregate of the Group”s share of profit or loss of an associate {s shown on the face of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or foss
afier tax. 'When the Group's share of losses exceeds the Group's interest in an equity-gocounted
investee, the carrying amount of the investment, including any long-term interects that form part
thereaf, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group have an obligation or have made payments on behalf of the investee. The consolidated
Financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group, When
nocessary, sdjustments are made fo bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary 1o recogniee an
impairment loss on it investment in its associate. At cach reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the mvestment in the associate is impaired. If there ts such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment &s the difference between the recoveruble
amount of the associate and its carrying value, then recognizes the boss as “Equity in net eamings of
a0 mssociale™ n profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associste, the Group measures and recognizes any retained
mvestment at its falr value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significent influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from

disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

and
Property and equipment are stated gt cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any, The initinl cost of property and equipment consists of parchase price;
including import duties, nonrefundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Such cost includss the cost of
replacing part of such property and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

Diepreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the property and
equipment as follows:

Transportation equipment
Office equipment
Frrmiture and fixtures

ur-..rl.n:'-::
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their usefisl lives of five (5) years or the term of the
lense, whichever is shorter,

The residuel values, usefil lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
perieds and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefit
from items of property and equipment.

Fully depreciated assets are mainmined in the accounts until these are no longer in use. When asscts
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost, relsted accumulated deprecintion and any allowance for
impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss {calculnted as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is credited to or
charged against current operations.

L
Computer software is initially recognized at cost, Following initial recognition, the computer
software is carried ot cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment in value.

The computer software 1s amortized on & straight-line basis over it estimated useful economic life of
three {3) years and is assessad for impairment whencver there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortization commences when the computer software is available for uge

The amortization period and the amortization method for the compuier software are reviewed ar each
financial year end. Changes in the estimated useful life is accounted far by changing the amortization
period or method, as appropriste, and treatsd & changes in sccounting estimates,

The net book value of Computer softwars is recognized as part of “Other noncurrent assets” gecount
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The net book value of Computer software as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted 1o P2 065, P50.702 and B186,607, respectively, The
amortization expense is recognized in “Depreciation and amortization™ acoount in the consolidated
staternent of income.

Impaj Lo

Sroperty and Equipwmert and Other Nonfinancial Assety

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that its property and
equipment &nd other nonfinancial assets may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable, 1f any such indication exisis or when annual
impatrment testing for wn asset s required, the Group mekes an estimate of the asset's recovernhle
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. Where the carrying

tr their estimated recovernble amount, In mssessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assescments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, Impairment losses of continuing
eperations are recognized in the conselidated statement of comprehensive income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired nonfinancial asset,

An ussessmient is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 1f such indication exists,
the recovernble amount s estimated, A previously recognized tmpairment loss is reversed only if
there has been & change in the estimates used to determine the ssot’s recoversble amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot excesd the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss baen recognized for the asset in prios
years. Such reversal is recognized in the profit or loss,

LU
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investment in Associate

Adfter the application of the equity methiod, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize
any additional impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in associate, The Group
determines ot each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the
difference between the recoverable amount of the investment |n associate and the carrying cost and
recogrizes the amount as a reduction of the “Equity in net camings of nn associate™ account m the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

When the Group's share of losses exceeds the Group's interest in an associate, the carrying amount of
the investment, including long-term interests that form part thereof, is reduced 1o zero, and the
recognition of further losses is discontinued except 1o the extent that the Group have an obligation or
have made payments on behalf of the nvestee.

Lommizn Stock

The Group has issued capital stocks that arc classified as equity. Incremental costy directly attributable
o the issuance of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds. The excess
of proceeds from issuance of share over the par value are credited to share premirm,

Deficit

The amount included in deficit includes profits and losses attributable to the Group’s stockholders
nnd reduced by dividends. Dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when
they are approved by the Group's stockholders, Dividends for the year that are npproved sfter the
reporting date are dealt with as an event after the reporting date. Deficit may slso include effect of
changes in accounting policy as may be required by the standard's transitional provisions.

o I :
Deposit for future stock subscription represents the amount received that will be applied &5 payment
m exchange for a fixed number of the Group's own equity instruments. It is classified as an equity
item if there is sufficient unissued authorized capital stock, or if in case the unissued authorized
capital stock is insufficient to cover the amount of deposit, (a) the BOD and stockhalders have
approved a proposed increase in suthorized capital stock for which a deposit was recoived, and () the
proposed increase was fled with tha SEC as of financial reporting date; otherwise, the deposit is
classified us 4 liahility.

itio
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow o the
Group and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is mensured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
socount contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty, The Group assesses its
Tevenue srmangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goody

Sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed 10 the buyers and the amount of revenue cin be measured reliably. Net sales is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received, excluding sales taxes, discounts, returns and rebates, if
any. Revenues that falls in this category includes sales of softwars licenses. Sales of goods are
included under “Sales™ in the consolidated stutement of comprehensive income.

LU LT
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Service, Marketing. Management and Consultancy Fees

Fees are recognized when the related services have bean rendered. Revenues that falls in this
cutegory include IT Manpower and Resource Augmentation, and Broadband services, Services,
marketing, management and consultancy fees are included under “Servics fees™ in the consolidated
statemnent of comprehensive income,

fmteresr
Interest income 1s recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Cost end Expenses

Cost und expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
thisse relating to distributions 1o equity participants. Cost and expenses tire recomnized when the
services sre used or the expenses are incurred,

Cost of Safes
Cost of sales is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of awnership of the goods have
passed to the buyer upon delivery. This pertains to the cost of software licenses sold.

Catt of Services
Lost of services are direct costs incurred in relation to service revenues. This mainly consists of
outside services and advertising and promaotions,

Cieneral and Administrative Expenses

Lienaral and ndministrative expenses consist of expenses incurred in the direction and general
administration of day-to-day operation of the Group and are genernlly recognized when the services
are used or the expenses arige,

laxeg

Citrreni Tax

Current tax labilitics for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected o be paid
to the tax authority, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that huve been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferrad Tax
Dreferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the reporting dane
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes,

Dieferred income tax linbilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred ineome
tax assets are recognized for all deductible jemporary differences and carry forward benefits of
unused tax credits in the form of net operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and minimum eorporate
ingome tax (MUTT) to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available sgainst which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilized,

The carrying smount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed ot cach reporting date and reduced 1o
the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficicat taxable profit will be uvailable to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probuble that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax assety to be recovered. Deferred income tax gssets
and liabilities are measured at the 1ax rates that are expected 1o apply 1o the period when the asset s
realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted as of the reporting date.
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Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to offset current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income
taxes relate o the sume taxable entity mnd the same taxation authaority.

Leases

The determination of whether an Arangement &, or containg, o lease is based on the substance of the
arrangemdent at inception date and involves as assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arangement
|!+E|'=PEI1-I|ﬂ1tDn'ﬂ'l-:l.lﬂ:ufﬂﬁmiﬁr-lﬂﬂtﬂl’ﬂsﬂtsnrllrtﬂmng:mmtmmwysnﬁﬂltmm the asset.

Uperating Leaves

Ciperating leases represent those leases under which substantially all the risks and rewards: of owngrship
of the leased assets remain with the lessor, Lease payments under an operating Jease are recognized ux
an expense on straight-line bases over the terms of the lease,

Finance Leate Commitments - Ciroug as Lesves

Finance leases which transfer (o the Group substantially afl the risks and benefits incidental 1o
owmership of the leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fuir value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lzase pnyments. Lease pavments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liahility s0 as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset, However, if there is no reasenable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the ledse term, the asset is depreciated bver
the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the Jease term.

Foreign Currency Jranslations

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the exchange rate prevailing of the date of the
iransaction. Monetary assets and Eabilities denominated in foretgn currencies are restated using the
rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange differences betwesn rate at
transaction date and rate at settlement date or financial statement date e credited 1o or charged

against current operations.

The Group determines the functional currency for each entity within the Group snd items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional eurrency. For subsidiary
whose functional currency is different from the presentalion currency, the Group translates the rosylts
of their operations and financial position into the presentation currency. As at the financial reporting
date, the assets and Iill:-ﬂiﬁ::{pmuﬁ (including comparatives) are translated fnto the presentation
currency al the closing rute of exchange prevailing at the financial reporting dare while the capital
stock and other equity balances are translated at historical rates of exchange. The income and
expenses for the profit or loss presented (including comparatives) are translated ar the exchinge rates
at the dates of the transactions, where determinable, or at the weighted average rate of exchanpe
during the reporting period. The exchange differences arising on the translation to the presentation
currency are recognized as a separate component of equity under the “Cumulative translation
adjustment™ account in the comsolidated statement of financial position,

The functional currency of the Giroup’s subsidiaries is Philippine Peso, excepd for ISIT which is US
dollar,

Provisions

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) sz a
resiit of a past event, it és probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,




If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expectad
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney
and, where appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability. Where discounting is used, the increace in
the provision due to the passage of ime is recognized as an faterest expense,

Where the Group expects some o all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursemen is
recognized as a separate asset hut only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The EXpEnSE
relsting to any provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement,

1 1
Contingent Habilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
uniess the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying coonomic benefits is remote. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed in the notes 1o
comsolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefii s probabile,

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable 1o common stockbolders by the
weighted average fumber of comman shares issued and ousstanding during the vear adjusted for any
subsequent stock dividends declared Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year by
the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year nfier giving
elfect to assumed conversion of potential common ghares,

Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Groop’s opernting segments are organized and managed separately
acearding to the nature of the services offered.

The Group's identified Cperating segments are consistent with the seEments reporied o the BOD,
which is the Group's chief operating decision maker. Financial information on the operating
s2gmenis are presented in Note |8,

£ :
Events after the financial reporting date that provide additional information abogt the Group's
financial position at the financial reporting date (adjusting events) are reflectad in the consolidated
financial strements. Events afier the financial Teporting date that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consalidated financial statements,

Future ' ick

Pﬁmmmu issued but not yet ¢ffective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
dires not expect that the fisture adoption of the said pronouncements to have 4 significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements, The Giroup intends to adopt the following pronouncements when
they hecome effective.

Effective beginning on or giter Jamuary |, 2018

*  Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-bared Payment, Classificarion and Measurement of Share-
bated Pagymem Trancactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
nmicasurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the ¢lassification of &
share-based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and
the nccounting where a modification 1o the terms and conditions of a share-based paymerit
transaction changes its classification from cash settled tn equity settled,




The Group is assessing the potential effect of the amendments on jis consolidated financial
statements,

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Finaneial Insiruments, with
PERS 4

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available 1o gn entity if it has no
previously applied PFRS 9,

The amendments are not applicable to the Group since none of the entities within the Group have
activities that are predominantly connected with insurance nr g InSurance conlracts,

PFRS 13, Revenue from Contracis with Customers

The new revenue standard |s applicable to all entities and will supersede all eurrent revenue
recognition requirements under PFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modifjed
retrospective application is required for annyal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014,
Early adoption is permitted. The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective
date using the full retrospective method.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 15

PFRS 9, Financial dnstrumensy

compulsory, For hedge accountng, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with
some limited exceptions,

LT
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Investments in unquoted equity shares currently carried at cost under PAS 39 are intended o he
held for the foreseeable future. As such, the Group intends 1o apply the option to present fair
value changes for these investments in OCI. The Group is in the process of determining how 1o
measure the fair value of these unquoted investments.

The Giroup is in the process of final IZing its assessment on the impact of the adoption of this
standard once it becomes effective

Amendments 1o PAS 28, Mﬂnﬂrwm Associate or Joint Venture af Fair Falyg
(Part of Annual fmprovements 1o PFRSy 2014 - 2016 Cyele)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifving
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-hy-investment busis, 1o measyre its

that i an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect 10
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture o
the investment entity associste's or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries, This clection is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(a) the investment entity associate or joint venture iz initially recognized; (b) the ussocinte or Joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (¢} the investment enlity associale or joint venture first

The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with carlier application permitted
Amendments o PAS 40, fimvestment Property - Tranyfers of Investmens Propert)

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of nvestment property. The amendments state that 5
change in use occurs when the Property meets, or ceases 10 meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidente of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of & property does not provide evidence of o change in use. The amendments should
be upplied prospectively to changes in use that oceur on or after the beginning of the gnnusl
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendmente. Retrospective application s
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight,

Since the Growp's current practice is in line with the clarifications issued, the Group does not
expect any effect on its consolidated financial statements upen adoption ef these smendments.

on which an entity initially recognizes tha ROfimonetary asset or nor-monetary linbility arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the

A entily may apply the interpretation prospectively 1o all assets, expenses and income in ity
seope that are initially recognized on or after the beginining of the reporting period in which the
cniity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as
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comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the emtiry
first applies the interpretation,

Since the Group's current practice is in ling with the clarifications i55tied, the Group does no
expect any effect on jts consolidated finanejg] statements upon adoption of this Inerpretation

Effective beginning an ar afler Jamuary |, 2019

entity shall apply these amendments for annyg} reparting periods beginning on or after
January |, 2019 Earlier application iz permitied,

* PFRS 16, Loases

PFRS 16 sets ouy the principles fior the recognition, MERErement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and Tequires lessees 1o secount for all leases under a single on-balance sheet maodel similnr
W the secounting for finanee leases under pAS 17, Leases. The standard Includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees - leages of "low-valup® asgers (e-g., personal Computers} and short-torm
leases (i, leases with a lease term of 12 menths of less). At the tommencement date of 5 lease,
& lessee will recognize 2 liability to make Jepse payments (i.e, the lease tiability) and an asssy

Lessecs will be alzo required 1o remeasure the lease liability upon the oesurrence of cerfain events
le.g. a change in m:hunmanhnge Et:ﬁlmrtimpa}munﬁrﬂurtingﬁﬁm B change i ay
index or rate usad 1o determine those Payments). The lessae wil| generally recognize the &moimt
of the remeasurement of the lease linbility &s an adjustment 1 the right-of-use asget

Lessor feeounting under PFRS 16 i substantiafly unchanged from today*s BCCounting under PAS
17 Lessors will continus o classify all leases ustng the same classiffcatiog principle as in PAS
|7 and distinguish berween W0 types of leases: Operating and finance legses

PFRS 16 also requires lessees and hummmﬂnmnnmuidetfmmﬂunund:rFAE 17
Early application i permitted, but not before gn entity applies PFRS §5. A lessee can choose 10
apply the standard using either g fiyl) Tetrospective or g modified retrospective approach. The
standard's transition Provisions permit certain relicfs,

The Group is Currently assessing the inpact of adopting PFRS 14,
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* Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertaimy over Income Far Freatmemny

The interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tas treatmenis involye
uncertainty that affects the application of PAS 12 und docs not 2pply to taxes or levies outside e
scope of PAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
sssociated with uncertain tax treatments,

The interpretation specifically addresses the fellowing:

*  How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tBx losses, unused
credits and tax rafes
*  How an entity considers changes in facts and chreumstances

An entity must determine whether 1o consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
with one or more other uncertain "X treatments. The approach that beter predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty should be followed.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation.

Defirred eifectivity

* Amendments tc PFRS 10 mnd PAS 28, Sals ov Contribution af Assets between an Investor gnd
its Aszociate or Jolnt Verture

3

Judgments

[n the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made Judgments, apan
from those involving estimation, which have the maost significant effect on the amounts recognized i
the consolidated financial Flatements,
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*  The varishility in the range of reasonable fair value measurements 15 et significant for that
instrument; or

*  The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and
used when measuring fair value.

Based on management's judgment, the computed recoverable amount of the investment in NOW
Telecom, Ine. is not a reliable measurement of fair value since there iz a significant variability in the
range of reasonable fuir value measurements. Accordingly, the Group is precluded from measuring
the investment in NOW Tolecom, Inc. at fair value, Furthermore, even if the range of reasonable fuir
value measurements is wide, none of these measurements result in the impairment of the investment,

Determination of Significant Influence over an Associate

The Group considers its 50% equity interest in Softweb Consulting, Inc. {Softweb) as investment in
an associate, Critical judgment was exercised 1o assess the facts and cireomstances indicating the
elements of control or level of influence of the Group over Softweb. The Group has two (2)
representatives oul of the five (5} members of the board, Thus, the Group has determined that it has
significant influence, but no control nor joint control, over the financial and operating policy
decisions over Softweb,

Chperating Leases - Group as Lesses

The Group has entered commercial property leases on its offices. Based on an evaluation of the 18rms
and conditions of the lease agreements, there will be no transfer of ownership of assets 1o the Group
at the end of the lense term. The Group has determined that all significant risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors. Thus the leases are classificd as operating leases,

Finance Lease Commitments - Group as Lessee

I'he Group has entered into leases of transportation equipment. The Group hes determined that thess
lease arrangements (i.¢. lease term is for the major part of the economic usefal life of the asset) are
finance leases since the significant risks and rewards of owrership related to these properties are
tramsferred to the Group from the date of the lease agreement.

Estimaigs
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty ar the

stetement of financial position date that have a significant risk causing material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of the assets and [iabilities within the next financial years are discussed befow.

Recoverability of Inmvestment in NOW Telecom, Ine.

The Group assesses at ench reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
i NOW Telecom is impaired, The Group has determined that NOW Telecom®s continuing losses
aver the past several years is an objective evidence that the investment may no longer be recoverable

When there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group is required to determine the recoverahle
amount of the investment, which is the sum of the (i) market value of comparable radio frequencies
and the (1) present value of etimated future cash flows that can be generated by frequencies with no
comparable market value.

| Market value of comparable radio frequencies

Market value of comparable frequencies is the cstimated market value of the radio frequencies
owned by NOW Telecom based on the implied price per MHzPop of the most recent ermiparahle
market transaction involving buy-outs of entitics with radio frequencies.
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1. Present value of extimated future cash fleves generated by radiy frequencies with no comparable
market value

The key assumptions used by the Group in determining the present value of estirnated future cash
flows generated by frequencies with no comparable market value are as follows:

. Discount rate
The discount rate is based on NOW Corporation’s weighted average cost of capital, This rate
i# further adjusted to reflect the market assessmeni of any risk for which future estimares of
cash flows have not been adjusted.

*  Long-rerm growth rate
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a determined constant growth
rate o arrive at the terminal valye,

*  Revenus growh vare
Revenue for the five-year period are forecasted using & growth rate which is within the
industry outlook,

Mo impairment loss on the imvestment in NOW Telecom was recogruzed in 2017, 2016 and 20 ¢
The carrying amount of the investment in NOW Telecom amounted to Pl 289,278 350 as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 (see Note &),

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired, To determine whether there is cbjective evidence of impairment. the Group
considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor and default or significant delay in payments,

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of futiure cash Aows are
estimated hased on age and status of the fnancial asset, &5 well as on historical loss experience,
Allowanee for impairment loss s provided when management believes that the balunce cannot be
collected or realized after exhausting all efforts and courses of action, The Group recognized
provisien on impairment loss on receivables and advances to affilistes amoonting to 8] 940,
P5,685,685, and £4,031,832 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 4, 6 and 14),

The aggregate carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, due from related parties and advances
lo affiliates amounted to P314,989,054, P238,651,640 and P185 331,501 as of December 3] L2017,
2016 and 2015, respectively (see Notes 4. 6 and 9}

Estimaring Useful Lives of Praperty and Eguipment, and Computer Software
T'he Group estimutes the useful lives of significant parts of property and equipment basad on the
period over which the aesets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of

previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercinl shsolescence and legal or
other limits on the use of the assets. In addition, the Group's estimation of the usefisl [fves of
property and equipment is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assets, It Is possible, however, that firture results of operations
could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned
ebove. The amousts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in
these factors and circumstances, Depreciation and amortization charged 1o operaticns amounted (o
B4,411.001, P2.214,569 and #3 567,678 for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,

LT
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respectively (see Notes 7 and 14). The aggregate net book valyes of property and equipment and
computer software amounted 1o P8,721,428, 6674382 and 3,437,114 as of December 31, 201 T,
2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 7).

Extimating fmpairment o Property and Equipment, Computer Software and Credisable

Withholding Taxes (CWTy)
The Group assesses impairment on kssets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thar
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, The factors that the Group considers
unportant which could trigger an impairment review include the following;

*  Significant underperformance relagive 0 expecied historical or projected future operating
resoles;

*  Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the stradeyy for overall
business; and

*  Significant negative mdusiry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recaverabie
amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value Jess costs o sell and
value in use. The fuir value Jess costs to sell s the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset {n an
arm’s length transaction while valus in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asser and from its disposal at the end of its wseful life
Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets o, if it is not possible, for the cash-
gencrating unit to which the asset belongs, For impairment foss on specific assets, the estimated
recavershle smount represents the net fair value less costs to sell.

continued use of the assets, the Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the consolidated financial statements. The Group recorded provision for tmpairment
on CWTs of nil in 2017 and 2016 and P158,767 in 2015 (see Note 5). The aggregare CAITYING values
of praperty and tquipment, computer software and CWTs amounted to P14,409,124, P10,485 148
and F7,339,942 as of December 31 20] 7.2016 and 2015 respectively (see Notes 2, § and 7)

Extimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax dssets

The Group reviews the carmying amounts of deferred income tax assels at each reporting date and
reduces the mmounts 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow ull or part of the deferred COMmE fax assets 1o be utilized. However, there is no
assurance that the Group will generste sufficient taxable profit o allow all or part of its deferred
Ifome tax assets to be utilizad.

The Group did not recognize deferred Icome tax assefs on temporary differences and carryforward
bencfits of unused NOLCO, unused tax credits from excess MCIT, allowance for impairment on tmde
and other receivables and others amounting 1o P15,037,918, #30,227.110 and P74,849,547 a5 of
December 31, 2007, 2016 snd 2015, respectively (see Note 15). The Group believes that it is not
probable that safficient taxable profit will be available to-allow all or part of the deferred income tay
assets 1o be utilized,




Trade and Other Receivables
2017 2016 L0015
Trade receiviables:

Belated parties (Nole ) ]| 46,628 456 PLO], 220311 PE4,063 924
Third parties 31,527,393 24,581 615 27 446304

Crhiers (Mote ) 1,620,367 3,566,589 342 #0423
IBLT76. 116 129368 815 930 170
Less allowance for impairment lossey I.!_,!JI,HI 13,836 447 11,150,747
RI6T7,943 234 F115532 368 PRI TER 408

Trade and nontrade receivables from third parties are noninterest-

30 to 60 days term,

Trade recoivables from related parties are unsecured, Roninterest-bearing and are 1o be settled upon

demand,

Cithers include advances o officers and personne

Animation, Inc. (Holy Cow) (see Note 9),

bearing and are generally on

|, and outstanding loan receivable from Holy Cow

Movement in allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables are as follows:

inz 2016 L
Balance a beginning of vear P13,836,447 ®13,150, 762 L B R
Provisions for the year (Note 143 1,940 683,685 4,033,832
Recovery of previousky recognized
doubtful secounts {5495) = -
Balance ut end of year F13.K32 807 Bl3836,447 P13, 150,762
Other Current Assets
imy 6 201
Frepayments F36,284,767 F1417471 Pla243]
CWT - net T.H%0 3,810,966 1,902 k2%
Input VAT - net 2882411 285 426 -
Deferred input VAT 1.735 627 - =
hhers TT4.520 145,350 112,813
B47,364,921 P7.659213 Pd | TH001

Prepayments includes deferred transaction costs amounting 1o ®10,763 277 and B3 360,000 as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, in connection with the Group®s planned offering of
redeemable, convertible, non-participating end non-voling Peso-denominated preferred shares. As of
April 9, 2018, the Group is in the process of securing the approval of the Philippine SEC and PSE of
the said transaction (see Noje 12}, Tt also includes the prepayments made by the Parent Company in
purchasing IBM Licenses rolated to instalistion of email system for the Supreme Court of the
Fhilippines smounting 1o P23,638.466.

Deferred input VAT is recognized for the unpaid services rendered to the Parent Company,

CWT iz net of allowance for impairment losses amounting to F706.270 as of December 3 1. 2017,
2016 and 201 5,

ATy




-34 -

Movements in allowance for impairment foss on CWT are 2 fallows:

o1y 2016 18
Balance at veginning of yaur Fo6,270 FI06.27 P47 503
Provisions for the ofe [4) = - 158,767
Balance at end of year P'.I'I-EE_'.I'I:I PT06 270 FTO6,270

Imvestments and Advances
27 2016 2015
AFS financial nsas) FIJH,I'."E.J!U F],E#E'.ETIJ&!} PL2E927% 350
Advances 1o affilinres {Mote 9) 13502 R18 23 &1& 28591 81
#1,511,871,168 PILI2ETL 168 P1317871 168

AFE Financial Asser

The Group has an investment in NOW Telecom clussified as AFS financial agger

On April 28, 20046, the Group entered into & MOA with NOW Telecom and five (5) controlling
stockholders of NOW Telecom namely, Top Mega Enterprise, Lid, Joyeelink Holdings, Lid GHI,
Emerald Investment, Inc., Food Camp Industries and Merketing, Inc. {the five companies are
collectively referred to hereafter as NOW Telecom stockholders) to swap or exchange shares of stock.

Under the MOA, the Parent Company shall issue its shares in exchange for interest in NOW Telecom.
The agreed upon swap of shares was subject (o cerain conditions, including nocessary corporite and

P1,289,278.350, or effectively, at price of B485.32 per NOW Telecom share.

The Parent Company applied for an increase in its authorized capital stock to accommodare the
loregoing transaction (see Note 12).
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As of December 31, 2017, 2015 and 2013, the Group’s investment in NOW Telecom amounied fo
Pl 289,278,350 and po impairment was recognized for the vears then ended,

Lrvestment in an Assoclale and Advancer to Affiiiates
. Saftwed Consulting, Inc.

Um December 20, 2010, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with Softweb for an
investment amouniing to 6,000,000, representing a 50% interest in Soflweb,

Softweb specializes in Lomus eonsulting and training services ps well es comprehensive Doming
warking solutions. As an [BM partner, Softweb offers the full range of IBM services and
licensed products integrated in its own list of business solutions, software development and
traiming,

As of December 31 + 2017, 2016 and 20] 5, the Group's share in losses of Softweb have already
exceeded the cost of investment, The Group only recopnizes the loss 1o the extent of the cost of
investment. Accordingly, the carrying amount of investment in Softweb as of

Drecember31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 is nil, The Group does not have any begal or constructive
obligation to make payments on behalf of Softweh,

The unrecognized share in net joss as of December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 amounted 1o
nil, #7,077,304 snd P7,265,533, respectively,

As of December 31, 2015, the Group has advances to Sofiweb amounting to 85,000,000, This
pertains to depasit for future stock subscription in Softweb pending the increase in jts authorized
In 2016, the Group recognized provision for impairment loss on its advanees to Softweb
amounting to #5,000,000 (zee Notes © and 14,

b Thumbmab Phifippines, Ine, and Holy Cow Anrimation, ne

The Group entered inta agresments with Thumbmob and Holy Cow for the subscription of
Thumbmob and Holy Cow shares. Holy Cow is & full serviee animation studio that produces 20,

These are currently recorded under “Advances to affilistes™ in the consolidated sttement of
financial position pending the increase in the authorized capital stock of the investes companies,
The applications for the increase in authorized capital stock are mot yet filed with the Philippine
SEC as of April 6, 2018 (see Note 9.

LT




" Property and Equipment

2017
Leasehald Transportaiion CHTice Furniturs
!IMIE Blm !ﬂﬂuﬂt mdm Total
Cois
Balances gy Legimning nf
year P4 937 44 P15 860,257 FL6,200,844 P393 ka5 PIRA0) 455
Additinag 128,750 19,297 = & T

Balances ut ead of vear 4,937 448 15,989,627 11,531,141 1,393 KRN 44851 807
Aecumulnted depreciatinn

and smartzntion:
Balnnces at beginning of
Yesr 4445217 15,091,753 10,545 048 1,188 857 H,T8.77%
Depreciation sny
umortizniion for the
rear (Mote (4] 435230 146,071 A T1L.041 L3 4381 104
Balamces uf end of oEg
Net ook vilus 904 FTAT4, 190 129,109 FH, 711 462
2014
Leasehold  Trengpoetstion Ciffice Fitriiturs
_Improvemernits Equipenens Equipment ingd Fiyhores Total
Cmat;
Balgnces m beginnimg af
Year P40 T daE BLE 16 4] P1E 240,344 1393 ki FEL 941,600
Additsana = 650,354 4,761,479 = SA50837
Aalances af end nfE 4!931'“-5 13,560 277 16,201 844 1,393 RER 38343 444
Accumidnied deprecisiian and
s rtizatanm:
Balmnces a beginning of
YEir 1044 498 4793001 9863 475 &7 739 29.a%, 11
Depeeciation wnd
amartization far the yeur
{Mote 14) 500,722 396, 752 | 042 6 IO, 11E 2,087 (164
Balences at end of 753 I, 195857 77T

er ] H£ 5,806 PI98.03 § P61 4 08

2015
Lessehald Trarspariacion (iFige Furmitiie
Improvements  Eguipment  Equipment ind Fianies Tl
Cioay:
Balances at beginning of
yoar Ba937 444 F1E 69,914 P17 200, 287 0,393 883 12,702 540
Additipny S - 239,017 - 139,078
Balances ul end of 4037445 13,169,819 1] 65 1,393,851 33.94) g1R
Accarmulited depeaciation s ==
Imortimtisn:
Belances af begmning of
year EETE Ry 12206, 514 9,620,427 979,611 35,280,337
Dreprecintiog and
amortiztion for the yenr
(Mole 14} 00723 2.te4as 243 449 108,118 1,440,774
Ealunces at end of year 3,944 499 14,795 60| !'.IE'.EJ_B-'?E LOXT 719 LTINS
Mot book vabus Palbin P374 518 #1.576.489 HEEH? B, 250 407
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Cost of fully depreciated agzets still in use amounted 1o BI7.836,276, P17,134.057 and
P16,757,0390 a5 of December 31,2017, 2016 and 201 5, respactively,

B Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

017 2014 2015
Trade payabigs:
Third parties P59.917,133 F21,510,846 P32 363 004
Ralated parties (Mote 2) 16,396,954 | B, 808, 706 15,112,678
Accrued expenses:
Inierest (Mite # S9.903 284 59803 <55 983 588
Drihers 11,563,299 8432085 B.BZRII7
Deferred output VAT 14,954,494 9,265,728 6,055,944
Withholding tax payabie 1,331,793 Ta1,643 Bfid_330

FI64,067.250 P119.642 574 #133,927 061

Trade payables from third parties are noninterest-bearing and are generally on 30 to 60 drys’ f2rm,
Trade and nontrade payables from related partics are unsecured, nomintersst-bearing and are 1o he
settled upon demand,

Related Party Transsctions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, contral or
are controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies, subsidiaries
nnd fellow subsidiaries, are rolaied parties of the Group. Associages and indivichusls owning, directly
or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence oyer
the emterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Group and clise
members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with these individuals alsg
constitute related parties, [n considering each possible refged entity relationship, sttention is direcied
i the substance of the relationship and not merely the legal form

Liroup entered into tmnsactions with related parties, principally consisting of the following

The Paremt Company grants interest-free advances o NOW Telecam for working capital and
administrative requirements, Amounts owed by NOW Telecom as of December 31, 201 7, 2016
and 201 5 amounted to P63,745,439, PS1,346,501 and B3 1,408,455, respectively

On Jume 25, 2010, both parties agreed to extend the maturity of the loan from August 10, 2010 o

foan up to August 30, 2015, with the Interest rate further reduced tm 3% Per annum starting
lanuary 1, 2013. On August 31, 2015, both parties agreed 10 extend the maturity of the loan 10
five (5) years ending August 30, 2020, Interest was retained at 3% per annum, [nterest income
amaunted to P467,033 in 2017, 2016 and 2015 reflected as part of “Cithers" in revenue As of
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December 11, 2017, 2018 and 2015, amounts owed by IBL, including interest. amounted
Bl7497.744 B2 7,030,711 and Pl6,563,678, respectively, IBT s an entity under common
conitral,

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 the Group has outstanding liabilities to Emerald
Investment, Inc. (EIT) mmounting to #2,902,918 which arose from the Group’s sub-lease
Agreement with EIT that ended in 2011

Amounts owed by EIl a5 of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 i P40 848,

On January 1, 2013, the Parent Company rencwed jts Service agreement with KPSC fr & pericid
of four (4) years heginningjmun}l 12013 to December 31, 2016, On lanuary 3, 2017, the
Parent Compuny renewed ity service agreement with KPSe for 2 period of five (3] years

The Group’s administrative and management fusctions, including key mansgement personnel,
are being handled by persanni! of KPS

Due to related parties include interest bearing advances from Velarde, Inc. for working capital
und imvestment requirements. Imierest rate for these loans is ot 18.0% per armum or 1 5% pet
month,

On January 22, 2015, Velarde, lnc. sgreed 10 convent its advances imounting (o # 200,000,000
inio equity interest in the Parent Company for 200,000,000 common shares with a par value of
Pl It was further agreed that the remaining balances and subsequent advances from Velarnde,
fnc. shall no longer be subject t0 interest and shall be due on demand (see Nogs 123,

2016 and 201 5.

On April 29, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the cgnversion into equity of the
sdvances from Velarde, Ing. amounting to 264,000,000 3 tanversion price of P1.22 per share
vomputed on the volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company's shares for g 3-clay
trading period ended April 14, 2016, On June 2, 2018, the stockholders of the Paren Company

approved the said increase in the Parent Company's suthorized capitnl stock.
Un June 20, 2016, ndditional sdvances were incurred from Velarde Ine., through the [atter's

payment of the loans payable tw bank on behalf of the Parent Company BRMCUNting 1o
$44,300,000 (see Note 11),

ANVREALI Ry
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Cuitstanding accrued interest presented as part of the “Accouns payable and socmyed expensgs™
amaoutited o B59,903 586 as of December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 4),

Due 1o Velarde, Ing, presented as part of “Due 10 related parties™ amounied o B14],326 866
P6B.322.816 and P223 458,035 ay of December 3 12017, 2016 and 2015, respectively

The Group charges Velarde, Inc. management fees for the adminisirntion and operations of te
companies. Payments are dise within five (5) days upon receipt of myvoiee. Management feeg
charged 1o Velarde, Inc. amounted 1o B240,000 in 201 7, 2016 and 701 5 reflected as part of

The Group has outstanding trade receivahias from Velarde, Inc. amountng to #1680, (0,
B1,440,000 and B .200,000 a5 of December 31, 2017, 2015 and 20715, respectively

The Group entersd N0 a non-interest bearing loan agreement with Poreon Electric Vehicles, Inc
(Porteon). As of December 31, 201 7, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amount due from Porteon

On January 1, 2011, the Group entered into g sublease contract with I-College Philippines, Inc
{-College) for the period November 1, 2011 10 May 31, 2012 with a maonthly rental fee of
F77.526. The term of the lease can be renewed upon mutsal consent of bogh perties. The ms

November |, 2017 to October 31, 2020, All other terms and conditions of the sublease agreement
Rent expense incurred by the Giroup amountad {o PO30313 in 200 7, 2016 and 2015, In
connection with this, the related due to I-College amountsd to RS, 736,925, P4 806,612 and
P3.876,300 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 207 %, Tespectively.

The Group salls IBM licenses to Softweb, uy associate. Sales of IBM license 1o Softweb
ameented (o nil, B5,412,232 snd B1 2,088,054 in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The Group entered i Agreements with Thumbmob, Holy Cow and Softweb for the submcription
of their respective shares. Please see Note § for detailed discussion,

Infrastrichore bu.r.ru'-qumdm:him! Fervices
In January 2015, the Pamlﬂnmpu:}r:nmrgd Into two (2) separate One-year service agreemenis

Telecom whereas the Company wil] provide project MANAECMENT servioes, design and
; i ngupm]ﬂnujqrmtwmthuhfnrnmw

total of nine (9} and ten {10} hubs werg completed for GHT and Newsnet, respectively gy of
December 31, 2017 Service revenue related 1o infrastructime build-up recognized in 2007, 2015
and 2015 amounted to Hi.ﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ. 30,000,000 and F20.000,000,




+ 30
and Newsney Service revenue Tecagnized in 2017 and 2014 amounted to PEO0. 00 and B 50,000
each for GHT and Newsnet

The Group provided teehnical service related with Rohill TetraNode System to NOW Telecom in
2016 which the Group recognized & service revenue amounting to #7.300,000

2017 2016 2015
GHT R4 032 048 PRESM.000 B 1,200,000
Neéwsnet 33,441,589 28,504 000 L1, 200,000
NOW Telecom [3.102 508 8,400,000 -

Value-added servicey VAS)

In 2015, the Parent Company entered into thres (3} separate agreements with NOW Telecom,
GOHT and Newsnet (the Parties), wherein the Partjes mutually agreed to collsborate angd
infereonnect their respective networks in order for the Parent Company 1o provide VAS 1o the
public such as cloud hesting services. vinual privage network, multimedia content and program
services, online game services, cloud-based miultimedia conferencing services, web hosting and
clovd-based mail and messAging services (VAS contragts),

On December 5, 2016, the Parties agreed to amend Chapter § of their VAS contracts to add
praviston on revenue sharing from the broadhang revenue.

On December 23, 2016, the Parties further agreed o amend therr VAS contracts 1o inchade
additional fees from actua) usage of bandwidth and other provision on charging 1o the Parent
Company on & cost-plys mArgin arrangement. Total cost of deta services charged 1o cost of
services amounted to P3,121,774 and P2 476.627 in 2017 and 2014, respectively,

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the outstanding amounts dye from GHT amountad 1o
P8.588.889, Ps, | 77,301 and B5,000,1 86, respactively. The Group also has an outstarding
amounts due from Newsneg amounting 1o P19,360,91 |, P10,736,960 and P6,067 544 ag of
Deegmber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2018, respectively.
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Summary of relaged party transactions affecting consolidated Statements of income:

Greneral spd
Cont of sales and sdmindstragive

Heluied Parties Category Year Revenues HTviees LXpEnaEs
Vieierds lnc Management Fes 007 140,00 [ F .
2016 240,000 -
LR 240,300 - :
Fitteres; 2017 - = .
2018 - =
RA I - -
MOW Telecom Esrvices 17 T -
2076 T: 00000 -
1015 - - -
Cost of dats serviess mr - 1,757,750 -
200 - T
s = -
Liease e = = 128,000
Mewspap Services M7 25,600,000 -
216 13450, (M0 -
2014 F, 300 D
Cant of ety sérvices ] Tkl - I A5 054
b1 [ - (R R
2015 - N
OHT Services 17y 1500, 000
2004 [EAS0 00 -
i 10,000, B - -
181 Intesest 2017 47,033 -
2018 dhT 033 -
20s 467,033 - -
EPEC Chutsdde sarvices 2017 - 8410, %6 1344064
20 & i} 226819 T ARG pa3
2018 - 40054 590 6,002 %2
Softuch Salen 017 - - _
HHE 34122352 -
2014 12,088,054 = :
Management fee o7 - -
20048 =
2015 - = -
E-Colkege Lesss 017 - - LR TN
2014 = - RIE 31
2014 - - 930,313
Ty To7, (] T} . ]
A6 Pi4 s 19,265 [k 703,244 PRA D06
R L P31 794 OR7 P40,05, 595 FT 532 508
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0, Lease Commitments

The Group has entered into Operating lease agreemenis in respect of its office premises. There are no
restrictions placed upon the Group by entering inio these jeages. Operating lease pavmenss
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income are a&s follows:

L On January |, 2011, the Group entered into a sublease contract with [-College Philippines, ing.
(I-College) for the period from November 1, 2011 to May 31, 2012 with g manthly rental fae of
PT77.526. The term of the Jease can be renewed upon mutyal consent of both parties. The Group
renewed its sublease agresment for the periods of three {3} years from November |, 2017 1o
Qctober 31, 2020 All other tarms mnd conditions of the sublease agreement dated
Tanuary 1, 201) remuin in full force,

b. Om April 16, 2013, the Group entered into a comract of lease with Roben C, Lantm with g
monthly rental fee of B40,000 and ssourity deposit amounting to F120,000 equivelent to three (3)
months rentel fee. The term of the leage can be renewed upon mutual consen of both parties. In
April 2018, the Group entered into o new lease Comtract commencing on April |, 201610

€. OnApril 1, 2017, the Group entered info & contract of lease with monthly rental fee of 813,067
Tor itz principal office which is located at Unit 5-1, 5th Floor, OPL Building, 100 C. Palanca
corner Dela Rosa and Gil Streets Legaspi Villnge, Makati City from One Palanca Lind, Ine.
Said lease contract i effective for one (1) year and may be renewad Upon mutual sgreement of
both parties.

d. On lenuary 1, 2017, the Group entered into & contrace of lease with from NOW Telecom with
monthly rental fee of ®10,000 for its office located in 2244 Espaila Avenue, Samploc, Manila
City for five (5) vears ending December 31, 2020,

¢ Un November 24, 2016, the Group entered into a contract of lease with One Exec utive
Condominium Comporation for the common aress and facilities of the latter fisr the Group’s fiber
optie cable facilities and ity value-added services for the period November |1, 2016 1o
November 17, 2021. The monthly rental payment was 56t at 3,000 with annnal escalation rate
of five percent (5%) after the first year, Acerucd rent payable Emotnting to #5933 a5 of
December 3], 2017 FEpresents straight-line adjustment on rent,

follerws:

2017 2016 2015

Within one (1) year P1,179.514 P917.365 PFo30,313
After one { 1) year but not maore than five

(5) years 1,900,572 775.260

3,080,086 PI1T365  P1,705,373

l'otal rent expense recognized in 2017, 2006 and 2015 amounted to B1,739,036, Bl 728 730 and
F1,681,4486, respectively (see Nate 14),
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L1, Loans Payable

1 {1alv Lt ompany and Bank of Makat h

In September 2012, the Parent Company availed of short term loan from Metropolitan Bank and Trust
Company (MBTC) amounting to P44,500,000. In December 20| 3, the said loan was extended for
Enother two (2) years witha maturity date of January 2016. The loan bears interest ranging from

2.40% and 2.12% 1o 2.30% in 2016 and 2015, respectively, Interest is payable every 30 davs,

On March 1, 2016, the Parent Company aveiled of o P44, 500,000 loan from the Bank af Makati to
seitle the loan from MBTC. The new loan, which will mature on March 1, 2018, has & term of
2.03 years and bears a fixed interest rats of | 3% per annum.

Un June 20, 2016, the loan from Bank of Makati was paid by Velarde, Inc. on behalf of the Pasent
Company (see Note 9),

[ntesest expense on the said logn mmounted to B571,335 and B1.027,530 in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

B loan

Un December 22, 200 6, the Parent Company uvailed a chagtel mortgage loan amounting (o
#364,800 from BDO Unibank, Inc. for the purchase of a vehicle, which serves as the property
mortgaged, The new loan requires 60 monthly payments unti] Wovember 23, 2021, has a term of
five (5) years and bears an interest rate of 9 44% per annum,

The current and noncurent portions of the loan amounted to B97 337 and P351.614, respectively, as
of December 31, 2017 and PB7,426 and ®449 107, respectively, as of December 3 L2016

Interest expense recognized on this logn amounted to B32,0135 and 1,607 in 2017 and 201 &,
respectively.

1Z. Capital Stock

In accordance with SRC Rule 68, 13 Amended (201 1), Annex 68-D, below it a suminary of the Parcnt
Company's track record of registration of securities.

Mumber of shares registered  Issue/offer price Date of approval
Common shares 28,000,000 S Tuly 30, 2003
Common shares 1,289,278,350 PLOO  December |0, 2008

On April 28, 2006, the BOD and stockholdars approved the increase in the authorized capital stock
from 40,000,000 shares to 1,320,000,000 shares at P1 par value per share. This was subsequently
ipproved by the SEC on September 19, 2006

On May 12, 2010, the BOD and stockholders of the Parent Company approved proposal to increase
rts authorized enpital siock from 1, 320,000,000 shares 1o 3,320,000,000 shures at | par value per
shares. Om Nowvember 7, 2014, the BOD and stockholders of the Parent Company approved the

Janwary 22, 201 3, the Parent Company’s BOD approved & new proposal to supersede previous
mcreese in authorized capital stock plans. It was decided for the Parent Company to apply far an
inerease of 800,000,000 shares at B par valoe per share (i.¢,, 1,320,000,000 shares 10 2,120,000,000
shares}. The SEC approved the Parent Company’s application to incresse its authorized capital stock

LT
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on Decemnber 17, 2015

As discussed in Note 0, Velarde, Inc. subscribed 1o 200,000,000 shares of the Paremt Company and
this subscription was settled through the conversion of its advances to the Group amoanting o
F20:0, 000,000,

On April 28, 2016, the Parent Company's BOD approved the incremse in the suthorized capital spock
of the Parent Company from 2,120,000,000 shares at Bl par value per shars 10 3,000,000,000 shares
it Pl par value per share. The BOD also approved the conversion into 2quity of the advances from
Velarde, Ing, amounting to #264,000,000 at 5 conversion price of P1.22 per share computed based oy
the volume-weighted average price of the Parent Company's shares for a d0-day trading period ended
April 14, 2018, On June 2, 2016, the stockholders of the Parem Company spproved the said increase
n the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock.

O January 6, 2017, the Parent Company filed an application with the SEC for the spproval of the
said amendment, This was approved by the SEC on January 10, 2017,

Information on the Group's authorized capital stock is as follows:

Numhber of shares o
T 00k 205
Common stock, By par value: 2,060,000, 000 £, 120 (60, G0 2 120,000,000
Preferad stock, 1 par value: B0 (DM, TR} - -
Balance at end of the year L,120,000,000 2 120,000 500 2,120,000,000

Movements in the fssusd and outstanding capital stock are as follows:

Common Stock
Number of shares
2mr 2014 2015
Halnnes at beginning of the year LS17278350  1,517278. 350 1317 278,350
Issuances during the vear - = 200000004
Balance at end of the year I,EIT,.'.ITIEH Iljl?.l'i"l.ifﬁ [517.278.340

LU T
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I3. Costs of Sales and Services

@17 P k15
Cost of servies;
Outside services (Note 2 P46, 436,305 P43.226.619 Pai0, 44 504
Lost of datn services (Note ) T.38a,191 3,204,621
Cosl of sales 3 ROr 102315 7062 33 545 751
HEE:,#H P55, 646 942 P75 600 357

4, Genernl and Administrative Exponses

i 2017 2016 2015
Salaries and other emplovee benefirg PF13,772,096 #1301, 180 F7 58 000
Dutside services (Noge 7] 6,988,982 7489 503 602, 192
Entertainment, amussment end recrestion 6,327,299 o, 706,499 2,430,290
Transportation end trave| E026 897 1,702,362 1,586 867
Communication 4,406 20y 4,109.582 3,567 207
Depreciation and mmortiztion (Note T 4.400.001 2214 %69 3567671
Taves and leenses 4,045 599 1,068,636 2ATI AT
Prefessionnl fees 2495421 2,918,643 632437
Adventising and promation 3,367,961 4,524,439 -
Rental (Note 10} 1,739,036 1,728,730 1,681,444
Office supplies 193,637 ZA41 318 1020 42%
Utilities 284,014 982,225 804,573
Insurance 199 904 258,661 L
Repuirs and muintenance 180,576 1,008,252 353,177
Provision for impainment loss on:
Trade and other receivables (Mote 4) 1.540 485 685 4,033 832
Advances to affillae (Note 6) = 5,000,000 -
Other carrent assets (Noge ¥ = - 158,757
Others 006 603 L2600 642 275 162
FS4.077 860 B4 401,196 BIL21 1 3G

L5, Income Toaxes

The reconciliation of the Group's statwlory income tax t0 provision for income tax follows:

2017 2016 2015
Statutory income iy ar 300 Fl.688.352 P1.407,532 P2,023.297
Additions to {reductions in) income e
resulting from;
Nondeductible expenses I A86 347 LiGhis 2,393 501
Movement af imrecognized defierrad
fhoome tax assety (1902273 [2,382.463) {2905 T16)
interest income subjected to final tax (1,468) (1,157} (2.257)
P2670.958  #3.193364  P1.508 800
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The Group has temporary differences for which no deferred lox assels were recognized as it is
probable that sufficient taxable income will not be avaj lable for thoze deferred tax assets (o be
utifized.

The temporary differences are as follows:

207 2016 2015

Allowanee for impairment on rade
and other receivables 13,532 801 P13 836,447 P13,150,762
NOLCO 2,761,602 14,677,408 0,886, 089
MCIT 1312359 1,713,165 812,692
Othery 131,065 - -
19,037,918 F30,327,110 74 840,543

As of December 31, 2017, NOLCO and MCIT can be claimed as deduction from future taxshie
mcome and income tax liabilities, respectively, are us follows:

¥ ear Incurred Year of Expiration NOLCD MCIT
2017 2020 P02, 205 F727.8505
2016 2019 365 424 503,836
2015 2018 1,593,769 640,717
PIT6LEOZ  P23123%
The following are the movements in NOLCO and MCIT:
2017 2016 2014
MNOLCO
Balances ot beginning of vesr P14,677 408 P&l 886,089 PFl42,821.518
Additions 2200 565,624 1,593,765
Application (11,199273) (13,432,651) (13,5483 16)
Expirations (1,318,831} 33,341,564 49,980, 88())
Balances at end of year BI,761.602 B14,677408 Pl BBG 089
2017 2016 2015
MCIT,
Balances ot beginning of year B1,713,168 PE12,692 P334,540
Additions T17.806 903,836 680,717
Expirations (128,612) {3,363 {202,565)
Halances at end of year 2,311,359 B1.713, 165 PRIZ 697

Republic Act (RA) No. 10963 or the Tax Re

LT

form for Acceleration and Inclusion Act (TRAIN} was
took effect January |, 2018, making the new tax law

the TRAIN changes existing tax law and includes several
Inesses on a prospective basis, the management assessed (hat
impact on the financial statement halances as of the reporting
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6. BasicDiluied EPS

‘The following table presents information hecessary 1o compute the basic/dilutive EPS:

2017 201G 2015

Net income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent (a) 6,702,056 F2.500,43) 5236704
Weighted avernge number of

outstanding common shares for

both basic and dilutive EPS 1.517, S0 1317, 278.350 317 278354
Basie/dilutive earnings (loss) per

share {a'h) P, 0045 PO.OD 6 Bl 0040

As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2615, the Purent Company does not have any dilutive potential
cofmon shares.

I 7. Finoncial Instruments

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, The Group's risk manngement policies are established to identify and
manage the Group's exposure to financial risks, to et appropriate transaction limits and controls, and
to monitor and assess risks and compliance to internal control policies. Risk management palicies
asd structure are reviewed regularly to reflect ehanges in market conditions and the Grroup s
activities,

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are hiquadity risk, credit risk and
interest rate risk. The Group is not exposed 1o cash flow interest rate risk since & significant portion
of the Group's due from affiliates and finance lease obligations has fixed interest rates.

The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are
smmaorized below,

Liguidity Risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's objective 1o managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as fur 4 poesible, that it will
niways have sufficient hiquidity to meet its financial liabilities when they fall due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking adverse effect on the
Group's credit standing,

The tables summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as of

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 201 5, based on contractesl undiscounted cash flows. The tbiles ajso
anulyze the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets that can be used to finance maturing
financial obligations. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates,

ANA N




2017
More than
O slemand Withim [ year i year Taitul
Finanetal axsers;
Cnsh FI0EM, 1% b B PI0.&04, 196
Trade and sther recelvabiles 167,943,134 - - 167,943 324
Thus From related parties 95 058 268 - 17497 144 123,453,012
H_m_ P- PETAST. T B3 A31
Finaneial Bahilides:
Accoants payables and scormed
CApenTe® F147,780,972 - B~ PLT. 7RO ST
Drue o related pargios 151,454,345 - - 151,454,345
Futwre interest on laans payahip - 38,134 53011 911558
Leany payable - 87337 351,604 448,951
“’!Eé—” P136.471 Fadfd 515 E299.776,425
*Earluding governmens papaiies
2

Mg thar
Crn dicmansd Within | year | vesr Toial
Finoncinl assetr
Casks B 30s 415 - F B 156 310
Trate end other recalvahles B3 276,904 30,259 452 - 15231 168
Diue froim related parties T2495 743 - 27,030,71) 99,526,444
P62, 160078 F30,2554%2 FI7.030.711  P119,45504|
s
Fimarsin! labifities:
Accounts payable and acerued
EXPIENEEL® PI09a33. 203 B B RI0dAR5 1
Duie o0 rednied parties 77530582 - - T1.5H0, 582
Futire inferest on loens puyable = 52,018 105447 1355032
L.oans payable - - 7476 449,107 536,533
— PIET.I7S, TS PLI%441 PS52,594  BIET ST RID
* Ercluding govarnment payables
<013
Mare than
O demand Within | vear i wear Total
Fimarcial arsety:
Cash P15 FIR6T2 [ B LS e
Trade and other recclvables e d ] 28,866,497 - i, 758 408
Dug from relaied parties 43,186,597 =~ 2b563478 74,930,275
Pi17, 288, 180 IR Kb 497 PA6.563,678  RI72 718855
Fingngial labitites
Accounly pavahle snd soemed
CApEnsEs 026,206 487 [ o P PI2e 206 AET
Dhee io related parties IIE.07EIED - - 219,078 380
Future interest on laang payable - 778,750 E 78,750
Loms pevable = H4S00, 000 - A4 504, 0l
Fifd 284 K67 45278, 750 P~ P8 563617
*Exclusting povernmant poablps
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The Group monitors it cash flow position through cash planning. The Group belisves that cash
sdvances by stockholders are sufficient 1o mitigate the effects of Muctustion in cash Aow snd 10 cover
disbursements for the day-to-day operations of the Group,

Credit Rixk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a CUStMmICr O counterpany 1o & financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from trade receivables and
amounts owed by relaied parties,

The Group’s management believes that there is no significant risk in the amounts due by related
parties. The BOD continually reassures the Group’s strategies for managing sccounts with creditors.
including related parties. Advanees are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result thut the
iroup’s exposure to impairment and acount discrepancies i not significant, In addition, the Group
fnanages credit risk by monitoring its eredit exposures and assessing the creditworthingss of

The following tables show the aging analvsis of the Ciroup’s financial assets as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,

017
Mrther past due Fust doe bt w0 Past doe anil
nor impaired ~ jmpaired Emipuired Tasl
Fienareiad axseis:
Cagh E10,6%4, 195 LS - g T T
Trade and other recelvabies 108,55 66,504 6518 13,832 8493 181,776,116
Do from related porties 17407744 $E.955 264 - 113,453,011
!!E& liﬂﬂ I&ﬂ!ﬂ .I]!-iﬂ.il..'ﬂ-l
201
Nether padt due  Fast due but not Past due and
Ao Empairei] __impajred __imipaired Tl
Firnancial asers
Cazh L L R B B Ba 0% 410
Trnde i pther receivahies 12,10, 256 103,432 082 13,834 447 130368 818
Due fram related parties 27,000,711 72,493,743 - 09,526 454
P41.5T0416  PI75 927025 PLI 836447 #7313 301 50
—— 2085
Mether past de  Pam due bul not Past dise gl
rar Empadred Impilred impskired Tl
Femaneial arsetr:
Cash F507a 67 [ . o B )

Trade and ather receivables 15510713 66275408 13,150, 742 4,938, | 70

Lz Trom related parties 26 563 674 48305997 - 74855 275
PiR036063 P4 b F] FI11%0,763  BLES 850 107

As at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group's maximum exposure 1o eradit risk s equal to
the carrying amount of its financial nssets,

Credir (heality per Class af Financial Azset

Financial assets are classified as high grade if the counterparties are not expecied to default in sertling
their obligations. Thus, the credit risk exposure is minimal, These counterparties normally inglude
customers, banks and related parties who pay on or before due date. Financial assets are classified as
& standard grade if the counterparties satile their ehligation with the Group with tolerable dejays.
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Low grade accounts are accounts, which have probability of impairment based on historical trend,
These accounts show propensity of default in payment despite regular follow-up actions and extended
paymant terms.

The Group considers its financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired amounting o
P19,600,536, P43,527,416 and P58,056,063 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 gs high grade
finamcinl assets,

The Group considers its financial assets that are past dus but not impaired amounting 1o
PI62,489 896, P175,027.825 and P1 14,662,292 as of Decemnber 3], 2017, 2016 and 2015 as standard
grade financial assets.

The Group has impaired receivabies amounting to #12,832 897, P13.836,447 and P13.150.762 as of
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Fair Valug of Fi i
The fallowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of cach class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such valug:

Lash, Trade and Cther Receivables, Due from Related Parties, Accownts Payable and Accrued
Expenses, Loans Payable and Due to Related Pavtier

T'he carrymg amounts of cash, trade and other receivables, due fram related partics, accounts payable

and scerued expenses, loans payable and due to related parties approximate their fair values due to the

short-term maturity of these financial instrumeants,

AFE Firancial dszatr

Unguoted equity security is carried at cost since fair value of this AFS investment cannot be relinbly
determined as this is not listed in active market, have no available bid price and the range of
reasonable fair value measurement of the AFS investment is significant.

Noncurvent Amounts Due from Related Party

The fair value of noncurrent amounts due from related party were based on discounted value of fiture
cash flows using applicable credit-adjusted risk-frec rates of 5,7%, 5.9% and 5.7% s of

December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Level 3. The fair valus of noncurrent amounts
due from related party amounted 10 B24,793 312, PI4, 144,646 and #22, 747 540 as of

Decernber 31, 2007, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The carrying value of noncurrent smaounts dug
from related party amounted to P27,497, 744, RI7.030,711 and B16,563,67% as of December 31, 2017,
2016 und 2015, respectively,

Loans Payable

The carrying amount of the loans payable as of December 3 v 2017 and 2016 wre estimated using the
discounted cash flow methodology with the epplicable credit-adjustod risk-froe rates of 5.7% and
3.5%, respectively (Level 3). The carrying amount and fair value of loans payable amounting 10

P34, 500,000 as of December 31, 2015 is the same. The fair value of loans payable amounted to
F380.328 and R414,612 a5 of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectivelv. The carrying value of loans
payable amounted o P448,95] and P536,533 g5 of December 31, 2017, 2016, respectively
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably passible change in interest rtes for
the years ended December 31, 2017 mnd 2016, with all other variables held canstant, in the Group's
income before income:

Increass
Increasa {Decrease) on
(Decreaze) in Income Before
Bazis points Income Tax
December 31, 2017 +100 (F18,59468)
-100 18,965
December 31, 2016 +100 (Ba73)
=100 673
December 31, 2015 +100 (P96,453)
-1 O 06,455

Cepital Managzment

The Groop considers the equity presenied in the consolidated statament of financial positon as Ay core
capital. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is o0 ensure that it malntaing
strong credit rating and stable capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize
sharcholders” value.

The Group menages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend pavment w
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Un October 28, 2010, PSE issued a memorandum regarding the rule for the minimum puhlic
ownership for all listed companies. Based on the memorandum, listed companies shall, at all times.
maintain a minimum percentage of listed sccurities held by the public of ten percent {10%6) of the
listed companies’ issued and outstanding shares, exclusive of any treasury shares or ne such
percentage that may be prescribed by the PSE. The Group has complisd with the minimum public
awnership as of Decomber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,

The Group eonsiders the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company as presenied
in the consolidated statement of financial position as its core capital.

As of Decernber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group was able to mest it capital management
ohjectives.

. Busginess Segment Information

The Group's operating segments are organized and managed separately according 1o the nature of the
services offered as follows;

* [T Manpower and Resource Augmentation - provides deployment of IT professionals o clisnts
* Software Licenses and Services - provides high value products and services to clients,
* Broadband Services - provides high-speed broadband service of up to 700 Mbps to clients,
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Management monitors the operating results of its business units separtely for the purpose of miking
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment, Segment performance is #valuated
based on operating profit or loss.

Financinl information on the operations of the various business SCRments are summarized &4 follows.
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- Notes io Consalidated Stutements of Cash Flows

In 2015, noncash financing metivity consists of deht I0-equity fransaction from Velarde, Ing.'s
advances smounting o F200,000,000 for 200,000,000 Parent Company common shares with a par
value of Bl which has besn approved on December 17, 2015 (see Note 12}

In 206, the noncash financing activity involves the conversion of 264,000,000 sdvances from
Velarde, Inc. to the Parent Company's common shares. This is currently presented under ety ns
deposit for future stock subseription pending the approval by SEC of the Parent Compatiy's
upplication for increase fn suthorized capital stock (see Note 9),

. Changes in Linbilities Aristag from Financing Activities

dunuary 1, 2017 Cash Mows December 31, 2017
Due to reloted parties P77,520,582 P73.933,763 P151,4%4,045
Losns pavable 536,531 (B7,582) 448, 15]
Total lnhilities from
financing activities FT8.057,115 P73 846,181 F181,003, 204
Other Matter
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT

The Stackholders and the Board of Directors
NOW Corporation

Linit 5-1, 5™ Floar, OPL Building

100 C. Palanca Stregt, Legaspi Village
Makati City

We have nudited in accordance with Philippine Standards on

BOAPRT Reg M, o0
Do 14 2005 vl urtil Cocriness 31 2040
SEC Mcrradiaiion re DULI-FR-4 (Geoup &
Movsenbar 1 7015 iled wrmti Mgnrnhis 0 e

Auditing, the consolidated finangial

statements of NOW Corporation and Subsidiaries included in this Form 17.A und have jesyed CHIT Fepirt
thercon dated April 9, 2018, Our audity were made for the purpose of forming an opinion an the basic
financial sintements taken as a whole, The schedules listed in the Index to Finaneial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responisibility of the Giroup's Mmanagement. These schedules are
presented for purposes of complying with Securitics Regulation Code Ryl 68, As Amended (201 ) and
Securities and Exchange Commission Memorsndum Cireular No. | 1, Series of 2008 and are not part of
the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the suditing procedures applied in
the sudit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in al] material respecty, the

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

e fpch

Jhoanna Feliza C. (o

Pariner

CPA Certifionte No. 0114122

SEC Accreditation No. [414-AR-] (Group A},
Muarch 2, 2017, valid until March 1, 2020

Tax Identification No. 219-574-288

BIR Acereditation No. OB-001998-103-2017,
Yanwsary 31, 2017, valid unti] Jamury 30, 2020

FTR Ma, ﬁ-ﬁzllﬁﬁ,.lmunr}«' 9, 2018, Makati Ciy

April 9, 2018
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NOW CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
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DECEMBER 31, 2017

independent Auditors® Report on Supplementary Schedules

Schedule I: Tabular Schedule of Effective Standards and Interpretations under PFRS

Schedule [1: Supplementary Schedules Required by Securities Regulation Code {SRC) Buls A,
Part 11, Annex 88-E-

A

H

H

Financinl Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties, and Principal
Stockholders

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Conselidation of
Financial Statemerits

Intangible Assets - Other Assets
Long-Term Debt

Indebvtedness 1 Related Parties
Cuarantees of Securities of Other Iasuers
Capital Siock
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CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Now Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial sttements including the sttached therein for the years ended December 312017, 2016 and
2013, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework fndicated therein, mnd for sucl
internal control s management determines H Neccssary (o cnable the preparation of the financinl
stnfements that are free from material misststement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ahility
wmntinmuuﬂ:ﬁrlgmn,dhchinguuppﬂﬂh}n matiers refated to going concem and using the
auingu-u:n:emh-dsnfmwnﬁ:;mhu ﬁlhrnmmiﬂibd&mlimﬂmdmﬂmpan} or o
Cease operations, of has no realistic alternative 10 do B0,

The Board of Dirsctors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reparting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements meluding the schedules stmehed
therein and submity the same to the Stockholders.
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Mel V. Velarde
President and Chief Evecutive Officer
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Signature: !

Vieente 1. Penanueva
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Framework for the Preparation xnd Presentation of Financial
Siatemenis ¥
Conceptunl Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative
characleristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Cammentary +
Philippine Financisl Reporting Standards

PFR= 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
(Hevised) Standards o

Amendmenis to PERE L Coat of an Investment i 2 J.
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associatn

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for 7
Firsi-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 12 Limited Exemption from 7
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to FFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Date for Firsi-time Adopters

Amendments 1o FFES I; Government Loang
Amendments to PFRS | Barrowing Costs . o
| Amendments to PFRS |- Meaning of EfTective PFRS ¥
PFRS 1 Share-based Payment v

Amendments to PFRS 2: Yesting Conditions and
Cancellatinns

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settied Share-based 7
FPayment Transactions

Amendments 1 PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting
Conditions |
Amendments to PFRS 2: Share-based Paymend,

Classification and Measurement of Share-hased Payment Not early adoprad
Transactions®

PFRS 3 Business Combinations «

iseql
Worsiad) Amendments by PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingem s
Consideration in n Business Combination
Amendments to PFRS 3: Scape Exceptions for Joint s
| l‘!l-lmmﬁ |
*Standards and interprepations wihich will broome gifective rubrsguens s December 1) 3017

%




Amendmants to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Gunrarites Coatracts

Amendments 1o PFRS §: Apphving PFRS 9, Financial
Instruments, with FFRS 4°

Net early adopted

PFR5 5

Mon-current Assets Held for Sabe and Discontinued
| Operations

| Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of
Dsposal

FFRE
| S
PFRS 7

Exploration for and Evalustion of Mineral Resources

Fimancinl Instrumenta: Diselosures

Amendments tn FFRS T: Recinssification of Financlal
ANscts

Amendments 1o FFRS 7: Reclussifleation of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Fmancial [msirumends

Amendienits t6 PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financinl Agseis

Amendments tp PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offzetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Dage of
PFRE ¥ and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7; Servicing Contracts

Amenidments to PRFS 7; Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Stntements

PFRS S

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS & Agugregation of Oiperating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity's Assets

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments®

Mot early adopted

Amendmenits to PFES 9 Prepayment Festures with
Megative Component

Wod early adopred

FFRS 11

Consolidated Financial Siyements

Amendments to PFRS 107 Investment Ertitiey

e

Amendments to FFRS [{ and PAS 28 Sal= ar
Contribution of Assets betwean an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Veniee®

Mot early adopted

*Standarils and interpredmttions which will becomr effectrve rubseguent fo December 71, 2057,




Amendments to PFRS 10: Applying the Consolidation

Undertying Assets

*Stawmdards and frierprerarioar wiiich will Berome afective nubsequent 1o December 1) 3017

eont'd) | Exception ¥
| PFRS 11 Joint Arrangernents
Amentments to PFRS 111 Accounting for Acquisitions of 7
Interests in Joint Operatians
PFRS 11 Disclosure of Interests in Ciher Entitiay v
Amendments to FFRS 12: Investment Entities
Amendments to FFRS 12: Applving the Consolidation
Exeeption
mmmmlizﬂhﬂﬂmnﬂnmﬁhmu o
Entities-Clarification of the Scope of the Standard
PFRS 13 Fair Value Mezsurement S |
i Amendments to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Payables
Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception +
PFHS 14 Regulatory Defermral Accounts Vv
FFRES 15 Revenue from Contraces with Customers Mot early adopted
FFRS 16 Leases Mot earty adopted
| Philippine Accounting Standards '
PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements "
(Reviedl L endment iz PAS 1> Cagital Disclosses £
Ameadments to PAS Ji‘._md PAS 1: Punable Financial y
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation
J'-mﬂﬂ-dmmt!lu?ﬂsl:l’runﬂﬂmufhmnfﬂﬂm' v
Comprehensive [ncame
AmﬂumFASI:ﬂIFIﬂuﬁmnfﬂu Requirements s
for Comparative Presentation
PAS2 Inventuries o
FAST Satement of Cash Flows o
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative o
PASE Accaurting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 7
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Pericd v
PAS [ Construction Contrasts o
PAS 12 Income Taxes s
Amendments ta FAS 12: Deferred Tax - Recovery of s




Amendments 1o PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax

Vemture at Fair Value®

feont 'd) Assets for Unrealized Losses
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment ¥
Amendments to PAS |6: Clarification of Servicing /
Equipment
Amendments to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - J
Proportionase Restatement of Accumulaiad Deprecistion
Amendment to PAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable 7
Methoeds of Deprecintion
Amendment to PAS [6; Bearer Plants W
FAS 17 Leases a
PAS 18 Revenue 4
PAS 1% Employee Benefits
(Amanded) Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Beneflt Plans:
Employee Contributlon
Amendments to PAS 19: Regional market issue regasding
discoumt rats ol
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclogure of 7
(ovemment Assistance
FAS X1 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates o
Amendment: Net Investment in a Forelgn Operation "4
PAS 21 Borrowing Costs s
(Revised)
PAS 14 Helated Party Disclosures o
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 24: Eey Management Personne] «
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans 4
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements .
((Amended) . [ rendments 10 PAS 27- lnvestment Entitie 7
Amimdments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separae v
Financial Statements
PAS 1R Investments in Associstes and Joint Ventures o
(Amended) | o mendments to PAS 22: Applying the Consolidation 2
Exception
Amendments tn PAS 28: Measuring an Associate or Joint J

Amendments 1 PFRS 10 and PAS 28: Sale or
Contrilution of Assets between an Invesior gnd s
Axgociste or Jomt Ventare

Noa enrly sdopresd

“Ttamaierddy and interpreratinns which will beeome affective mhreguent io December 1), 2047




| PAS 18
[Amended)
(et "o

Amendments 1o PAS 28: Long-term Interests in
Associntes in Joimt Veotures

PAS 29

Financinl Reparting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS A2

Fimancinl [nstnements: Disclosire and Pregentation

PAS 32

Amandments 10 PAS 37 and PAS 1: Puttable Fisancial
Instrumnents and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32; Classification of Rigls Issues

Amendments ta PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Haolders of Equity Instruments

(5] A

L

Amendments 1o PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

=,

l'FA.SIH

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendment te PAS 34; Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liobilities

Amendment to PAS 34; Disclosure of information
'Elsewhere in the Interim Firancial Repart’

liPﬁEH-

Impairment of Adseds

Amendments 1o PAS 16 Recoverable Amoumi
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

FAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assats

| FAS I8

Intangible Assets

T I I

Amendruents to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Froportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Amorntization

PAS 28

Financial Instruments: Recogaition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39; Transitson and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Lighilities

Amendments ta PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intrigroup Transactions

Amendments 1o PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 3% Financial Guarontse Contracts

"Standardy and inferpretaians which will became effection subreguent to Deember 1. 2017




feant 'u

Amendments to PAS 19 Reclussification of Financial

Assets

"Srandards and imlerpreientiong wiich will become cffective tubrequent fe Decembere 71, 20)7

Amendments to PAS 39: Reciassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Trnaition |
Amendments to Philippise tntupmm IFRIC-% and |
PAS 35: Extbedded T ¥
Amendment to PAS 39 Eligible Hedped ltems vy
FAS 3 Amendments to PAS 39 Novatkon of Derivatives agd 7 |
(‘.uuu‘nutinnnrl-ln:lp Accounting
FAS 40 Investment Property o
Amendments 10 PAS 40 Investment Property o
ﬁmﬂﬂ.ﬂtﬁnu W PAS 30: Transfers of Investment Not early adopted |
PAX 41 A griculfuse o
Amnduumlnmsll;ﬂwn-l‘hnu +
| Philippine interpretations
'FRIC1 | Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and_] /
Similar Linbilities
IFRIC 1 Members® Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar "
IFRIC 4 Chetermining Whether an Arrangement Containg g Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabifitation Fusds g
IFRIC & Liahifitie aricing from Pm-nn]pwm;}nn&ummc.ﬂfwm
- Waxte Electrical and Electronic Equipment J J
[FRIC * Appling the Restwement Approach Approach under P45 29
Fimancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economier o
| IFRIC § Scope of PFRS 2 7
IFRIC % H:wmmu of Embeddad Derivatives =4
Hmﬂlﬂmmtn- Philippine Interpretation IFRIC . ’,
Embedded Derivarives
IFRIC 10 Interimr Finaneia! Reporting and lmpairmant F
FFH.[E 1] FFRS 2. Ciroup and Treasury Share Transactions o+
IFRIC 12 Service Concession ArTangesnents T
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes g



IFRIC 14

o Limit on  Defined Benefit Assct, Minimum Funding 2
Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14,
Prepayments of 8 Minfmum Funding Requirement o |
IFRIC 15 | Agreements for the Consruction of Ren] Estate v |
TIFRIC 16 Hnds:lﬂflﬁuhummmlFmignﬂpﬂm | & |
PRIC 17 | Distributions of Non-cash Assets 1o Owners | & pl
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers 4
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Lishilities with Equity 7
Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Produciion Fhase of a Surface 7
Mine .
IFRIC21  |Leview | 7
IFRIC 23 Foreign Currency Transactions angd Advance Not earty adopted
Consideration®
IFRIC 23 Uneertainty over Income Tex Treatment Not early adopaegd
SiC-7 Introduction of the Eurg ]
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation 1p 7
Oiperating A tivities
SIC.12 Consolidation Special Pirpose Entitles v
Ammﬁmwﬂlﬂrlbsmp:nf«ﬂ]ﬂli o
SIC-13 laintly Controlled Entitis - Non-Monetary Cantribusions s
by Ventirers
BIC-15 Operating Leases - [ncentives
| S1C-22 Income Twes - Changes i the Tux Status of an Entity ar
| its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluatmg the Substance of Trnssciions Invalving the
_ Legsl Form of 5 Lense
rsic-:& Service Concesslon Arrangements: Disclosures g
SIC-31 Reveniue - Barter Transsctions hwl'vin:ﬁdvmmng
Services
|§1C-32 ,Immﬁbl:ﬁm-mmcm | o |
*Erandards and interprorations which will become affective rubreqient 1o December 1) X7
Mote: Standards and Iterpretations tgged as “Not Applicable™ are thess stand and interpretations which were
udn-;:wdhmﬂ::r:rrﬂlyhuun: uuu:ﬁmuﬂmdﬁrﬁt}'mqﬂni

December 31, 2017 and 2016,




Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators

I Year 2017 Year 2016 |
}'Fmﬂmhim Profit Margin 4.22% 2.37% |
!_ Return on Assels 0.38% 0.16% |

Return on Equity 0.48% 0.19% |
T Book Value per share : 0 64 0869 |
| EBMings per snare 0,0045  poo El_i
' Liquidity Curent Ratio | 1.020 1.014 |
| Debt ta Equity Dent ta Equity Ratic | - 02330 01465 |
| Asset to Equity Assets to Eguity Ratio | 1.2330 11465 |
| Interast Interest rate coverage rafio | B 173,286 8 1886 |

The Financkal Soundness Indicators ane compuled a3 follows
Profitability

Profit Margin % Profit margin = Nel income / Total Revenue x 100
Return on Assets %: Retum on assets = Met Income / Total Assets x 100

Return on Equaty % = Met Incoma / Total Stockhalders’ Equity x 100

Book Vaiue per share = Total Steckholders' Equity / Average Qutsianding Shares
Eamings per shane = Nel Income | Average Dutstanding Shares

Liguidiny:
Current Ratio = Currant Assets / Current Liahilities

Dbt o Equity
Debt 1o Equity Ratio = Total liabilities / Total Stockholders’ Equity

Assel to Equity Ralle = Total Assets | Total Stockhalders’ Equity
Interest rate coverage ratio = EBIT | Interest Expense



RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
Deficit, a5 adusted lo mailable for dividend dsirbution, begnning (R429, 158 160

Med incoma during the period 2526282

Dwefict {(B417 637 837]
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES) —

el .
CITY GF MAKATI 15,5, F-m e I .
[ » .

i CERTIFICATION
"
I, ANGELINE L. MACASAET, of legal age. Filipino and with office address ot Uinit 5-1. "-"
Floor, OFL Bailding, 100 C. Palanca comier Dela Rosa and Gil Streets, Legaspl Vilkuge, Mekon Oy,
alter having been duly swom in accordance with law, hereby certify that:

l. [am the duly appointed and incumbent Corporate Secretary of NOW CORPORATION
(CNOWT or the "Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virue of the
laws of the Philippines. with office address at 5-1, 3" floor, OPL Building, 100 C. Palanca comer [ela
Rosa und Gil Streets, Legaspi Village, Makati Ciiv.

.

2. The following directors and officers of the Corporation do not work for and are not

ermployed by any government office, tribunal, body or agency -

o Thomas G Aguine

. Mel Y. Velarde

SJose 5. Alejandro

S Wicenne Martin W, Arancta 1]

- Derard Bon. R Bautisia
Marlow B, Ubana

- Ramon g Tuazon

. Domingo C. Bonifacio

9 YWinnia W, "';’ngE

[0, Angeline L. Macasaet

P Vicenre 1. Pefanugva

12, D. Enrigue 0. Co

I3, Miguel Antonio 51 Regal
|4, Andre Gian P. Aguairne

i i o —

= LK

e a]

i This t:,'tr:it'lcnte i5 being issued 10 atest to the muwth of the foregoing facts and for
purpases of complying with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection
with the filing of the Corporation’s 2018 Definitive Statement {SEC Form 20-15).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. | have hereunto affixed my signature this 3 day of May 20158, m
Makat City.

fl

| @
ANGEL  MACASAET
Corporate Secrelory

5 quﬂlBED AND SWORN TO hefore me Mﬁ"% gplgnl "‘ﬂll]i alTanl pl:mmum

el .Hc i:1r:|:; 'ug,. it §

1B #0115 5 far B Ny 0
Doc. No,: '1 ; BTRMBELTE0E Jan 00 40 5wl
Page N ' S Rall g 5955
i) d MCLE Comalance No_ W00 1845 G e 20W
Book Na __5_;:) Linit 351 3 Fir Campon Ruses By
Series oF 2018 101 Urban Avenue_Brgy Pio o=l Bl

Maxal City
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| COMPANY INFORMATION B

Company s Email 2ddress Company's Taephore Mumber Mnidia Miamia
(632) T0-0461 | N/A !
(632) TSO-0211 /
(632) 750-0224 _J
R — Anewash Meeting (Nor# / Day) Fiacal st [Marih ! D]
bR NiA 12731

[ CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
The desiprated comtact pers0d MUST b an Dificer of tha Comporation

s of Cioraci Passin Ervail f3dracs Telephond Mumbery Katida humie
Atly. Angeline L. Macassel angeline. macasacl@ now- 7500211 MA
COTFp.LHn

| CONTACT PERSON's ADORESS

-
o —

Unit 5-1, 5th Floor, OPL Building 100 C. Painnea Street, Legaspi Village.
Makati City
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QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE EEI.':L:IFIITI!é
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER

1 metwmwm__w
2 Gmhﬁmﬂmwww& BIR Tax idertificaton No. 004-868-234

4 Exnc name of issuer as spacified in s chaner

NOW CORPORATION

5 Province, country o afher jurisdetion of incorporabion of arganization

MAKAT] CITY, PHILIPPINES
& Industry Cisssification Code [ ] secuseonly
7 Addness of issuer's principal offce Postal Cote

a Farmer name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since las! repoft

NIA

10 Samnﬁnmgiﬂurﬂpummmﬂaﬁwuamd ﬁnlmar:-nda.ursu:ﬁwﬂlandﬂnfmuﬁs.ﬂ.

Titte of each Class sdumber af shares of comman slack outstanding
and amount of debt oulstanding
__ COMMON STOCK 1517278350
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Yes [a] No [ ]



Pari |. Financksl informatian

itemd. Financial Statement

NOW CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FIMANCIAL
POSITION

Decambar 31,
PAarch 31, 2048 017
(Unsudited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Currant Assets
Casgh #10.2B8 TES R10.604, 156
Teade and Othar receivabies 183,075,662 167,843 224
Armeninl owed 1o related parkes 140,308,831 b5 955 288
Cther current assels 52,207,181 47,364 821
Total Current Assats 04,870,360 32,867 800
Honcurrant Assets
Irvastments in shares of stocks 1,288.278,350 1,285 270,350
Achvances from Affiiaies 23 5082 818 23,552 B8
Ol from related parties — et of curment 27 497 74 27 457 T44
Broperty and squipmernt - net 12573379 A.711.463
Oither noncument assels BE0, T4 730,715
Total Noncurrant Assets 1,353,803,065 1,349 820,080
TOTAL ASSETS 1,748 873 434 F*I:E'."‘I.'I'TEIEB‘E
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabllites
Accouns payable and accrusd Sxpensas 130,320,180 87347
Due to felated partes 207,716,953 164,067 254
i_pans Payable- current 50,000,000
Finance Lease Dbl « Cumant 141 048 161,454 345
Total Current Liabilties 388,178,181 315,616,841
Honcurrent Liabllities
Loans Payable- net of current portion . .
Finance Lease Obligation- net of curment porton 448,107 351614
Cther noncurrent Habilites 1,077,285 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,361,828 381 814
Total Liabilities 289 540,007 315.570,555
Equity Atiributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
Carmmaon 1,597, 278350 1817.278.350
Deposit for future stack subscription 264,000,000 264,000,000
Retained Eamings 417.631,887) (421,158,168;
Reyvaiualion 1.152 863 1,152 880
Equity Resarve (1,978,784) (1,878,764
Mon-controlling nerest (3 48T 206} {3 487,205}
Total Equity 4359 426 1355807 144

TOTAL LIBILITIES AND EQUITY

#1748 BT3.4353

B1.671.777.608

See accompanyng Nofes 10 Consolidated Financial
Stateiments



NOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSITHARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

March 31, 2018 Dacernber 31, 2017

{Unaudited) (Audited)
REVENUES
Service Revanue =15 858 3TH 126 666, 201
Sabes 13 BE4.671 Z%.688.063
_Others 221030 B0, 161
3345079 148 074 425
COST AND EXPENSES
Coast of senices 5,548,081 53 827 587
Cost of sas 3,514,083 21,880,861
Salanes and othas benefits 6,380,560 13,7720
Cuizide Sandices 1,958,351 548 a8z
Renial 2.204 492 1,738,038
Taxes and licensas @Oz 476 4 085 9949
Prolessional fees 110,000 2455621
Laght mnd waler 45 543 284014
Transpartation and travel 1444 8531 5 {26 BaT
Advertising end promotion G7 448 2357861
Depreciation srd amortzation 1,501,737 4411004
Regairs and mamisnance a7, 358 180576
Cam mumication 1,140,004 A 456,254
Reprasgrtaton 2 045,168 8227205
[Hfice supplaas 719,531 793,837
Cithers 1,138,334 1,076,501
Insarance 43,724 108, 204
friteresl 222 478 #2075
Provision on imparment 1058 on recelvables . 1844
Foresgn exchange losses{gains) -
Miscalianeous = E
28,852,671 140,013.251
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 4 552,408 B9E1 174
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX
Currant 1,486,126 ZETo 9
Deaimrred - .
_MET INCOME (LOSS } 3,826 281 6290216
Curency Transation Adjustment — Gain (Loss) s
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3 526.262 8280215
Haon-controll imtmrosts = =
3,5_25132 E'='-"EIL'I.21E

mmmmmm 0.0023 00045




NOW CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
Decamiser 31,
March 31, 2013 2017
(Unauditeg)  (Audied)
NET INCOME [ LOSS) ATRRIBUTABLE TO:
Equily holders of the Parent 3576 282 B 200,218
Mor-conirolling intensats
3556 282 8 790214
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cumuletive translation adjustment - 12.528
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [LOSS3) 3,526,282 8,302, T44
ATTRIBUTABLE TD:
Equity holdars of the panani 3.526.2682 i B4 554
Won-contralling interest (£ 840
3,526 282 £ 502, 744

e

See accompanying Neles to Financial Statemearnds



NOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Decambar 31,
March 31, 2018 2017
[Unaudited) {Avidibd}
CAPITAL STOCK
Authorlsed - 1,380,000,000 shares in 2006
and 40,000,000 sharas in 2006
lssued - 1,217,278 350 shares in 2008 and
23,000,000 shares n 2005
Aalznce o the baginning of tha yaar 1,517 2783560 1,517.278,350
Issuance
Balance at ond of the year 1.517.278,350 1,517 378 350
Deposit for future stock subscription 2454 OO0 000 21548, 00 00
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of the year (421,158,169 (427 650 225)
Ml Income (loss) 3,526 282 6,782 056
Ceficit (17631 88Ty (421,158,189
Equity Reserve {1,878, 784} 01,978, 7T54)
Cumulative Translation Adjusirrent 1,152,583 1,162,963
(418457 T18) (421 B84.000)
Man-controling eguity {3,487 206) {1487 .206)
Balance 31 end of year (421 544 B24) (425 471 206)
Total Eﬂ' 1,388 533 428 1,355 807,144

See pooompanying Nobtes lo Congolfidaled Financial Statemeris



HOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Dlecembar 31,
March 31, 2018 ams
{Linaudited) {Audited)
Ircome (Losa) befons ncoms tax 4 9892 408 EB61,174
Adyustmants for:
inleresat and Other chargaa(Mote 88 11) 222 418 52,015
Depraciation and amormEamon (Mot T & 14 1,601 737 4 411,001
Pravision on impalrment loss on receivables (Mole 4 and 14) - 1,940
Unreatized foreign sxchange koes -
Loss on disposal of propeity and equipment ;
intems! inbome & D) (72 .507)
Straight line adjustmeant on rent B.E33
Equtty in et losses of assocatas (Note 8) -
{iperating income {loss) bafore working capital changes B.711615 12,950 554
Decrase increasa) mc
Trade and ofwer receivabbes (15,132,368) {52 412 796
Gthar cument assets (8457 358) (v, 05,878
Incraase (decrease)
Actouis payable and accrued expenses 16,252 521 20 778 522
Net cash generated from (used in) operations 1,374,810 (34 740, 198]
inhenast receded # 848 5474
Income (axas paid {1,488, 128) i(2,570,258)
interest paid {222 416] (52 108)
Bt cash Nows Trom (used i) operalng activifies (308, TRE) (37 457 BEE)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
[ncraases n
Dy 1o redsted paries [, 253, 5653) (23 446 BET)
e moncisTen] asssts {121,088 (354 AB5)
Aoguisition of proparty and equipment (Nole 7) 13.961.916) {5,458, 047
Inweastments 2
Mot cash Bows from (used in) nvesting acthvitlas (48,438,538 _[26.788.911)




CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY

|veraass in amowis owed to retalad paries
Proceads from sale of kprof shares
Paymenl of loans payable

Payment of firance \aa5e

teet cash flows from financing actities
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AT END OF THE YEAR

57,339,883 73,832,783
168,800
{B7.582)

57,339,803 74,014 881
B.504 569 8. 267,777
10,504, 1568 4, 396 419
10,288, 765 10,504,108

Sae accompanying Noles fo Consolidaled Finandial Statemants



NOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

¥TD January to March
_ 2018 _o17

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash #10 284 765 5414 Sadd
Trade and Oiher receivabies 183,075 58 116 590 AT
Amount owed 10 related partes 140,308 831 T7.0T3 462
Oither current assets §2,267 181 28,830 981
Total Current Assets 364 870 368 298 027 B4
Moncurmanl Assots
irvestrments in shares of stocks 1289778350 1,288,278 350
Advances from affilates 23,582 818 23,592 818
[ue from relsted parties — net of current 27 487,744 27 030,711
Progary and egquipment - net 125731270 5SA7 928
Cithel roncumrent assets - nat of sccumulated amorization of

Computer soffware amounting to POoS 458 and PBEE 562

A5 of Decamber 31, 2075 and 2014, w 860,774 584,274
Total Honcurrent Assels 1,353,903 055 1,348 178 081
TOTAL ASSETS 1 748873434 1,574 205865
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
focounts payable and poEEl BIpETREE 130 320,180 127,006, 8
Dise to related panies 207,716,853 100,306,584
Loans Payable - current 50,000,000 £5.570
Finance Lease — cument 141,048
Total Current Liabilities 388 178,181 2235 408 503
Honcurrant Liabilithes
Finance iaase obligation-net of current partian 284,541 445,107
Githar nenaurrent fabilitiss 1.077.285
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,361,826 448 107
Total Liabilities 380 540,007 221857510
Equity Attributable to Eguity Holders of the Parent
Comman 1597278350 1,517 27R.350
Dieposit for huture stock subscriplion 264 000,000 264, 000 000
Retained Eamings (421 158,980)  (427,950.225)
Hevalualion 1,152 B63 1,140,435
Bl Income A 835 782 1.012. 755
Equity reserve {1,878, 7o)

Intaeest {3,487 206) (5,132 BEO0)

Total Equity 1356333425 1.350.348.355
TOTAL LIBILITIES AND EQUITY 1, 74R £73433 1405 125,436

Ses RocompaTying Notes o Consalidated Finencial Siaterments
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HOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Y¥TD January ta March
1 2018 2017

REVENUES
Sarvice FRevenua 10,858 378 18,776,743
Eaiag 13,854 871 12, 147 282
Cithess 22,030 10,461

33,845,078 B2 754 445
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost ol sanioss £ 540 081 8,318,383
Cist of salas 3514083 5,556 063
Salarkes and other banofils 6,380,560 3 281 681
COutside Sarvces 1,858 351 4 030 584
Runtal 2 204 452 424 Qisd
Taxes and licansas G2 476 2. T00 Sad
Frodassional fees 140,000 540,000
Light and water 45 503 454 TR
Transportation and travel 1,444 831 1452 381
Edvariising and promaticn 67 443 233,035
Depreciabon and Bmortization 1,501,737 B40, 258
Repairs and maintenanca B7,358 48 080
Communication 1,146,004 1,088 7E8
Reproseniation 2,045 168 1373474
Oiffice supples s 7T 464
Orffuara 1,136,338 327518
insarance A3 134 RO73
interesl 222 418 13,064
Prowision on impairment joss on moenables L .
Foreigrn exchange losses(gains) -
Miscodamnaous

28.852 871 31,721,680
INCOME [LDSS) BEFORE Im IA.'K 4,992,4-’5‘9 1,042,785
BROVISION FOR INCOME TAX

Cousrgnt 1.&.1 28
Deferred -
HET INCOME 3,506,282 1012755
Currancy Translalon i — Eain - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 3586202 {042,755
Mon-controlling Interests - -
3sge2e2 1012755

Basic [Ddutad Eamings {Loss) Per Share 00023 00T
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NOW CORPORATION

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

YTD January bo March

2018 amr

HET LOSS ATRRIBUTABLE TO:
Equty holders of the Parent 3,528 282 1.MLT755
Hon-confrolling merests

3,528 282 1,012 755)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Curniilatve transiation adusbmsan =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 3,526, 282 1,012.755
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holdars of the parent 3,026,282 1,012,755
Kon-controlling nterest

358280 1012785

Lag arcampanying Motes lo Financial Statements



NOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

¥TD January bo March

2018 017
CAPITAL STOCH
Autharized - 1,360,000,000 shares. in 2006
and 40,000,000 shares in 2006
jsauad - 1,217 278,350 shanes in 2008 and
28,000,000 shares in 2005
Ealance al the beginning of the year 1,517, 218050 1,517 278,350
Is-i-l.li_nﬂﬂ
Balance at ond of the year 1,517.278.360 1,517.278.350
Dopoait for Futurs Stock Subscription 264,000,000 264 000,000
RETAINED EARNINGS
fatance al baginning of the year (421,158,180) (427 960.223)
et Income {loss) 3526282 1012755
Drafica (417,631,887) (426,937.470)
Eqguity Resane {1,878, T84)
Cumidative Translaten Adpstmant 1,152 963 1.140:435
Non-controling eouity (3,487 206) (8,132 960)

Aalance st and of yaar

1‘211H‘lw} ‘.‘mlm|%3

Total Equity

Ses accompanying Noles fo Consolidated Financial Stafemesnis

1,359.333.428 1350348355

e ——
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HOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIMARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

¥TO January 1o March

o Zna 2017
indomi (Loss]} balore Incoma tax 4 052 405 1.0%2, 765
Adjustmants for

Interest and Other chargas(Mole 8 & 11) 222,416 13564
Depreciaton and amonization (Nole 7 & 14) 1.501.737 B48 258
Provision an imoaiment loss on mecaivables (Note 4 and 14} =
Unrealized foregn exchangs loss _
Levss on daposal of proparty and equipment * -
interest Income (4,548 (481}
Prowision on Impairient koss on other assets
Equity in net losses of associates (Note 8}
Operating income (loss) belone working capital changes 4. T11.815 1,670,518
Decasse (iIncreasse) nc
Trade and other recenvables [B, 475, DB5) {5,645 248)
Cher curmant assets (19, 560, B8 (21,280, TEE)
Incregse (decresse)
Accouwits payable and acorued expenses 57.218.261 3,383,775
et cash generated from (used in) operafions (22.438.51T) (21,656,723
Irfmrpal received 4348
oM laeks paid {1,466, 126}
Intarest paid 222 416}
Ned cash flows from (used in) operating activities (24,120,113 (21,658,723)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HeEase N
Dus to related partios (63,235 368) (4677719
Cithar noncurrant assets {272.500) [153.28T)
Acquisition/Sale of proparty and equipment (Note 7) (8,985 451) 26, 762
Invasiments &
Met cash Bows from jused in) mesting acthiies {70,493, 320] L3804 2040




< il

CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY

Incressa in amoanis cwad o rekated parhes 108 487 654 29 478102
Fayman of lcans payatls

Faymant of finance leass

Nel cash flows from financing aciivitins {0B, 487 654 26, 470 100
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

MET INCREASE |(DECREASE) IN CASH 13874229 1008125
CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,444 Gad 4,306 419
CASH AT END OF THE YEAR 18,268,765 5414 544

Sea aocompin ying Notes fo Consolidaled Financial Staternents
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HOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIARIES
AGING OF RECEIVABLES

31-Mar-18 3 -Mar-7
Currand 3,080 302 13,624,820
1 -30 days past due 14,668,571 8 a4 845
31 -80 days pas! dus 11,160 819,523
B1 -0 days past due 1,304 202 12 584,304
o 81 dus 183 712277 18 830 318
Tolal 183,075,802 116,508 BET
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NOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

. Corporats Information

Corporate Background

NOW Corporation {formarly Information Capital Technology Vianiures, Inc.; the Parent Company) staried &s 2
duly licensad invastmant house when il was incorporated on June 5, 1988 end registerad In the Phiiapine
Seeurities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as MF Shroder & Co., Ino. it was ongnally a wholly osned
subsidiary of Amalgamated Invesiment Bancorparstion (AIB} and was indially engaged in the purciase and eale
af securities.

in 2000, AR expanded the sarvices of the Parent Company by establishing an information technalogy (IT)
anabled faciity geared towards sarvicing he private equity naeds of small and medum enterprises- by matching
ihem onine with direct aquity investors. Hence. the Parert Company's Arficle of Incorporation (ADI) was
changed 1o expand its primary purpose of engaging in the business of securilies brokerage through the uge of [T,

On Juy 23, 2002, the Parent Company's Board of Directors (BO0) and stockholders approved the offer of up 1o
26 000,000 sharas from the Parent Company’s unkssued common stock through initial public offerng (IFL)  The
apglication for the IPO of the Parent Company was approved by the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) and SEC
on June 11, 2003 and July 30, 2003, respaciively. The Parent Company was lisled in the PSE on July 23, 2003
with an issus/shars price of

¥1.00 per shars.

In 2008, the PSE approved the epplication for the listing of the additional 1,288,278,350 common shares with an
issuaishare price of #1.00 per share to cover the share-for-shase awap transactions with MNOW Telecom, s
(WO Telocom) sharsholdens (see Nobe 8).

|nJu|,mmmwmmmmwwmlmmmlmmrhecnanga.n
its primary purpose of engaging In the secwrtes brokerege business to & lechnology media  and
tetecommunicalion (TRT) business.

n August 2010, Ine SEC approved Rurther the amendment of tha Parent Company's AQI, remaving the pre-
amplive rghis of gharsholders wth respect to subscription 1o any ciass of e Parent Company's shares of stock.

[in Decamber 16, 2010, the Parent Company's BOD approved the amendment in is A o nolude secandany
purpose. The inclusion of the secondary purpose wes subseguently ralifed by the Paront Compay's
stockhohdars on July 2. 2001 gnd was appioved Dy the SEC on Augus! 25, 2011. The addstional secondary
pUrposes mlude

a  Provding professional senvices and manpower in the field of THT,

b, Acling as commission agent, manufacturers represeniative. or principal for the purpose, sate, disinbutan,
manufechura, assembly, import of expor of any and 2l classes of malenals. meschandise, spplies and
commodifies of every kind and nature; and

& Engaging in the business of general and rotail merchants, Wragers, faciors, agents, miEnufECmrs,
processors, dealng in or wih any and all classes of materials, merchandise. supples and commodilies af
every hnd and rature,



b

On Dacembar 21, 2016, tha Parent Company's BOD approved the fing of he Registralion Statemant. Listing
Application and the terms and conditions and such other relevant acts in connection with tive misnded pubkc
aMedng of proferred shares of the Parant Company

Chenge in Comorste Name
The SEC approved the Parent Company's application to change ifs name from MF Shroder & Co,, Ife o
Cashuounds, Inc. in January 2002 and Information Capital Technology Venlures, Inc. in September 2006.

Subsequently, on August 18, 2013, the SEC approved the change in the Parent Comipany's naine 1o it current
carparate neme, MOW Conporation.

Cartificates pnd MemodEiiiee o T and o
On March 22. 2005 & Memarandum of Agreement (MOA} was executed by AIB and Gambos Holdings. Ine.
JGHI), wharsby AIE agreed to sell and GHI agreed fo purchase 18,171,286 ghares of the Parent Company 21 an
aggregate purchase prce of B74.385000, The salw of the Parent Company's sheres became effective on
Augunt 20, 2005 resuting to 8 B8 B7% ownership interes! of G in the Parent Company

On March 10, 2008, the National Telecommunication Commissicn (NTC), through the efforts of IMX Broadband
ine (IBl), issued a Carifficate of Registrasion (CoR) 12 the Parern Cormpany 1o allow & o opérale and mantain
yalue ndded sendces (VAS) and voloe over intemet pratocol (VOEF) services in all cies and miumicipalities
natioswida,

On Movember 27, 2015, NTC ssued CoR to the Parent Campany thal will paulhorzed # a5 & WAS provider for
services auch a8 doud hosting services, virtual private network, mulimedia content and program serices. ofiling
mm&nd{mdmmmmmmnmmﬂﬂmmnumd
messaging services, The Cofl is valid for a period of five (5] years which will expire on Mevember 26, 2020

In 2015, e Parent Company entersd into throe (3) separate agreements with NOW Talecom, GHT Meahsark,
Ine (GHT) mnd News and Enfertsinment Network Corporation (Newsnet) (the Pasiee), wharein fhe Parties
inutuaily agreed to collsborate and interconnect thair mspective nebworks in order for the Parent Company io
prowide YAS 1o the public such as doud hosting services. virl private nabwork, miulimadia conteni @nd
GrogrEm sanvices, online game services, cloud-based multimedia conlferencing senvices. web Peating and cloud
pased mall and messeging sanvices (WVAS contracis).

On Dacember 5. 2016, the Paries agreed 1o amend Chapter 5 of their VAS confracts to add prowision on
revenye sharng o 1he broadband revenus,

On December 23, 2016, the Parses further agreed 1o amend their VAS contracts to include additions! fams fram
actual usage of bandwidth and ofher provision on charging tothe Parent Company on 8 cosf-plus margin
BITANGE WS

The Farent Company's regisiered address s Unil 54, 5" Floor OPL Bullding, 100 Carlee Palanca 5t Legaspl
Viltage, Makati Gity.

Audhonzatign for lssuance

in ths March 15, 2018 Ragulasr BOD Meeting. the BOD delegated o the Chairman, the Presidand, and the Chist
Finance DFicer the authority to approve the issuance of the consolidated financial statements of the Parani
Company and its subsidianes (collectively refarmed 1o herein as B Group) 28 of Decamber 31, 2017, 1018 and
2015 and for the years then ended.

The consolidalsd financial statements of the Group 25 of Decembes 31, 2017, 2078 and 2015 and for tha yoars
e anded wers autonzed for lssue by the Chairman and President an
April B, 2018.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Bass of Preparation
The consolidated financial stalements of the Group have been prepared under the historical cost basis, |ncluding
the available-for-sale (AFS) finenciel asset that i not gquoted in an active maset  The conanlidated Snancal

siatements aro presented In Philippine peso (), which i the Parent

Companys functional curmency.  Amounts are rounded to e nearest Philipping pesa, excep! whas pinEnwise
eneficated

Stalement of Compliance
mmwmmdmnﬂwmmmﬂmmmnmwm
Financlal Reparting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis of Corsolidation

The consolidated financial statements inclede the Bnancal statements of the Parent Company and the inllcweng

subsidaries as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and for thee yenars then anded

Year of Maiure of Percardage of Dwnership

Incorporation Besiness 2T 2018 015

J-Span IT Senices, Inc. (J5IT) 2011 Sanica 100% 100%% TE0%%

Porenn SEA, Inc., (Poreon) 2011 Manutscturing 100%: 100% 100%
|- Fpanunce Consulting
) inemational, Imc

(ERCIE) 2011 S 100% 100%6 1004%
I-Professsional Search Metwark,

Ing. (l-Professional) 2012 Sonace TE% 1 0% 1000

Goltrager intersctve, ine. (i1} 2000 Senice BT% B Br%

Adl five subsidiaries ware incorporated in the Philppines except for JSIT, which was incorporated in Japan

(in January 25, 2017, Valarde, Inc. enteed into a subscrption agreement with l-Profassional for fhe subscrpion
of 6750 common shares af the lafter, representing 25% interast, thereby reducing the ownarshiop of e
Company in i-Professional from 100% to TE%. This resulted to an equily resense amounting to #1178 T4 as of
December 31, 2097,

The Group controfs an investes if and only if the Group has:

. Powar over the mvastas (i.e. sxsting rights that give i the current sbilly o direct Bve relevant aclivilies of
the investea)

s  Exposure, or fights, to vanable returns from its involvement with the investee, end

« The ability to use its power ovar the investee 1o affect its returns

When fhe Group has less than 8 majority of the valing or simitar rights of an Invesles, ihe Group consaders all
relavent facts and circumsiances n assessing whether il bas power over an investee, including’

s The contractual mTangement with the offver vote holders of the investee
«  Rights afising from other contractual arrsngements
v  The Group's woting rights and potential voling rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not i controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicata thal there are
changes 1 ane or mare of the thres elaments of control Consolidation of @ subsdiary beging when the Group
obtaing control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsaliacy, Assels, liabilites
incame &nd expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year @re inciuded in the saiement of
mmpreimhtﬁmmﬁmﬂuﬂhhﬁmgﬂmmﬂunlmdm1m5rumnaammmntmlme
subsatiany

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OC) are attributed 1o the equity hoidens of
the parent of the Group and to Bhe non-controliing Rlaresis, avan i this resulis in the non-confroling interests
having a deficll balance  Whan necesssry, adjustments are made o the firancs! siatemants of subsidianas 1o
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hring their accounting polices inta line with the Sroup's accounting polickes. All intra-group assets and llabilies,
oquity, income, expanses and cash flows relafing to transactons between members of the Group are elminatss
I fuilt on consakdation.

A change in the ownenship interest of 8 subsidiary, without a loss of conirod, 1S @ccounted for 55 &n equty
transaction, | the Group loses conirol ovar & subsidiary, it derecognizes the related sssets (iIncluding goodwill)
baiblities, non-coniroding interest and olher companents whie any resultant gain of loes |s recognized in profil or
lzsz. Any investmend relained is recognized at fair value,

Mon-controlling interest represent the portion of prafit or loss and net assats in the subtidianies not hald by tha
Group and ame presenied saparatsly in the profil or loes and within equity in the consolidated financial position.
ssparaiely, from the equity aftributabla 1o equity holders of the parent of the Group Transactons with non-
cantroling inlerests are accourted for s equity holders transactions. Any excess or daficd of conadaration paid
over tha carrying amount of

nan-controlling interest acquired |s recognized in equity of the Group a5 “Equily feseive’

Thir atqussition af @n additional cwnership interest in subsidiary without a charge in contrel is accounted for as an
equily ransaction in accordance with PAS 27, In transactions where the non-coniroling inferssl & acquied or
sald without losg of conirel, any axcess or defict of conaideration paid over the camying amounl ol the non-
controling intevest s fecognized &s part of “Equity reserve” account in the equity aftributable fo the equily haldars

of tha Papani Company,

hanges in Accounting Folicies and Disclogune:

'I‘htﬂm'upn'rrlhlh certain standards and amendments, which ene efflectve for annual
penods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, Adoption of these proncuncements did nat have a significan
mpaci on ihe Company's financial posdion or parformance unless olhenwise indicated.

«  Amendmentsio PFRS 12, Dizcloswe of infenesis & Oiber Enfities, Clanifcanon of e Soope
of the Standam [mﬂmumﬂmmpﬂmﬂmhmm Cygle]

The amendments clarify that the disclosurs mquiements In PFRS 12, othar than those relating 1o
summanzed knencal informatien, apply o an enlity's interast in & subsidiary, 8 joint vantune o an assacinls
{ar @ partion of fis interest in @ joint ventura or an associale) Mal is classhed

{or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

Adootion of these amendments did nol have any Impact on the Group's consoldaied finandal statemants.
»  Amendments to PAS T, Staternenl of Caalt Flows, Disclosim iniliathe

The amendments require entites to provide. disclosure of changes in thesr lisbilities arising from financng
{$uch 28 Toreign exchangs gains of lnsses] The Group has provided the required information in Note 20 to
the financial etalements. As allowed under the transifion provisions of the standard, the Company did not
present comgarative information for the year ended December 31, 2016

«  Amendments o PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of Defermed Tax Assets for Unrealired Losses

The smerdments clarify that an enfity needs 1o consider whetheor tax law restricts the sourtes of tawadle
profis against which it may make deductions upon the reversal of the deductible lemporary difference
related to unrealized losses Furtharmors, fhe amendments provide guidance on how an enfity should
determine fifure taxabie profits and explain the crcumstences in which texable proft may include the
recovery of soma assets for more than their carmying amaunt

The amandments has no effect on the Group's consolidated financial position and performance s the
Group has no deductible temporary differances or assels thal are In he scops of he amerdments

ASmEnt werst CHUC i Clagsifcalso
The Group presenis sesals and liabilikes in the consnlidated statemant of finarcial position based on curren] o
nodcurrent classification. An pssetis classified as current when i is:
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Expected 1o be realized or intsnded to be soid or consumed in normal eperabing cyce
Hedd primarily for the purpose of trading.
Expacted io be realized within twelve months after the repenting period: or
Cash and cash equivalent Lniess reelficied
Ernmhuingm:mngadulumdhsltm:llmwfmmmmemaﬂnmmpmlmperm

Al gitver amsets are classified as noncumant
A liabifity |s classified &5 curmanl whien:

it 5 expected o be settied in normal operating cycle:

I# & hadd pomiarily fioc the purpose of trading:

i1 i& due bo be settied within teelve months afler the reporting penod, of

There is no unconditlionad right to defer the setllement of the lisbility for af least fwelve manths afler the
repating pesiod.

The Gioup classdies all oiber labiities s noncuranm.

[ I B

Cash
Cash includes cash on hand and with banks,

Finangigl instruments
Financial instuments are recognized in the consalidated statement of Anancial pesiion when the Group becomes
a party to the contracius! provisions of the instrument.  The Group detarmines the clagsification of A= financal
assats of initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-ovalustes this designafion al asch reposting dabe.

All reguiar way purchases and sales of financisl assets are recognized on the settiement date.  Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assefs thal require delivery of assats wilhin (he period
genarally established by reguiation or convention in $e marked place.

Frtancial instruments are recognized initially af teir vaiee of the considerabon given (in the case of &n asset] or
recalved (in the casa of a fiability). Except for financial assets &t fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), e il
measurament of inancial assets includes transaction cosls.

Financial gssets under PAS 38 ame classified as either financi@ assets al FVPL, loans and recenablas, hesd-lo-
matunty (HTM) investments or AFS fnancial asseis The Gmup's financial assets are of the nature of icans and
recaivabies and AFS fnancial assats. As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the Group has no oulstanding
financisl assets at FVPL and HTM investimenis.

Unter PAS 38 financial liabiities are classified as FVPL or ofher financial Mabilties. The Group's financial
ligbilifies are of the nature of other financial liabilities. As of December 31, 2077, 20718 and 205, the Group has
ne sutstanding tnencial liabilltes al FYPL.

Loans arxd Recefvaiies

Lians and mecevabies are fnancial assets with fiesd or delerminable payments thol are noi guoted in an active
markel These are not enfered into with the intention of mmadiate or shor-term resale and sre nat classified as
financial assets heid for trading. designated as AFS financial assets or designated at FYPL. This accounting
policy refates to “Cash”, "Trade and other receivabies” and “Cue from relsted partes” aooounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position

Logns and receivables are recognized initially at fair value, which normally pertaing to the bilable amount. After
imitial megsprement, mans and fecelvables ane subseguantlly measured af amorized coal wing the offecive
imteresi meihod. 1ess allowance for impainment losses, Amortizod cost o caltulated by (eking into account sy
discount o premium on acouisiion and fees that are an integral part of the efecive intereet rate.  The
amertization if ary, is included in the “Interest income” accound in the consolidated statemant of comprehensive
incoma. The losses arising from impainment of ioans and recalvables ame recogriced in the prafit or less.
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AFS Finarmcial Assals
AFE financis assets are those investments which are designated as such of do not quelly to be classifies an
designated as FYPL, HTM investmants or loans and receivebies. They are purchased and held Indefinitaly and
may be sald in response o liquidity requirements or changes in markel conditions.

Aflar initial measurement, AFS financial assels are subsequently measured al ar vaiwe  The unvealced gains
and loases Brising from the fair vauation of AFS financial assets are excluded, el of tax, from reported eamings
and are reporied as @ separate sccount {ned of tax where applicabie) in the equity section af tha consohidaled
stoterment of financial position.

Equily investmants classified as AFS financial assets that do not have guoted market pice in an active marksl gnd
wihose fair value cannod be reliably measured am carried at cost.

When fhe mvestment i disposed of, ha cumulative gains or losses previously recognizeed In equity is recognad in
trve profil or less. Dhvidends eamed on holding AFS financial assels are recognized when the right of paymen! his
besn established. The losses arsing from imparment of such investments are recognized as provision for
imparmeant losses in the profit and ioss.

This aceounting policy retates to the Group's investmant in NOW Telecam.

Oihar Fimancial Lisbiliiios

issued financial instrumants or their components, which are not designated af FVPL, are classified &s other
financial kabiflles, where the substance of the contractual arangement results in the Group having s obligation
wilhar io delver cash or anofher fnencial esset 1o the hobder, or o satsfy the obligation olhar than by the
exchange of & fied amount of cash or anofher financial asset for o fived numbar of own equily shares. The
companents of issued financial instruments that contain both lisbdty and equity slemants ane aceaunted for
soparately, with the equity companent being assigned the residual amount after seducting from ihae instrument as
& whals, fee armount separstaly determined as the fair value of the Eabilty component on the date of issun

Oiner finandal flabilities sre recognized at falt value of the considedation received less dieclly atinbulatie
ranaaction costs.  After inittal measurement, ofher financial liabifities ere subsequently measured 3 amotzed
coit uming the effective interes! mathod

Amortized cost s calculated by taking into account any relaled issus costs, discount or premum - This
accounting policy applies primarily o the Group's "Accounts payable and accrued axpenses’, "Due io (elated
paries”, “Loans payable” and other obligations that mest B above definition (other than lakilities covered by
oiher socounting siendards, such as income tax payable)

Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWTa)

CWTs, included under "Cther currant assets™ account in the consolidated statement of financial posiion, are
armount withheld from income subject to expanded withholding texes. CWTs can be ublized s paymant for
income taxes provided thal these are propery supported by cerificaies of creditabie Gx wilhhieid &l souroe
subect io the nules on Philippne income laxalion. CwWVTs which are expecied o be ubliced as payment ot
incormie LEes within twoke months are classiffed as current nsset. CWTs are stated af MRV

Value-ndded Tax (VAT
Revenuas, expanses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, If applicabie.
Whan VAT Fom sales of goods andior services {output VAT) excaeds VAT passed on from purchases af goods
or services (nput VAT], the excess ks recognized as payable In the conscidated statement of financal position.
Whan VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) excesds VAT from sales of goods antlior
services (outpul VAT, the excess is recognized as on assa! in ihe conediidated staternent of financial pogdion 1o
e extant of the recoverable amount.

Fair ¥alue Meaguremen|

Falf value is the price that would be received to sall an assel or paid o transfer a liabdty in an orderty transaction
peiwean marke! paficpants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement s based on e
presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the kabilty takes place sither

« | the principal market for the asset or kabilty, or
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« I the absence of a pincipal markes, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advaniageous marke! musi be acoassible te by the Group.
The fair valus of an asset or a Habiity is measured using fhe assumplions thal market paticpants would use
uhmpﬁmgmuuﬂmlhﬂhr.mmmllmmpmmmnmmmhm iberest,

The Groug uses valyation tzchniques that are appopdate In ihe circumBlances and for which sufficient data ara
avatable to measure fair valus, madmizng the use of relevant observable inputs and minimiring the use of
unsbasrsable inputs.

All assets and liabiliies for which fair valye i measured or disclosed in thi consolidated Tnancal statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as Toliows, based on Bwe lowest level inpul that i sgrifican
{o e fakr value measurement & 8 whale:

W LW1-M{WMHM|HWMHMﬂMMWM

] Lmi-?ﬂurﬁuﬁuﬂrﬂmfmmﬁmﬂwlmlmlhﬂmwbslgr-‘ﬂr.nrﬂtnmtmrvum
miepsurement s direclly of ingdirectly obsenvabis

«  Leval 3 - Valushon technigues for which the lowest level wnput that is significant fo the falr vk
rreasuramant is unobsenmabe

For aseate and lisbiliies that are recognized in the consolidated financial staleMEents On @ racumng bagg, the
determines whethar transfers have ooccurred between Leveds In the hiersrchy by re-assessing
WEMWMMMMhpmﬁmttwwﬂﬂﬁn]ummummmlul“hﬁﬂl!hﬂ
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and of sach reporting peniod.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group his determined classes of assets and liabilibies on the hads
of e nature, charactenisiics and risks of the assel or liability and the leve! of the fair value herarchy as

ivglained above.

mgaiment of Financial Agsets
Carmad & Amoriied Cost
The Group assesses at each reporing date whethar there is cbjsctive ewdence that 8 financai or group af

financeal assets in impainsd.

|rthﬂrsuhjaﬂnamldumiu!mmhmmmﬁundﬂm;mmammmﬂ i2g.
receivables) has besn incurmed, the amount of the loss & measured as he diflersnca batwean the aasel's
cairying amaunt and the present value of estimated fulure cash flows (excluding future credit losses Fal have
Aot been incurred) dscountad &t the financial assel's onginal effeclive interest rate.  Time value & generally na1
considerad whan the afied of discounting is not maleral The camying amoun of the assat shalf be reduced
aithar dirmclly or through the usa of an allowsnca account. The emount of the loss shall ba recognized in profif ar
Inss

Tm-fjmnp!MWMWMNMHEMIMHMWHMEIMI
nmmwwmmmmnﬁmhm.uhtmhtmnnl.MruiduaHrH:lnﬁﬂam
if it s determined that no objeclive evidence of mpairment exists for an individually assessed financial sssel
mmmﬂwmt,nmumﬁﬂdhumpﬂlﬂmmmﬁmr credit sk
sharacteriabcs and that group of inancial assets m enllectively assessed for impaiment.

Thote characlerstios sre relevant 1o the estmabion of fulure cash flows for group of swch assets by being
indicative of tha deblors’ ahility to pay all ameunts sue according to e contractual temms of he asseta being
pvaiusted. Assets thol are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairmen| l08s i, or
continues jo be, recognized are nol induted in & collective assesamant of impaimant

i, in 8 subsequant pedod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrsase can be relabed
ochsectively 4 an even socurming after the impairment was recognized, the previeusly recognized mpsirment e



e

s reversed.  Any mubssquent reversal of an impairment less ks recognizad in e profit or loss, o the axent thal
thia carying value of the assst does nol exceed ifs amortized cost a1 the reversal date

AF5 Financial Assels Camed & Cos!

If thare is ohjeciive avidence that an impalrment loss has been incurmed on an unNQUOMEH Bquiy mstrament [l
doss nol kave qucted prics @ an active market and thal i5 not casred af Tair value because iis fasr value cannal
be measured refiably, the smount of the Impaiment loss is measured as the differsnce belwean tha gamying
amount of e unquoted equity instrument and the present valse of estimated futurs cash fiowe discounted at the
el inarkat rate of raturn for a similar financis! asset such imparment loks shall not be eversad

Derecogrtion of Financial Assets and Liabilites

Financiel Assols

£ financial asset (or, where applicable. & part of a financial asset or part of a Group of simiar financal assets) s
cerscoprized whens:

s tharights lo receive cash flows from the assst have axpined,

«  the Group retains the ght to receive cash fows from the ssssl, bul has assemed an obligation 1o pay them
in full withoul material detay 1o & third party under 8 ‘pass-through' arrangemant. or

= e Group has barsfered is rights o receive cash flows from the sseet and eithor (3] has fransfamad
substontialy sl the risks and rewarnds of fhe asset or (b) has neither tranglemed nor retzened substantially ail
the righs @nd rewarss of the assat but has transfered controd of e Bssel

Whete the Group has transferred its nghts io receive cash fiows kom an asset of has entefed o & ‘pase-
through' afrangemant and has nether ransfermed nor retsined substantially all the nisks and rewards of e assel
nor ranstermed control of the asset, the asset s recognized 1o the axtend of the Group's continuing invalvermant in
the mssel  Continuing involvement that takes fhe form of a guaranioe over the tanstermed assel s measured at
ihe lower of the onginal camying amount of the asset and the maximurm amount of consideration fal the Goup
could be raquited 1 repay.

Whare continuing involvement takes the form of a weithen andior purchased oplion (including a cash-siflled
sption o similar provision) on the transfermed asset the extent of the Group's conhinuing inwohrament is ihe
amsunt of the transferred assat that the Group may repurchase, excepl that in the case of a wrifien put ogtion
ﬁnﬁﬁg-wmﬂmnrlkﬂumwmmmmhirm-.Eﬂﬂﬂerrlulmaﬂmw'#
continuing Invelvemant is Timiied o the lower of the fair valug of the transferred assel and Ihe option xercise
pnem

On derecognition of a finaccial assel in its entirety, the difference batween the camyng emaount and the sum of
m}lhemﬂrﬂmmlmﬂﬂnﬂdnﬂmmmmmmmiﬂﬂhmmmmm By
cumﬂnﬂwgnhwmlnthuhmmgnmddm:ﬂvhmﬂphmgﬂndhmnmﬁwm

Fitnarscial Liobiliies

A financial liakility is derecognized whes the obligation under the lkabdity is discharged or cancelled or has
enpired.  Whene an exsting fnanciad lighifty iz roplaced by another from Ihe same lender on subsiantaiy
diffarent tarma, or the terma of an exisfing lability are substantally modified, such an vchange or modificalion &
realed a5 a derecognition of the onginal liability and the recognition of & new lishiity, and the difference i the
respoctive cafrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetiing Financial Instruments

Financial assets and fnancial iabities are offieel and the net amount is reparied in the consalidied siatement of
financial position if, and only i, there is a currentty enforceabls kegal right to offeel the recognared amousnls Bnd
ihers is-an nention to sethe on a net basis, of te realize the sssat and tatiie the lisbility simullaneously  The
Group essesses thal it has & currantly enforceable right of offsat if the right is not contingant on & Rure svent
and |s lagally erforcesble in the nommal course of businees, evenl of defaull, and avent of insobwncy of
bankrupicy of the Group and all of the counferparties

Investment n Associate
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An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant mfluence, Significant influerice is the power to
pariicipste in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investss, bul is nel contol or join control ouer
those policies. The considerotions made in determining significant influance ara simdar (o those necessmry 10
determing combol over SunSidrEnes.

Thie Growg's imvesimen in @8 agsociate Is acgounted for uaing the eguity mathad

Under the equity maned, the investimaent in an associate s indially recognaed af cost  The carying amount of
ihe investrment is adjusied 10 recognize changes in the Group's share of nit assefs of the associate since he
senuistion date, Goodwill relating 1o the associate or ks included In the camying amount of ihe Pvesiment pnd =
neither amaortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associale is shown on the faoe of the consolidalad
statement of comprehensive income oulside operaling profit and represents profit or loss after tax.  \VWhen fhe
Group's shane of iDsses exceeds the Group's Imterest in an equily-sccouned investes, the carmying amount of
I Irtvestment, inchuding any leng-termn inerests that form part thereof, is reduced to 2o, and the recognition of
Fether losses s discontinued excapt o the axtent thal the Group have an obligation or have made payments on
bohalf of the investes. The consclidated financial statements of the essociate are prepamd for the same
reporting period as the Group  When necessary, adjustiments are made 1o bring the accounting polcies in fne
wilh those of the Group,

hNer application of the equity mathod, thi Group datermines whethar it 15 necassany 1o reCognice an mpasment
jass o s invesiment in s associate, Al each raporting date, the Group delenmines whother there is objeciive
auisence that the mvesiment n e associate |8 Impalred.  If there is such evidence, Ihe Gioup calbulstes e
amiount of impairmen! as the dferance betwaen the recoverable amount of the assocate and its camying valus,
s recognizes the loss s “Equity in nel samings of an assocate” i profil or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the assaciate the Group measures and recognizes any retasined
investment at its fair value, Any difference batween tha carmying amount of the sssociate upon loss of significant
rfluence or joint controd and the fair vales of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized
i profif o loss.

Progery and Equiprmant

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulaled depreciation and sccumulated impairment losses,
i sny. The inital cost of property and equipment consists of purchase price, inchudicg impor dulies
norrefundable purchase faxes and any directly afifibutable costs of banging the asset Y0 &5 working condifian
and location for iis Intended use. Such cost ncludes the cos! of raplacing pan of swch property and egupment I
fha recognifion cribenn are mes.

Depreciation is compuied on & siraghi-lne tasis over the estimated useful s of Ihe propety and equlpmant
i Tollioren:

Years
Transportation egquipment &
Office equipmeni 2
Furniiure and fidures 2

Leasshoid improvements ane depreciated over their useful ives of fve (5) years or the term of the eass,
wiachever is shorler.

The residual values, usafil ives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically lo ensure thal the penods
and mathod of degreciation ame consistent with the expested pattern of econemic banefits from items of property

and egquipmant

Fully depreciated assels are maintained in the sccounts until these. are no longer n use  When assets are
retired or othenwise disposed of, the oosi, related accumulated depreciation and any alliowance for impaimment
Iosses are removed from the accounts and any resulling gain or loss (calculaied as B diflerence betseen he
niéf disposal proceads and tha camying amount of T iem) & credited 1o or charged against cumen] oparations

Compuier Softwarg
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Computer soffware ks intially recognized at cost. Following inillal recognifion, the computer sofhweare = camed at
st ess accumaslated amortization and any acoumulated impairmen in valus;

The compuler software is amortized on & sraighi-line basis over s estimated wseful econsmic ife of three (3)
years and is assessed for imgairment whenever there s an indication that the infangible assef may be impaired
Tha amoriiration commences when the compoder software is avaitabse for use. The amorlization panod and the
amortization melhod for the computer software are reviewed al each financal year and. Changes n e
astimaied uaell IHe s accounted for by changing the amortization pamod of method, &5 appraphiais, and reaked
a changes in accounfng estimes

Tha nint ook value of Computer software is recognized as part of “Other nonclment assels” accour In e
porsolidated statement of financal pesition  The net book value of Computer software as of Decembar 31
2017 2016 and 2015 amounind o BB 865, B5E TO2 and B188.807. respaciively. The smorization expamss 15
recogrired in “Depreciation and amortizabon” accoun i the consolidaled staierment of inceme

impgirment of Nonfinancial Assats

Propardy and Equiprmand and Other Norfinamcial Assels

Tha Growp sssessas af each neporiing dale whethar there i an indecation that its property and squipmsnt =
othiar nonfinencial asseis may ba impared when evenis or changes in cecumslances indicate that the carrymg
wEluas may not ba recoverable. i any such indication exigis or when annual impainment testing for an assed |s
roquirad, the Group makes an esbmate of the assef's recoverable amount, An assel's recoverable amount s the
highar of an assol’s of cash-genarating unit's fair value less costs to esll and i value in wse and |s determined fo
an individunl assat. unlass the assel does not generate cash inflows that ace largely independant of thoss fram
oiher apsals.  Whers ihe camying valss axosed ihe estimaled recoversbk amown, the assets or cash-
ganersing unis ans written down to heir estimaied recoverable amount. In asssssing valus in uss, the estimated
futuie cash fiows are discounted o their present value wsing a pre-tax discount rate thal reflects cument marka1
assssaments of tha time valee of mongy and the risks specifc fo he assel  Impalment losses of continuing
opemtiong are recognized in the consclidated statement of comprebensive income in those esxpense calegoies
ennskatant with tha function of the impasred nonfinancial assel.

hn sesessment 5 made al each repoding date a8 fo whether there s any indication thal praviously recognized
Impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decraased I such indication axisis, the recoverzble amourt
s estmated. A previously mecognized impairmend loss - is reversad only if there has besn a change n th
estmates used 1o determine the assef’s recoverable amount since the last impairment |nss was reécognizad  If
that is the case, the camying emount of the-assel is increased o B8 recoverable amount. That noreases amoort
cannal saceed the camying amount that would have been datermined, net of depreciation, had no iImEsement
055 been recogniped for the assel in prios yvears. Such reversal ks recognized inthe profif or loss
Invrstmant in Assooinle

Afer |he applicalion of ihe sguity mathoed, the Group determines whether il @ necessary 1o edognize any
additional impairment [oss with respect o the Group's investment in sssociale. The Group delemmanes al egch
teparting date whether thene s any objecthive evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. i this s e
case, the Group calcudaies the amount of Impairmenl &5 baing the difference Behween the recoversbile amount of
fhiz ivestiment in associate and the camyng cost and mmecognines the amount a8 @ educhon af e “Eguity in nel
eamings of an associate” account In the consolideted statement of comprehansive ncome

When the Group's share of lbsses excesds the Group's interest in Bn sssociate, the carying amount of i
investment, including long-term intenests thal fonm par thereod, is reduced o zero, and the recogniion of furthes
Iosses is discontinued axcepl 1o he extent that the Group have an obligation or have made payments on bahalf
of the investes

Comion Slock

The Group hes issued capital siocks fhal am dascified as equity. Incremental éosls direclly sitibutable to e
lzzuance of new chares or optisns ane shown in equfy &= & deduction from procesds. The excess of procseds fram
issuance of shane over tha par value are credied fo share pramium.

Gaficll
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The amount Included in deficit includes profits and Iosses sfirbulabie o the Group's stockholders and
raduced by dividends. Dividends are recognized as a liability and deducted from gquity when fhey are
approved by the Group's stockihviders. Dividesvds for the year thal ame approved afier the reparting datz are
deal with &5 an event after the reporting date.  Deficil may also ndude effect of changes in sccountng policy
as may be required by the standard's iransilional provisions

Daposit for Future Stock Subscription

Depoail for future stock subscrption reprasants e amouni recaived thet will be applied as paymeant in exchanps
for & flved number of the Group's own equity instrumants. i is classified as an aquity ferm if there is suficem
unissusad authorized capital siock, of i in case the unissued authorzed capital siock 3 msufficient 1o cover the
amourd af deposit, {a) the BOD and stockholders have approved a proposed ncreass in aulhorized capiial slock
for which 8 deposit was recaived, and (b) the propased increase was filed with the SEC as of financial reporting
date, olherwise, the depest ks classified as & dability.

Hevers Fiecoanifan

Favames B mcognized fo the extant that it is probable thaet the economic benafits will Bow to the Gaeup ard the
amount of revenus can be relisbly measured, regardiess of when The payment & being made  Havenus &
moaswsd al the fwr value of the consideration received or receivable, taking inlo account coniracteally defined
ferms of payment-and excluding taxas or duly, The Group Basesses i3 revenus avangements agains! speciiic
criberia In oroer bo detemine if it is acting es principal or agant.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met befiore revenue is recognized.

Sale of Goolds

Sabke of goods ks recogniped when the significan risks and rewsrds of cwnership of e goods have passed 1o the
buyers and the amount of revenus can be measured reliably. Ned sales s measured &l o tair value of The
considaration receved, sxcluding sabes tazes, discounts, returns and rebates. if any. Revenues that fsis in this
category inchudes salkes of sofware licerses  Sales of goods are included unded “Sales” in the consolidated

siatemeant of comprehensive income,

Serice, Marketing, Managorment and Consulfancy Fees

Fess are recognized whan the refated services have been rencered. Revenues that falis in this calegory include
IT Manpower and Resource Augmentation, and Broadband services. Senices, markefing, managament and
consulancy fees sre inciuded under “Sandca fees” in the consolidated statement of comprehengive income

Irifpmeaf
Imfereel income is recognized as interest sccrues using the affective interest method.

Cost and Expenses

Cost and expensas &fe decresses in sconamis benafits during the accounting period m the form of outfiows or
decresse of sssets or nourmence of labilites thal resull in decreases in eguity, other than those ressting fo
distibutions to equity parficipants. Cos! and expenses are recognized when the senvices are med o the
Expusnasd s noumed.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownesship of the goods have passed fo the
buyer upon delisery. This pertains o the cosi of software Boenses sold

Cosf of Sarvcas
Ot &f services aie direct cosls incurred in ralakon o sansde revenues, This manly consiats of ouiside senaces

and noverdisng and promaticns.

Gensral and Adimnistrabve Expanses

General and adminisiraiive axpanges consis! of expanses incumed in the direction and general administraton of
diny-io-day operation of the Group and are generslly recopnized when the sandces are used or the axpensss
anse.

Taxms
Curmeni Tax
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Currart tax llabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expacted to ba paid 1o he tax
authority. The tax rales and tax @ws used o computs the amouni are those that have been enacied or
substantively enacted at lhe raporting date,

Defamed Tag
Diefeered tnu is previdad, using the liability method, on all temporary differsnces at the rmpaorting dale batween the
iai bases of sssety and liabilities and thair carmyng amounts for financial repoting pumoses.

Deferrad moomae tax kabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary diffisrences. Deferred mooms fax assels
are recopnized for all deductible tamporary differences and carry farward benafits of unussd tax cradils m the
form af net operaling loss carmyover (NOLCO) and minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) to the exient that It |s
probable that texable profit will be avadable aganst which the dedictible iemparery differences can be Uiszed

The camying amouni of deferred income 1ax assets s reviewed at each repariing date amd mduced fo the extant
ihal it is no longer probable that sufficent waxable profit will ba available 1o allow all or pan of the defemad income
fax mEzets to be utiized. Unmcognized deferred incoms tax assels am reassessad al reporimg date and are
meognized to the exent that It has become probable that fulure toable profit will allow the dederred income tax
gssets o be recovered.  Delerred income 1ax assets and Rablities are measured af the fax ral=s thet ame
expactad 1o apply to the period when the asset is realized or the kabilty s seftied based on tax rates (and lax
lmws) that have besn enacled or substantively eracied as of the reporting date.

[tefzmad noome tax assels and deferved Income tax |isblliies are cffsed, T a legally enforceable nght exists to offset
current ingoime 1ax assets sgans! curmenl incoms tnx liabilities and the defermed income taxss relale io he same
taxaide enfity and he same taxalon authomrty.

Leasgs
Tha determination of whether an amengement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the amangemen
&t inception date and mvohes as assesament of whathar fe futfiimant of the arangement is dependent on he Use

ol @ apacific aEssl or assets or the amangement conveys a right o use the assel

Operafing Loases

Oiperaiing leases repesant those leases under which substantally all the nsks and rewards of cwnership of e
jansed gesels remigin with the lessor, Lease payments under an ocperaling lease ang recognized 55 &n SXpEnss on
giraighd-ling bases over the jerms of the lessa,

Finance Lease Commitmenis - Group as Lesses

Fingnce aases which fransfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefils incidentad 10 cwnarship of e
leasad itern, are capitaised al the commencement of the lnase ot the tair vadse of the lessed properdy or. f lower, at
it present velue of the minimum lease payments. Lease paymants are apporonsd between finance charges and
redyction of fhe lease lishilty =0 as to achieve a constani rate of interest on the rermaming batance of the liabilry
Finance changes are recogrised as fnance cosls in the consolidated slatement of comprehsnsivg Income

A leggad aesat is depraciated over the usehd life of the assat  However, If them s no resacnable certanty that ihe
Group will sbiain cwnarship by the end of the leese term. the assel is depreciated over the shorer of the estimated
uasful e of the assel and the lBase Erm.

;| T
Transactions in forelgn curnancies ane recorded using the exchange rate prevailing al ihe dae of the fransaction
Manetary assels and liabdities denominated i foreign cumencies ere restated using the mte of axchange
prevading at the reporfing date. Foredgn exchange differences belween rate at transaction date snd rale at
sattemant dale or financial statement date are credited o or charged against curent operations

The Group determines ihve functiongl currency for each antity within the Group and Bems inCudgsd in e finsncial
stataments ol each entity ane maasured using that functional currency. For subsidiary whose funciional curency
& differant from e presentgtion cufrency, the Group irangiales the resulls of their operations and finpncial
posdion Infe the preseniation comency. As al the financial reporting date, tha assets and labiities presenied
{inchuding comparatives) am translated inlo the presentation cumency a1 the cosing rate of exchangs prevalling
al the financial reporing date while the capital siock and other squity balances are transiated at histonca rales of
gxchange. The income and expenses for the proft or loss presented (including comparativas) afe anslaled 5
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the muchange rates &t the dates of the tansactions, where determinable. or al the weighled average rata of
exchange during the reporting perod. The exchange differences arising on the Iransiation 1o the presaniation
curtency are recognized as @ separate component of equity under the *Cumulstive translation adustment”
ac-cowi ir e consnsdated stefement of nancial posison,

The functional currancy of the Group's subsidiaries & Philippine Peso, except for J5IT which is WS dolar

Erovisiter

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Group has a presant obligation (legal or constnictive} as a resull ofa
past evant, If js probabile that an cutfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will De required 1o safts the
obligation and & reliable esimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If the effect of the time vnkust of
money is matedal, provisions are made by discounting the expected futre cash flows at o pre-ta rate that
reflects curreni markel assessmants of the time valie of money and. where appropriate, P reks specific 1o the
lisbliity, Whaere discounfing i used, the increase in the provision due 1o the passage of ime s moognized as an
irdmnitat AT

Whera the Group sxpedcts some or all of a provision fo be rembursed, the mimbursement is recognized as a
saparale asset bul only whan the reimbursement & virtually ceriain  The expense relating 1o any provison is
presented in prafit or oss, net of any reimbursemenrt.

lemingencies

Contingent liabiities are not recognized in the consolidated financial stalemeants. These i disclosed unlsss e
possibility of an outfow of resources embodying etonomic benefits is remote.  Conlingenl assets are nat
recognized in the consolidated financial staternents but disciosed in the notes o consolidaled Enancat
siatemants when an inflow of economic benefil & probabie.

Eamings Per Share (EFS)

fasc EPS s compuled by dividing net mcome for e year attributable fo comman stockholders by this wasghied
avemge number of common shares issued and oulstanding during the year adjusted for any subsequent stock
dvidends declared Dauled EPS is computed by dividing ned income for the year by the werghtea average number
of common shares issued and outstanding during the year after giving effect Yo assumed conmversson of poierial
corrnon shanas,

Begmen Reporting
For management purposes, the Group's oparating segmants ane organized and moanaged ssparalsly according
I2 the nature of the senvices ofared.

The Group's identified operating segments ame consistent with the segments reporied io e BOD, which & Ihe
Group's chief operating dedsion maker, Financal information on the operating segments &= presered in Note
18.

.|__
Evenis afler the financial repoding date thal provide addisonal nformation aboul fhe Group's firancal posdion a1
ihe financial reporing dele (edjusiing events) ars reflecied in the conscldated firancial statemants. Events afler
the financinl reporting date that are not adjusfing events are disciosed in fe noles to the consnsdated finsncial
siafemanis

Future Changes in Accouniind Poficies

Proncunceiments but not yel effeclive are Ested below, Unless otherwise indicated, I Group does ot
gxpacit thal the fulure adaption of the said pronouncements 1o Mave a significant impact on #s consGlicated
financial staements. Tha Group nends 10 adopd the ollowing pronooncerments when They beoome effectve

Effective beginning on or afer January 1, 2018

& Amandmarts to PFRS 2. Share-based Paymant, Classifeafion and Measurerment of Sharm- frasenf
Eaymenl Transachons

The smendmenls & PFRS 2 sddress three main anmss. ihe effects of vesiing conodfions. an e
megsursment of 3 cash-sefiled share-based payment transachon; the classification of a
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share-based payment transaction with net setflement features for wilthholding tay cbiigalions, and the
accmunting whens a modification to the lerms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changss
its clessficetion from cesh sattbed fn equity seftied,

Cin adopticn, envlites arm roglened o apply the amendmienls withawl restating prior perods; bl retrossective
application s parmitied if alected for all three amendments and i other criteria ane mel Early spplicetion of
tha amendmants 5 permetied

The Group s assessing the polential effect of the amendrments on its consolidated financial staternerdis
Amendments 1o FFRS 4, Insurance Contracis, Applying PFRE 9, Financial Insfrumsnts. with PFRS 4

Tha amendments address concems arlsing from Implementing PFRS 8, the new Tnancial instruments
siandard befom implamanting the forthcoming insurance confracts standaid. Thay allow aniilies o chooas
babwesn the overfay approsch and the delerral approsch to deal with the kransitional challanges. The
owarkay approach gives al anilias that issue Insurance contracts fhe option fo recognire i other
comprehensive incomae, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could afise when PFRS 2 is spplisd
before the new insurance confracts standard is isgued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives
enlities whose actvites are predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary axemption from
apphying PFRS § untd the earker of application of the forthceming insurance contracts standard or Januery
1, 2021,

The cvaray approach and the defarral approach will only be avallabie to an enfity if i has ol prevously
applied PFRS B

The amendmants are not applicable to the Group since none of the enblies within the Group heve acivizes
that are predominantly connected with insurance of issus insuance confracts.

PFFRS 16, Rewenue from Confrigefs wih
Cuxiorers

FFRS 15 establishes a new fve-step model Ihat will apply to revenue arsing from contracts with customons
Lindar PFRS 156, revenue i recognired a1 an amount that refiects ihe consideratian to which an enity
axpects 1o be entithed in exchange for fransfermng goods or senvices ko & customer. The principles in PFRE
15 provide & more sinsciured approach 1o measuring and recognizing revenus.

e merw! revenue stendand is applicable to af entities and will superseds all current revenue recogniton
requirsments under PFRSs. Elther & Tull ietrospeciive appication or @ modified reticspecive application 1s
reguired for snnuel perodts beginning on or efter snusry 1, 2018 Early adoplion is parmilied. The Group
plans to adapl the now standerd on the requirod offective date using the full retrospactve method

The Group & curmanily assessing the impact of PFRS 15.

PERE 8, Francial nsirmenty

PFRE 9 refiects ol phases of Ihe financial instruments project and repiaces PAS 38, Financial Instruments
Recognition and Meesurement, 2nd all previous versions of PFRE 9, The standarnd Introduces new
reguarerments for dessification and measuwement, impairment, snd hedge accounting, Retrospeciive
application s mouired bul providing compamative information s ot compulsony. For hedge sceaunting, ne
requiraments are generally applied prospectively, with some [imited exespons

Investments in unquoled eguity shanes cumently carried sl cosl undar PAS 39 are intended to be hald for the
foresesable future. As such, the Group infends o apply the option b present falr value changes for thess
invesiments in OCL The Group s in the process of determining how to measure the fair value of thess
unguctad inmvestments.

The Group iain the process of finalizing s assesament on the mpadt of the adopbion of thee standard cnce
bacames affactiva

Armendmants to PAS 28, Measuring an Associahe or Joint Veniure ail Fair Vil
(Part of Annual improvements lo PERSs 2014 - 2016 Cyolel

The amendments clarfy that an ently Mal is a veniure capital organization, or other qualifying entity. may
etect, al iniliaf recognition on en invesimant-by-investirmen] bEsks, 10 measum is investiments in associates
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ard joint ventures at fair value through profil or loas, They also darfy that i an antity thatl i4 nol isel an
mvestment anlity has an interest in an associate or jeint ventuns hat |2 an imvesiment enfity, the entity may,
wher appiying the equity method, eiect ta retain the f2ir value measwenemant applied by mal vesimernt
antity assockats of joind ventune 1o e invesiment enlity associale’s or joim ventume's inlenests i
subsidiaries, This electon ls made separatoly Tor cach invesbnent entily associale or gind venturs, al ihe
iatar of #ho date an which (a) the investmant enfity associale or jont veniure & iniltally recognized: (o) the
associaie or joint wantune becomes an invesiment entity; and (c) the investment enlity associate o |oint
wenture first becomes a panent,

The smandments should be appied retrospacivaly, with earies application permais
Amendmens io PAS 40, nvestinent Progedy - Transfes of nvestment Property

The amandmants clarify when an enlity should transier propedy, including property under consiruclion o
developmant inko, of cul of vastrment property, The amendments stala thal a changs i Use Doours when
the property meets, or cesses to meat, the definifion of mvestmend propery and there s evidence of ihe
change in tse. A mare change in management's intentions for the use of a property doss nol provide
evidence of @ change in use. The amandments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that
oocur on or afier the beginning of the annual reporting panad in which the entity first appbes the
amandments. Rofrospectve application is only permitted If this is possible wilhoul The use of hindsigi

Since the Group's currant practcs i in line with the clarficabons meued, the Group dees nol expect any
affact on s consolidated fnancal stalemants upon sdoption of these amendments

Philipping Interpratafion IFRIC-22, Fovmigrn Cumency Trensachons and Advance  Considaefabion

Thae interpretation clarifies that, in determening the spot exchange rale o use on initi@ recogndion of the
ralated assed, experse or income (or part of ity on the derecognition of 8 non-moneEtary sssel o non-
imonelany Babdity ralating o advance: consideration, the date of the transaction i the dale on which an entity
initinlly recognizes the nonmonstary assel or non-monatary lisbilty arking from the advance conaideraton
if there are multiple payments or recaipts in advance, then the entity must determine 5 dafe of the
trensactions for sach paymant or ecaipl of advance consideration. Ertifies may apply the smendmeants an
B fullty retrospective basis. Alematvoly, &n entity may apply the inferpretation prospectively 10 89 sssetE,
@xpenses and income in fis scopa that am Initially recognized on or after the baginning of the reporing
pairicd in which the entity firsi apphes the intarpretation or the beginning of a prior reporfing pedod presenisd
@5 comparative information n the fnancial stalements of the reporting period in wihich the antiy first applies
the interpratation

Sice the Group’s cument prectice i in [ine with the clarfications issued, the Group does not expect any
effect on s consolidated financial stalements upon sdoption of this inlarpratation

Effective beginning on o efer January 1, 2018

drmandments to PFRS 8, Prepaymant Fealures with Negatve Compensadion

The amendments o PFRS 9 allow debl instrumens with negative compoansation prepayment featuren to be
msaswred at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensve income, An enbiy shall spply thees
amendmerts for annuil neporing perods beginning on or after

Jenuary 1. 2018, Earliar application i permitted.

PFRS 10, Leases

PFRS 18 sats oul the principles for the recognifion, measunement, presentaton and dsciosure of leeses 2nd
recpuines IesSees [0 account for all leases under 3 single on-balance shoet model smilar o 1he accounting
for finance [easas under PAS 17, Leases. The standand inchedes two recognition exempbions for lesseas -
ieases of lowvalue assets (ag., personal computers) and short-demm leases (|6 leases with & leass lsim
of 12 monthe or lass), At the commencament date of 8 leese, a essee will recognize a lisbifity to maka
leasn payments (e the lease Eability) and an asset reprasenting the fght bo use the underdying assst
duning tha leass iarm (l.e., ihe ight-ol-use essel). Lesseas wili be equined o separately recognde ihe
injareat expensa on the lease iabiity and the depreciation axpense on tha rght-of-use asast

Lessees will be also regulied o remaasune he lease sty upon the ocourmence of cerain events (eg ., 8
change in the lease torm, a change in future lease payments resulting from & change in an indax or rate
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used 1o determmine those payments), The kssae will generally racognize the amount of he remeasursmend
of the leass liahility 25 an adjestmant to the nghl-of-uese zsset

Lessar acoounting wnder PFRS 16 & substandially unchanged from today s acoounting unce: PAS 17,
Lessars will continue 1o classify all leades using the same clessification pringpls a3 in PAS 17 and
distinguesh betwoon two types of leases: operating and financo leasaes.

FFRS 16 also reguires |essees and lessore o make more extensive daciosures than urder PAS 17
Early applcation 1§ permitied, bul nod before an entily appies PFRS 15, A lessee can choose o apply fhe
slandard using either a full retrospective or a modified refrospective approach. The standand's transitios

prosasions penmil certain relisfs,
The Croug i cumanlly assessng he impact of adopling PFRS 18
o Amendmants to PAS I, Long-lenm inmsts in Assocales and Joint Venfumes

The amendmanis to PAS 28 clanfy thal anifies should account for long-term mferests in an associale or
jmint venture 1o which The equity method is not applied using PFRS 8, An eniity shall apaly thake
amendments Tor annual reperting panods beginning on or afier

Jarary 1. 2018, Earder applicatian is parmitted.

#  Philipping interpretation IFRIC-23, Unceviainty over income Tax Troalments

The interprstation sddmsses the accounting far incoma lanes whan tax treatments invohe uncessinty tha
affects the application of PAS 12 end does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of PAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating 1o interest and penalbes associaled with uncedain ax
freatments

The interpratston spscifically addvesses the fallowing:

o Whether an enfity considers uncertain tax ireatmesnts separately

o The assumpfions an enlity makes aboul the axamination of tax treatments by taxshan authodiies

o How ah enlgy determines (axable proft (lax loss), 2 bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits snd
tax rales

o FHow an eniily considers changes in iads and circunsiances

fn entity must determing whether o consider each unceriain tax treaiment separataly or logether wih one
of more other uncanain tax trestmants. The approach thal betler precicts the resalution of the uncertainty
should be foflowed

Tha Group ls cumenily assessing the impact of adopting this interpretation,

Oreferred efeciivify

« Amendmentsio PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Cominbotion of Assais Dejween an (nweaior and ir5
Agssocisle or Joinf Vet

Thi prmandmants address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 78 in dealing with the loss of control of &
subaidiary thal is sold or contributed to an essociate or joint venture, The amendments clarly thal a full gain
of loss |5 recognized when a transfer 1o an associate or joint venbure involves a business as defined in
PFRS 3, Busmess Combnafons. Any gain of loss resulting from the sale or contribulfon of assets that does
ned constilute & business. howeved. i ecognized only to the sxtant of unrelated investors” interests n e
ansociate or joint vershure,

 Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The Growp's consolidated financial statemanis prepared in atoordance with PFRS reguine managemant o moks
judgments and eslimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated fnancial statermnants and raiated notes
Thar judgmients and estimates used in the financal statements are based upon management's evalsaton of
relevant facts and circumsiances a5 of the dale of the Group's consolidabed financial statements.  Aciual results
Ui diffar froem such eslimates.
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Judoments

in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made jdgments, apart from Those
invalving estimation, which have fhe most signficant efed on the amourits recognized in e consolidated
frmncial ststements.

Valuation of trvasimant in NCWW Telscor, ing
The fair value of investmants in equity instruments that do not hive a market price in aotive market for an
idenical instrumen! is raliably measurable it

=  Tha variabiiify in the range of reasonable fair value measurements is not significant for thal insirument
ar

= The probabiities of the various estimates within (he range can be reasonably asssssad and wsad whan
mizanuring fair valus

Bagad on managament's judgment, the computed recoverable amount of the investment in NOW Tetecom, Ing
i mot & refiable messurement of fair valee since ihere ie a significant variability in the range of reasonable fair
value measutements. Aceordingly, the Group is precluded from measuring the imestment in MOW Telecam,
inc. 8t fairvalus  Furthemaone, even if the renge of reesanable fsir value measurements (& wide, nene of these
measuements resull in the impairmant of fhe invesiment.,

Deterrminafion of Sgniicant influerce over an Associate

The Group considars iis 50% equity interest In Softweb Consulting, Ino. (Softweb) as investment in an associate
Crticsl judgment was axercised to assess tha facts and croumstances indicating he elements of control or level
aof influence of the Group over Sofweb. The Group has two (2) representatives out of the five (5) members of
the board. Thus. the Group has determined thal it has significant influence, but ne cantral nor joint cantral over
the financial and operaling policy decisions ovar Sofweh.

Cpenafing Lesses - Group 8s Lassea

The Group has entered commercial propeny leases on its offices. Based on an evaluation of the terme and
condtions of the lease agreements, thera will be no transfer of ownership of assets to the Group ot ihe end of
the laass tsam. The Group has determined that all significant fisks and rewards of ownersdip are relained by the
lazsors. Thus the leases are dissified s oparating leasas.

Firrance Lease Commitmants - Group aa Lessse

The Group has anterad into leases of irensponation equipment. The Greup has determmed that these lease
arangements (1.2. lease lerm Is for the major parl of the economic useful life of the asset) are finance isazas
sinca fhe sgrificant neks and rewards of ownership related 1o these proparties are transiemed 1o the Group from
the date of the lease agroament.

Estimatae
The kery assumptions conceming the fulure and other key sources of estimation uncertanty al the staterment of

fmancial position date thal have a significant risk causing material adjustments 1o the carying smounts of the
assels and liabilites within the next financial vears ae discussed below:

Recoveratiily of invesiment in NOW Telecom. Inc.

The Group Bssesses af edch reporting date whether there is any objective evidence thaf the investmen! in NOW
Telecom @ impaired. The Group has delermined that NOW Telecom's continuing losses over the pas? seueral
yearn is an objective evidenos that the investmend may no fonger be recoverabia

Whan thers is objective evidence of impairment, the Group is required to detarmine the recovorable amount of
Ine investment, which i the sum of the (i) market value of comparable radio frequancies, and the (i) presant
vallue of estimated future cash flows that can be ganaraled by fraquencies wih no comparahie markel value

| Makel vale of comparable radio frequencies

Markei value of comparable frequencies la the estimated market value of the radio frequencies owned By
NOW Telacom hased on the impled price per MHzPop of the mael recent comparatie merkel transaction
involving buy-ouls of entfies with radio frequencies

i Prezent value of estimated fiture cash fows generated by rdio freguencies with no comparatia
Akl Vaille
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The kay assumptions usad by the Group in datermining Ihe present value of exlimated future esgh A
genersiad oy irequencies with no comparable market value are as follows:

=  D¥iscomnt rafe
Thudhmmnﬁehhﬂ:dmhuwcmmwswm:mammmmpuf This rale & furfrer
adjusted o reflect the mmﬂwm&uwﬁlm&mEﬁHﬂmﬁﬂMHm hawe not
besn adjusied

= Lang-feym grewth mie
Cash flows boyond the five-year pericd are exvapolaied using » omermined constant growth rete jo
artive af e Wermanad value,

=  Repvenue piowih rale
Revenus hrﬂuﬁum;-armtd-mfuemmudwngagm rate- which is within the ingustry outiook

No impairment loss on the investmant in NOW Tescom was recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015 The
camying amount of the invesiment in NOW Talecom amouried 1o P1,289 278,350 as of Dacember 31, 2117,
2018 and 2015 (see Note &),

Where Ihere i objsctive evidence of impairmiant, the amount and teming of future cash fows are estimater
hased on age and status of the financial asset, as well as on higlorical Inss experience. Allowance for imgairmen
loas & provided when managemant befleves that the balance cannal be collectad or realized afer exhausting all
eforts and courses of action. The Group fecognized provision on impairnent loss on recalvabies and adyvances
in affiiaies amounting fo #1540,

3 665,685, and B4 033 832 in 2017, 2018 and 2015, respectively {see Notes 4 & and i)

The sggregate camying amourts of trade and othar receivables, due from ralated parties and advances 1o
affiaies amounted to B314,999,054. F238 651,840 and B185 331 501 as of Decamber 31, 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively {see Notes 4, 6§ and 9),

The Group astimataes the usall ives of sgnificant parts of proapeny and equipment based on ihe pensd over
which the assets are expacied 1o be available for ysa The eshimaled usakd lives of proparty &nd aguipmant ore

ini ihese factons and dircumstances. Depraciation and amorization charged lo operalions amounted o
M4.411.001, P2.214 568 and B3,567 678 for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2046 and 2015 FESpECTivaly
isee Notes 7 and 14). The apgregate net book valmes of property and equipment and computer sofwars
amounted 1o 8,721,428, BE 674,382 and B3,437,114 s of Decamber 31, 2017 2018 and 2015, mapactively
(e Mote T)

Estynating Impairment of Property and Equipment, Computer Saffware and Creditablp

Withhoiding Taxes (CWTs)
The Group assedses impakmant on ssscls wheEver ovenls o changes n crcumstances indicate fhal ha
carmying amount of an asse! may nof be recoverable. Tha facters that the Group considers imiportant which
could Irigger an impairmant review include ths following:

. EWMuﬂmmthmeuwmm
FEELITE;
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Signibcant changes in the manner of use af the acquired assets or the etrategy for cvarall
business and
= Sgnificent negative indusiry of aconomic frends.

An mpainnent i0ss s recognized whanever the camying amount of an asset exceads its recoverabie amount
Tige:aﬁmhﬂlmmhﬁ:ﬁghruﬂmw'lhlrmmmmmmmmm uge. Tha

conanlidatad financial statornards, The Group recorded provision for impairment on CWTs of ni in 2017 and
2018 and B158,787 in 2015 (see Mote 5. The aggregte camying vaiues of property and squpment, compiier
software and CWTs amounted 1o R 14,400,124, F10,485,348 and W7,339.942 as of Decormber 31, 2017, 2018
and 2015 respactively {ses Notes 2. 5 and )

Trade and Other Recelvables
2017 26 2015
Traos faceivebles:
Reialed parties (Mote 0) B146,620 458 Fio 220,311 B4 063,024
Third parfies 31,527.29) 24 SHI B15 2T 446, 0y
Others (Note 9) 3,620,367 3,568 885 3470 4o

181,776,116 120,368,815 94,839 170
Less aflowance for impairment losses 13,832 892 13,836 447 13,150,782
67,943 224 115,532 388 BE1. 768408

Tuhaﬂnmmmmmmmmmmdmmm
40 1o &0 days term.

Trade recaivabliss from refaied paries are unsecured, naninderest-beanng &nd are 1o be seftied Upon dermand.

Uthers mclude sdvances to officers end personngl, and awdstanding loan receivabis fom Holy Cow Animsation
Inc. {Haly Cow) (sem Note §),

Mevement in allowance for impairment (058 on rade mmufulm:_

2T 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year R13,836 447 13,150,762 #3.1168.830
;m'u'iﬁm‘rah e year (Mole 14} 1,240 B85, 585 4003 83
scovery of previously recognized
doubitid sccounts |5,455)

Balence at end of ysar P13,832.802 13RI 447 P13.150.762




= 2017 2015 2015
e afils B3E, 184 267 B3417.47 182 431
E‘ﬂm 3,687 698 3.410.866 3,802 7R
frput VAT - net 2,882 411 285426 -
Defemed input VAT 1,736 827 = .
Others 774,820 145,360 112832
BT 364,821 B7 866213 R4 178 05

process of securing the approval of tha Philpping SEC and PSE of the sald Iransaction [=e€ hote 121 It also
mtiudes the prapayments made by the Parent Campany in purchasing IBM Licenses relsted to installation of
&mall systemn for the Suprame Court of the Philppines smounting to #23 638 466

CWT ks et of allowanea for impairment losses amounting to ®T08 270 as of Decamber 31, 2017, 2016 and
2005

thmtuhwmhlmﬁmﬂ loss on CWT are as foliows:

2017 2018 2015
Halance # beginning of year B706.270 R706.270 ®547.503
quhhmtthm{l‘dmﬂl 2 - - 158, 167
Satance al end of year F'?ﬁ_lliﬂ nﬁyn RrO6 Z70
e re——— s R
Investménts and Advances
2017 2018 25
AFE financal assel ®1Z85,178,350  W1.208 278 350 1,286,278 350
Advances to affiliates (Nos L] 23 Bi8 g1a ] 818
!1.315!?1,1“ FT.31EIE?1;‘IEE B 31T E74. 188
AFS Finanaial Assel

Tha Group has an mesiment in NOW Telecom classified as AFS fnenciai assat

Agreed wpon of shares was subject to certain condifions, & NBcesaRry coparale and reguiatory
Eppravalis. The MOA was approved by Me Parant Company's siockholders on
Jume 7008

constdfation with the PSE. i was determined fhat the Pamet Company could nol revise It primary purposs af
thel bme. Hence, the sleckholders approvad the amendment in the MOA that there will be no changa in tha
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F1,288.278 350, or effectively, af a price of 485 32 per HOW Telcom shara.

ﬂmpmmtcmwmpuhmrmmrmumﬁzadmrmummmnmndmmmm
iransaction (see Note 12).

In Sapiember 2006, hSEGMGmﬂHm:ut-ﬁmrmlafWhmum of Shares of Stock of NOW Telecom and
Lerlificate of increase in Capital Stock of the Parant Company.

in 2008, the PSE approved the application for the listing of the additional 1.288.27B.350 common sharss 1o ovar
the share-for-share swap transactions wih the NOW Telacom sharshaolders.

Un February 22, 2018, the franchise granted o NOW Teimcom has been exdended for anather 25 years ar unil
Year 2047 under Republic A< No 1ED??1-hinhirnﬂgmdfurapmml inte law by the Presidend of the
Republic of the Philippines. With the said law, NOW Telecom, 83 a tHecommunications company, now has
priviieges similar fo those granted io existing dominant plavers in the indusiry.

As of December 31, 2017, 20168 and 2015, the Group's invesiment in NOW Telecam Affsuried i
H1_2m1?a,mmmlnmmmwhmhnwmm.

mwmmﬂmmmmm
i mmuuﬁum

Hvesiment in an associale

Un December 20, 2010, the Group entered nfo @ subseription Bgreament with Softweb for an invesiman
amounting to RE, 000, 000, reprasanting a 50% imarast in Sofweh

Sofiwed specialzes in Lojus consuling and framing services a8 wall a8 comprehansive Coming working
solutions As an IEM pariner, Sofweb offars this ful range of IEM senicas and icensed products integrated
I its own st of business salutions, soffwarn development and training,

.ﬂ.!l:d'I:har.:umhl'i‘l.m'IT.ED‘IHNﬂWE.thp‘lﬂhmhhumnfﬂuhmfﬂwme;meem
the cosl of investment, mwmmﬂummmmdhmﬂﬂrmmﬂ

Theurn-mgﬁmdmhnﬂhuunrmﬂmﬂ:u 31, 2007, 2096 and 2015 amatinted fo
nil, BT 077,304 and BT 265 533, respectivaly,

As of December 31, 2015 hﬁu.q:hnudmm-nnsnﬂwhnmg' 1o #5,000.000. This pertans o
deposit mummmhﬁmﬁmmlmﬂw micrease in its autharized capital steck

in 2096, the Group recognized provision for Fmpairment Ings on I8 sdvances o Sofwes amounirge o &
5,000.000 (see Motes O and 14).

] TMWHMWHD&GWMM_ iz,
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Froperty and Equipment
207
Loasehaold Transporatio
Improvemaent n Office Furniture
_ = Equipmant Equipment  and Fixtures Total
Cosat:
Balancas at beginning
of  year P4 Q3T 445 M5.860,277  ME 209,844 P1,J93888 38 393455
Additions - 128.750 6,320,297 - 8,488,047
Balances at end of year §37. 1 027 23,521,141 1,393 888 44,851,502
Accumulated
dapreciation and
amartization:
Balances at beginning
of  year 4445217 15,191,753 10,545 845 1,185 857 nITa TS
Depracintion and
amontization for the
year (hote 14) 435,230 148,071 3,711,041 88,921 4,381, 264
Balances at end of year 4.!_!!_:!{? 15,337 824 1d 586 4 e 36 140 038
Met book valus F5G, 989 REST 03 B7.B74,152 P12g.108 P8, 711,463
2075
Lassshold Transportabon Office Fumiture
|mprovements Equipmesit  Equipment  and Flrturzs Tata)
Cost;
Balances at beginning of
yEE B4 03T 4458 W151 G8.E18 BT 440 365 ¥1,3493.888 320416818
__Additions - 880,358 4,761 479 = SASiBar
o is 3l end of yvear 4837 445 15860277 16 30 B4 1,383 B&S 38 383 455
Accurmulated depraciation
&nd amaorization;
Balsnces al beginning of
yaar 3944 405 14,705 00 9.8BE3. 476 1.087.738  26.801,111
Deprediation and

amortizaton for the
year | 14 500, 722 T5a 1,082 (72 108,118 2 (87 854
Bzlances at erd of waar 4 445 717 15,181, 753 10,845,948 1.185 BS7 A1, 7B T
3 e ot OWULEH  1,1005

tel book vale W4DZ 720 RESE B34 W5 255 A0E P1D8.031  PEA14 60
2015
Leasehoid Transportation Oiffica Furméure
Improvesmants qu._ﬂmpm _EMEM and Fiytures Tojal
ol T
Baiances at beginning of
year B 937 445 EB15,189.51% & 1201 287 #1393 888 B2 700 B40
#Additioms - = 236,078 - 238 018
__Bslarces al end of yoar 4 837 4465 15,169,818 11,240 355 1,353 Red 32541 B8
Accumulated depracation
and amortizaficn:
Batances al beginning of
yuar 3443773 12,206,518 8620427 BT a2 280 497
Depreciation and
amartzalion for s
Ear (Mol 14 T2z 2 888 485 243 448 108 118 3,440,774
__Bslsnces af end of e 14,785 001 8,883 878 1,087 730 20,851 114
Mol book value FEE;T R34 918 1 ] F308 140 W3 250 507
—a T e R e
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Cosl of fully depreciated assats s§l in use amounted (o ®17 836 276, M17 124,057 ang
B18.757.030 as of Decamber 31, 201 7. 2016 and 2015, respectively,

8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expunses

T 2016 2015
Trade payables,
Third parsas R53,917,131 F22.510,848 P3G 360 906
Related parties (Nobe 8) 16,396,054 18,808,706 25,112,878
Accrued axpenses;
Interest (Note 8) 58,903,588 58,003 588 56,003 5868
Othars 11,563,295 8,432 085 BB 227
Defarred output VAT 14,854,494 B.265 728 £,055, 044
Withhelding tax payabie 1,331,793 121643 864,630
B164.067 P116,642 574 P32 827,061

*  Related Party Transactions

Emerprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control ar are controled
by or under common controd with the Group, indluding holding companiss, subsidiarios and fellow subsidiaries,
e related paries of the Group. Associnles and individials ovwning, directly or indivecty, an interest in the voleg
mwufuuﬂrmprrmuhnmmﬂb:mtmﬂunHmﬂm-mm. kBy management perssanal
Ihdﬂqdimnﬂdﬁmﬂm&mpmdmhmmlhhmrﬂﬂﬂmlnﬂim. and

warking capital
requiromants. Amounts owed by NOW Telscom as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 amountes o @

& As of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 3015 the Group has oulstanding Yabidies to Emerais Invesiment, inc
{E1l} amounting 1o #2802 918 which aross fom fhe Group's sub-icase agreement with E1) that ended in
2011

Amounts owed by EIl as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 is R4, 848
€ On January 1, 2013, the Parent Company mﬂsumwmmmumﬂﬁnmmﬂurm

¥E@rs beginning Jsnusry 1, 2013 o December 31, 2018, On danuary 3, 2017, the Pament Compary
runmhm::ﬂmthHF'EEh'-puﬁninfhm[!:rmhaﬁiighnuuylzm?upm
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JEmumry 2, M22,

Under the service agreemeni, KPSC Shall provide consulancy and Manpiver sennces depanding on the
uﬁm'mﬁﬂuﬂrmﬂhrmﬁmn. Amounts cwed ty KPSC, in relation |o the BENVICE Sgrapmani
amounied to #13 038 402, 915 450, 244 and Fi8, 719,161 85 of

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2016, respechively

The Group's administrative and management functions. including key management personnei, arm baing
handled by personnel of KPSC.

Oulside services incurred by (he Group for the provision of key managemant persannel services that s
provided by KPSD ameuntsd lo P 2663646 WS 176177 mnd PEES8800 in 2017 2098 and 2015

nuammmmmmmmmm. Ine. §or working capial ang
vnEtment requirements wmmmm::lﬂﬂ.ﬁpmmmwwﬁwmmh

Cn January 22, 2015, Velarde, Inc. Bgreed 10 conver s advances amaunting {o 200000000 ivle Bty
nieres! in the Parent Company for 200,000,000 comman shares with & par valee of

B nmmwmummg uumwmmmmvm:, Irnc: shall no
longer be subject to interast and shall be due on demand {5e@ Mate 12),

Inteves| eapssnse booked as an additional Emourts owed 10 relsted party amounted 1o nil in 201 T, 2018 and
2015

On June 2, 2018, the stockholders of the Parant Company approved the said increase In the FParent

On June 20, 2018, addiional advances were incurred from Valarde Inc., through the fatiers payment of the
Inans payablo to bank on behal of the Parent Lompany amounting o
F44.500.000 {sse MNate 11).

Outstanding acorued intereat prisented as pan of the “Ascounts payatle Snd accrued expenses” amouried
1o 58,903 588 as of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015 {soe Mote 8)

D ko Velarde, Inc, presented as panl of Due In ralated parties” amounted to F141.326 866,
EEE, 322 AT6 and F223.458 035 as of Dacember 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respeciively.

The Group charges Velards, ing. managemant fees for fe administration and operations af the companips
Faymants are dus within five (5] days upon recadid of invoica. Management fees charged 1n Velarde, fng
amounted fo B240, 000 hi‘ﬂﬁ,ﬂﬁmﬂi‘mﬁwmm of “Dihars” in revenue

The Group has outstanding trade recaivables from Velarde, Inc. amounling to #1680 000
F1.440,000 and ®1 200,000 2: of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectivsly

The Group entered Inis a nen-ntenest beanng loan agreament with Poreon Electric Vehicies, Inc. (Portean)
4s of Decamber 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015, the outstanding amount due from Porteon Electric Vahicles, ine
amounted to ®2, 160,300 which is due on demand,

On Jamsary deli.maﬁmﬂmmnuLbHuummm#mmlw. Ine
n{l-Eullren&an'ﬂmH'thﬂl'ﬂnhﬂ'i.EﬂﬂhHﬂ'rET.Eﬂﬂhﬁarrmmh-mﬂfmd

FIT 536, nummdmmmhumdumnmudmmﬂﬁhaﬂumm The mosl recéni
mmmrmi-mﬂgmhmrammmmmm

Meveribar 1, 2017 fo October 31 2000 Allﬂﬂmrlhmﬂdmﬂﬂnmutﬂmmﬂamantmrﬂuaﬂ
Jansiay T, 2011 ramain i full forca.
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Fent sxpense mcurred by the Group amountsd fo FS30.313 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, In connmcion with
thes, Fue refated due 1o -Caollege amounted {o 5, 736 025, R4 805,612 and
W2.878.300 as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respeciivaly.

The Group sells IBM liesnses to Softweb, an ass0ciie. Sales of IBM boense to Softweb amounied o i, =
5412232 and F12,088 054 in 2017, 2016 and 2015,

The Group entersd nfo agresments. with Thumbmab, Holy Cow and Softwab for the subacripbion of thelr
respeclive shares, Flease see Note 6 for detailed discussion,

In January 2018, tha Parert Company enlered into two (2) separate one-yasr service g reements with GHT
Network, Inc. (GHT) and News and Entertairment Netwark, Inc. (Newsnet) o provide bandwidth services o
its cuslomers.  The Parant Company provided the infrastisciure build-up and technology desion and
coEsUlitanoy

In 2018, the Parent Company amend its coniracts with GHT and Newsnet, and includes NOW Teleoom
whereas fwe Parent Company will provide project management sarvices. design and pianning services and
inslallation services covering up bo 10 major network hubs for 8 todal contract price of B4E 000 000 sach

2017 2016 2015
GHT RE4030048  mIBS04,000 17200000
Neawsnel 53,441,588 28,504,000 11,200,000
NOW Telecam 13,102,508 8,400,000

On Decamber 5, 2018, the Parties agmeed o amend Chapier 5 of fierr VAS contracts o add provisian an
rEvenie shanng from the broadband revenus.

mmwﬂmmmmmmmmm
ﬂunmnn-,rmamﬂ-plmnmﬁqlﬂumf_ Tnhlﬂ_lﬂuldﬂhmmwhmﬂufaeruﬁ;“
ummﬂlii.nlwﬂﬂﬂ.mhmﬂmmﬂﬂ_m

fis of Decomber 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, the ouslanding ameounis due from GHT amounied i
BB 5E8 B89, B8 177 301 and 5,000,180, respectively. The Group alss kas an outstanding dmounis due
from Newsnet amounting to B19.360,911, B0, 738,050 and PG.067 544 as of December 31 201 T, 2016 and

2015, raspectively,
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Trade Trade
md oher and other Advances to
Transaction Due from iﬂ..m_in____._-_ Due to payables Hiliates
Related parties Category Year amount related partigs (MNole 2) reisted parties {Mote &) {MNote &) Terms Conditlons
Shamtniders
Velarde Ine.  Advances 2017 W7 3,004,050 B ®-  Bd1,325 868 [ [ - On demand Unsacumd
Lma 73,620,554 - B 68 322 816 = - On demand Unsecurad
2ME5 170,700 D4n - - 223458 0as = On demand Unsecuired
Managemen Ursecwred, no
t foe 2T 240,000 - 1,680,000 - - - On demand impairment
Linsesumd, na
2018 240,000 1,440, 000 - - On demand Impairment
Unsecumed o
2015 240,000 1,200,000 - O dlemand impairmen
Interest 2017 = 58,503,588 - On demand Unsscured
2ME - - 58 803 588 - Oin demand Unsecyirgs)
25 - - 69,903 586 Cm demand Linsecurnd
GHi Advances 2047 2,000 2,000 - - On demand Unsacured
206 - - = = Cin dhemiand Ungecured
215 - - 85,538 2 (45 D5S O dermand Unsecurad
Unsecured, no
Ell Advances T 40,848 - - - On damand impaiment
Unsaeurad, no
2018 41 848 On damand impairmment
Unseowrad. no
2015 A} 848 - - On demand dmpai e
Lexses amr - 2,902 818 On demand Unsecyurad
201a - - 2,002 013 O demand Lrsacurad
2015 2802018 On dermarnd Unsecured
Affiltes
Unsecured, n
MNOW Tolecom  Advances LT 12,388 0938 63,745 438 BTE 208 - O demand impairment
Unsecwred n
2016 2704687 51,346 501 874 208 - On demand imypairmen



zian Ingktie of
Journalem

Cammimacatia

Tradée Trade
and othr and other Advances io
Transaction Due from  recaivables Due 1o payahbles affiliates
Yeat amount reiated parties (Nate 4) related parties [Note &) {Note 8) Terms _Conditions
Unsecwed ne
2015 TB16,74T 31,408 455 - TG AN - - On demand Impairriand
Unsecured, no
Sarvices 21T 7,800,000 - 13,102, 508 - - - On demand kmpairment
2018 7500000 - 400,000 - - - - -
#015 - - - - - - -
Advances 20T BE5 000 B208 T08 [ B B B On demand Unsecured
2018 - 204 TF0R - - - - O demignd Unsecured
2ms 2180 204, 708 - - - Cin dairand Unsecurad
Outside 20T 11,758 110 - - - 13,0318 482 - On demand Urnsecired
sorvices 2HE 50.716.312 - - - 15,450 244 - On damand Ursecurad
2015 48658 791 - - - 18,719,164 - On demand Unsacured
T D within 5 Unsecured, no
Advances 15,867,752 - - - yoars impalrment
[Chie within 5 Unsecured, no
208 15,567,752 = = - = years irmpairmen|
Chse withén 5 Unsecurad, nio
2015 15,567,752 - - - years Fnpairment
Duse within 5 Unseciured, nao
Interest T 447,033 11,825 852 - - - - yeam Im pairmant
Clue within 5 Unsecarad no
2048 487 433 11,462 959 - - FEAN imgairmen
Dum within 5 Linsecured, no
2015 467 033 10,006 828 - - - Vg (T T
fdvances Unsoeured, no
Lnsstured. no
2018 1.0 £71.081 O gemand mmpairment
2016 Z.661 470,022 Cin damand Uinsscuned, no



Trade Trade
ard oifser and other Advances o
Transaction Duee fram  receivablag Dusa 6o payables affiliates
Rolated parties Category Year amaunt related parties (Mote 4] relsted pardies Mole 8) {Maote ) Terms Conditions
n Imipairmisn
Paradiso Veide, Advances 2017 - - 3,358 462 - On demand Unsseurad
I 20168 - 3358 407 = Cin s Ungacured
2015 3358 462 - - Unsaourad
Services Unsecured, no
2mT = = o5, 212 On dhasmand impairment
Unseciured, mo
2014 - BO5.212 1 desmand Irralrrrent
Linsecured, no
Fai)f.] 368,195 605, 212 - On demand impairme
Loans ...___..-a.n__k_-.P.._ﬂ
Porieon 2y 2,160,300 - - On demand impairment
Unseaursd, no
2016 2160, 400 - - On demand Impainmernt
Unsacured, no
015 - 2160300 = On demand Impairment
MWewsnet Advances Unsecured, no
2017 8,823,951 18,360,811 - - - Ori=-tamand Impairment
Ungacured, no
2016 4 GA0. 418 10,736, 550 - Or-domand Impairmeant
2015 B4T Gadf B.OEY 544 = -
(Fansmrd)

Services ) Unascurad. no
2017 m25,600,000 B~ P53.441 589 - B N Din-demand impairmant
Uinsecired, no
2018 15,450,000 &8, S0 000 - Cin-dermand Fpainment
2018 10,000 000 - 11,200 000 - -

Advancas Unsecured
GaHT 017 2,411,588 8586 BHS = O sdemand im palrmaeni

2006 1977129 6,177.301 On-demand Linsseyrag



Related partins Ca Year

Thumbmet

Services

it resi

Advances

ol -

Trade Trade

and other and othor Advances to

Transaction Duefrom  receivables Due to payahies iffiliates
Amount related parties (Naie 4) related pariies {Mole B) (Note 6] Terms Conditions
imipairment
2015 TH 5.000.180 - - =
Unsecured, no
2017 20,600,000 44,032,048 = - On-demand impairment
Linsecurad, na
2016 15 450.000 2B 504 000 - Fmpairmenl
2N 10,000,000 11,200, 000 - -
Unsecured, no
any - - 221177 - - O demand Impairment
Ursacured, no
2016 - L2110 2u On demand Irmparmesnd
Unsecured, no
2015 - 2211,711 - - On demaneg bmpairmen|
Unsecured, no
2017 158,000 - - - On domand impairmeant
Uinsecured, no
2018 156,000 - On deemand impgrmmeani
Uneacured, no
2015 158, 000 - - Dot darmand impaiimani
§,24p 4440 Unsscured, no
Fith ) - - On demand impairmant
9,240 445 Unsecured, no
2014 - i damand impalrmeni
8 248 4408 Uneecired, na
2015 Oin demand impairment
14 344 389 Unsscurad, no
27 On demand impairmant
14,344 15 Unesciired, nn
iG] Cin dermind impairmeny
14,344 360 Unsecured na
2ms5 On dermand A Tas gy



Related parties Category

Yaar

Transaction

Chsa frovm

amount refated parties

I-Coitege

Advances

Sales

i fee

097

2016
2015

anT

2018
2015

M7
2016
25

a7
018
2015

2017

2018

2015

Z0m7

2018
2015

830,313
230,313
330,313
111,769

1.380.259

Trade
and other
recnivables

-45.

(Mols 4 related parties

=2, 380,860
<, 0, 560
2,380,860

16,401,451
16.401 451
22 453 (54

15,580,000

15, 550,000
15,500,000

..iq.ﬂ.-m
and other Advances to
Duie o payables affiliates
{Note 8) {Noie &) Terms Conditions
- B Unsscurad, no
- On demand __._ii...__-_qﬂ!_..—
= ” o On demand g.nwﬁ_.-durﬂ
= =
.ﬂ...rum”“.unw - - On demand Linsecured
i - = O demand Unsacured
; - - On demand Unsecirad
B 245 R P-
O demand
WS D somes S e
LA, - 5,000, D00 O dermand Unsecured
= Unsacy
- - On demand -_._..ui.“..ﬂ_-ﬂ
L Unsscured
- - O demana uiﬂrﬁn
- B Lnsecurad, no
O deemand impainment
B - Unssoured, no
- On damand impairment
Unsecured, ng
O demand Impairmeant
- - Oin darmand _._._._um_ﬂhu
- Unsecirad,
- On demand w:t.-:.__:-.“..n___
Lnseeurmd.
) Un demand ____umuﬂ_ha_w
On dertand Unsecurad ng
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Terms Conditons

ﬂ:.___l.nq:u____
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Summary of related panty transactions affecting consnlidated statements of income

General and
Costof sales  administrative
Related parties Category Year Revenues  and o5 EXpIOnges
Velarda Inc Management Foe 2017 ¥24D0,000 [ (.
2018 240,000 = =
2015 240,000 = -
Interest 2017 = e _
J0165 = - .
2015 = - 2
NOW Telecom  Sarvices T 7,800,000 = -
2016 T.500,000 = =
2018 - 2 =
Cost of data
services 2017 - 1.767, 720 -
2016 - TTa.Tis =
2015 = =
Loass aoar - - 120,000
Newsnal Services 2017 25,600,000 - -
sl 15,450,000 = -
2015 10000, O - -
Comst of dats
servicos 2017 = 1,364 054 -
2018 = 1686912 -
018 = = L
1 Bervices 217 20,800,000
201E 15,450,000 - .
2015 10,000,000 - =
IR Interase 2017 467,033 - -
2ma 457 033 - =
2015 487,033 = #
KPSC Cutside services M7 - B.411, 848 3,344 164
2018 - 43228 616 TA80 593
2015 - 401 54 500 6,607 182
Safweb Salos 2047 = i =
2018 5412,232 - =
2018 12 088 54 e i
Management fee oy - - _
2016 = - =
2015 = = =
I-Callage Loage w7 = - 930,313
2015 - - Ban 313

2015 930,313

2017 _PS4T07033 1533700 394,477
2015 P32 795087 WA (54,500 7,532 505
= B L




I Leass Commitments

The Group has entersd mmm:amamhmmﬂﬂ:dﬁnpmmm. There ar= po
mnﬂmplmndupmhﬁupwmrhg ino thisss leages. menﬁuhammnmnmmugnmd i Ehe
sarernent of comprahansive income ane a3 follows:

8 DnJancary 1, 2011, the Group entered into a sublease corract with I-Coliege Philippines, ing
{I-Colisge) for the period from November 1 7014 o May 31, 2012 with a menthiy rental fee of

b On April 168, 2013 the Group smisrmd into a contrac of lsase with Robert C. Lantin with & maonthly rental foe
nfM.ﬂﬂﬂﬂMBuuﬂrdﬂpnﬂlﬁ'muﬂrql:HEﬂ.ﬁﬂﬂmmhlhm:a}rrmlhnrmh”ln Tha term
of T inEsa can e menewed upon muugl consant of bolh pasties. In Aprll 2016, te Group entered ino 3
riew lease contract commencing on Agal 1. 2018 to
March 31, 2017 renewable upan mutual agreament of the parties  Baged on the laass agresmant, rarihiy
remial paEyment was sel al M47 368 i Manch 2017, the parties did not resew the contract

for s principal ofica which i located at Unit 5.1 8 Fioor, OPL Buadeg, 1o e ot
mrﬂdnﬂ&mmdﬂlmmi Village, Makati City fiom One Patanca Land, Inc
Said lease confract iz &ffectve for ane (1) yuar and may be renewed upon mutual agresment of both parties

4. On January 1, 2017, the Group entered into a contract of isase with fram NOW Talecorn with Pty
rminlfunnfhﬂ,mtrmaimhmhdhﬂﬂEmﬁmm.Elmplnt.uulﬂll City for five (5 yeam
ending Decamber 31, 2020,

November 17, 2021. The monthly sental payment was set at B5,000 with annual escaiglion rate of fve
percant (5%) afler the fist year. Aconied rent payable emounting to 5,933 as of December 31 2017
represants strasgid-ine adjustmen on renl,

Future minimum lease payrvent related to the loase as of December 31, 2017, 2016 and 20456 arm as
follenws:

W7 2016 2015
Within one (1) year P1,179.514 B91T, 368 PE30.313

After ane (1) yaar but not mane than five (5
years 1,900,572 = 773,260
P3,080,08% RO17 385 B, 705 4573

4

Tola rent expense recognized in 2017, 20146 and 2015 armounted o F1,738.036, 81 728,730 and
F1 .68 445 respadively {sea Node T4}
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11 Capital Stock

Aalrop il 51 L.OMmpan il E ctn il loan
] Eaplunbwmw.hPmﬁmmmymﬁmﬂmmhmhmmHﬂwﬂmﬂmhameu Comp
(METC) amounting to R44,500.000. In Decomber 2013, the said an was extended for another two (2} yg
with a malurty dale of January 2016. The laan bears injerest ranging from 7 40% and 2.12% 1o 2 30% in 2016
and 2015, respectively, Intarest is payabie avery 30 doye.
'I:rnh'lrm1,i‘u1ﬂi,ll'|lWmﬂﬂmmmﬁddﬂm.mmmmEmiﬂMuﬁnﬁhnME!hurﬂm
from MBTC Tmummn.mwrnﬁumnnmmtiumhumnr
i.mwmmbumnmmmmﬂﬁwnmum.

O June 20, 2018, the kan from Bark of Makati was paid by Velarde, Inc. an behalf of the Parent Company (see
Nodta &)

Irems! enpansa on the sald lcan amounted to B5T1,355 and B1,007,530 in 2018 and 2018, respactively
800 toan

Mhe cument angd noncurrent portions of e iogn amounted o RO7.337 and P351614, mspectiviiy, an of
Decembar 31, 2017 and RET 429 and Raad 107, respettively, as of Decembar 31, 2016,

Intsrest axpensa recognized on this loan amaunted to B52.015 and 1,607 in 2017 and 2048 respectivaly

I accordance with SRC Rula B8, as Amendad (2011, Annex 88-D, below is & gimmary of the Panenj
Company's track record of registration of zacurities:

Numbar of shares registored _ Issueioffor price _ Diate of approval

Cammon shares 28,000,000 ®1.00 July 30, 2003
Codmrmom shianes 1,288 278 350 F1.00 December 10. 2008

On Aprl 28, m.hﬂﬂnmmmwwmlnmmﬁmmrm
40,000.000 shares to 1,320,000,000 shares a1 B pat value per share, This was suhsequently approved by the

SEC on September 18, 2008,

On May 12, 2010, the BOD and slockholders of the Parent Company approved proposal to Incresse s
suthorized capital stock from 1,320,000.000 shares fo 5§ 320 000,000 shares i &1 par valun per shares. On

Ap discussed in MNole 9, Velarde, ing. sibscribed io 200,000,000 shares of the Parent Company and inis
Slbscripbon was sattied through e conversion of its advances o the Group amounting to
EE00. 000, 000

ﬁ#.mﬂ.ﬂmaﬂmmnmmniﬂﬂpmmmmmunmimhm-mlgrmavamguwnzuf
hwwummnmmmmmu.ma On June 2. 2018, the



1 : deposit for future siock Bibscnplion
amcuinting ml?&i.ﬂm,mﬂﬂndﬁuhq-jtynlh- Parerd Company has met a1 the conditions rauired by the

Mo 6 for such requiation

LUn Seplember 2, 2015, e Parent Company's BOD approved the amendmant in the Arficles of Imearpormtion of
the Parent Company ko reclessify 60,000,000 unissued comman shares o redeematile convertble nan
participating and |

valug of B1 per share  On Novernber B, 2016, the stockholders of the Parant Company represanting two-thirds
of s outstanding capital slock spproved the amendment,

Un Jansary B, 2017, the Parent Company filed an application with the SEC for the appioval of the said
amendrivent. TFEE'ﬁmlmmwdhrlhuEE{:mJlnuuq.rw, 2047

Irtormation an the Group's authorired capital stock Is as followes:

_Number of shares
- 2017 == 16 2015
Comimon siock, R par valie 2,060,000,000 2,120,000, 000 2, 120,000,000
Prefemed stock, #1 par value: 60,000,000 - -
Balance at end of e year 2120000000 2 120000000 2, 120,000,000
Movernenis @ the issued and outstanding capital stock are as follows
Number of shares
2017 2018 - 208
Balance al beginning of the yaar 1817278350 1,517 278 350 1,317 278,350
'BSLaNCes dufing the year = o 200,000,000
Balance at end of the year LEITATRI%0 1 S17278350 1817 278,350
K| Costa of Sales and Services
2017 2018 2015
Cost of servica:
Outside services (Nofe 8) R4E 438,308 P43 226619 R0 054 580
Cesl of data services [Note ) 7,386 194 3,204 B2 -
Cosl of sakes 31,880 894 10,215 702 5 545 783
FES 478 W55 G465 F75,600.352

IminlmmﬂmmnmmWWMTﬂMMNmnir

(soe Nota @),

Td Genaral and Administrative Expenses

2017 - 2018

Salaries and oihar employes benafitg PF13,772,088 ®1,301,160 LR
Outside services (Nate 9) & 968,982 7.480 843 6,802 102
Entartanmant, amusamen! and recreation 8,237 200 4,708 458 24302490
Transporiabion and fravel 5028 897 1,702 362 1,566 467
Communication #4586 294 4,106 582 3,583, 307
Dopraciation and amortization (Note 7) 4,411,001 2,214 569 3,587 678
Taxes and iconses 4,085 990 1,068 536 2473 875
Professional fees 2,498,621 2918843 632 437
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2017 2018 2015

Advertising and promotion 2.J67 861 4 B74 430 -

Rental (Mote 10) 1,739,038 1,728,730 1881446

Cffice supphies TH3 BIT 2441318 1,020 421

Uilities 284,014 BE2 295 Bl 5T

Insuranca 198,504 258 B&1 271,858

Repairs and maintenancs 180,578 1.008.252 383177
Provision for impairment loss on-

Trade and other recaivables (Note 4) 1,840 £85 685 4033852

Advances 1o affiiate (Node - 5,000 000 -

158767

Cither curran assels iMote ) - -
Dithers 1,260 842 1275 162

996,803
BE4.077.860  ®41407.135 @3 211830

1% Income Taxos

The reconclliston of the Groug’s statutary income tax to provision for income tax foliows:

a7 2018 2018

Statdory income tax at 30% P2 G588, 383 1407 832 RE 023287
Additicess 1o (reductions in) income tax

resuhing from

MNondoductible sxpanses 1,886,347 3,188,352 2,393 5

Mavement of unfecognzed defarred

inCome tax asasts (1,202,273} (2,382 463, (2,805,716
Interes! income Subjected o fnal tax 1 1,157 282)

P2E70.958 F2 183 204 B Eua:mu

Thaﬁmuq:mwﬂmuwﬁmdﬂmmmwmmanmumlm
sufficient tazatie noome wil nat be avaitable for those deferrad tax 85525 [0 be ulilzed

The temparary differences are as foliows-

= 2017 2016 2015

Alipwance lof impairment on trade
and ather receivablag 3832802 F13.638 447 m13, 160 762
NOLCO 2,761,802 14 877 400 00.EBE ouE
MGCIT 2,112 389 1,713,188 812802
Ohers 131,065 — -
P18,037 518 B30.337770 F74.649,543

A5 of Decomber 31, 2017, NOLCO and MCIT can be claimed as deduction from future teeabis inEame and
income tas kabiities, mapectively, are as foliows:

Yasr incurred Year of Expiration NOLCO MCIT
T 20 FEDZ 200 F727 BOB
2018 2019 S05.824 B03 BaE
2018 2018 1,593 769 BED 7T

=276 502 B2 312 380
—‘_._.-

The lallowing are tha movements in NOLCO and MCIT:

2017 2016 2018

MOLCO
Balances al beginning of year #14. 877 498 PBC 8BS, 085 142 821 816
Acditions 602,208 585 G 1,583,788
Application 11,188,273} (13432 G51) (22,548 318

Expirations {1,318,832) (33 341, 564] 89 580, BRG]



Balances gl snd of year F2.761 602 B4 57T, 400 RGO 480 0a0

207 2016 2015
MCIT-
Saiances at beginning of year 1,713,185 w812 692 #3134 540
Siditions T27 808 803,838 B80.717
Expirations {128,612} (3,363} ___ (202 585)
Ealancss ol and of year 2,112,358 F1,.71 3,185 RE12 652

Fepubibe Sct (RA) Mo, 10863 o e Tax Reform for Accelerafon and Inclusion Ac (TRAIN) was signad info law
on Decamber 19, 2017 snd took effect January 1, 2018, making the new tax law enacted s of fhe responing
date. Although ihe TRAIN changes existing tax law and incldes soveral provisions that will gonerally @ffoct
tusinesses on @ prospective basls, the management asessnd that the same will nol have any sgrificant impact
on e financial statement balances as of the reporting date

Basic/Diluted EPS
The foliowing Labhs prasents iormation necessary o compute the basicidilidive ERS-
2017 2015 2015

Met income atiribitable 1o equity

haiders of the Parant (a) 5, 792 055 ®2 500433 B5,290 704
Waighted average number of

outstanding cormman shanes for

both basic and dilutive EPS 1,517,278, 350 1,517.378.350 1317 378 360
Basiciddutive garmings {ioss) per

shars (2] P, 0045 R0.0ME PR O

=

As of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2018, ihe Parent Company does nol Feve any dilubve potential comman
sharms

Financial |nstrumeanis

I'he Group's financial instruments are compossd of cash, irade and olher recaivabies, due from rolsted parties,
AF3 financial assets, accounts payable and accrued expansas, due 1o related pardies, ohilgations undsr Framnce
leaes and lpans payals.

The 800 has nmmllmhmﬂﬁmﬂﬁma@uﬂhﬁwim managamear|
framework. The Group's risk management policies ane established o iderdy and manage e Groug's sxposure
o financial ﬂﬁu.hmwﬁhmmwm. and o monitor and nssess HskE @nd
compliance to intermal controd palicies. Hkﬁmuwmmlﬁumdmﬂumummﬂamwdmghm
changes in market conditions and the Group's activities

Thtmnmhu.ndwhpﬂmhmmmhﬂmmﬂwmqnumwm

Licquinchty Rk
Liquidity risk 1= he risk that the Group will not be able to meet Its firancial obligations as they fad due The
Graup s objeclive to managing Squicily risk is to ensue, as far as possible, that it will atways nave sufficient
ﬁqu-ﬂyhmaatnuhmniufummﬂnhmlm fall due, under both normal and stressed condifions. without
inEETing unmmhhhmwdﬁhuﬂuwﬂmm1hﬁuup‘naﬂﬂarﬂm.
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27
Mare tharn
Ondemand  Within 1 year 1 year Total
Financial assets
Cash F10,684, 1595 R B B10,£94 105
Trade and othar recalvables 167,943 224 - —  16¥.843.024
Dus from related parties 08 255,268 = 2TAGTTHA 123453012
BIT4 552 6AN - EET 497 Tia BI02, 080 4323
Financial Nabilities:
Azcounts payable and acerued
exparses’ F147.780 972 [ = B~ P47, 780,073
iDuw to related partics 181,454, 345 - = 151,454 345
Future interest on loans payablo - 39,134 53,021 $2.155
__Loans payabie - 87,337 351,614 448,951
IHIEE'IT Hﬁﬂ"ﬁ ﬂﬂﬁ Hﬂlm.ilﬁ
'E‘rcknﬂhpm;uylm
2018
Mare han
Cn demand  Within | year 1 year Testal
Fiancal assels
Cash B4 308 410 M. CE B4 380 419
Trade and alher receivabies BS 2T 818 30 255 452 = 115537, 368
Due from rslsed parties 72 485 743 = 27080711 89528454
F102,180.078 _W30255452 w27.000 711 319,455 4]
e e Ml B
Frmaniis! abidities:
Accounts payable and accrusd
RIS R108 655,203 C B- P08 5855203
Due to related parties 77.520,582 - - 77520582
Futurs intereal on loans payabis - 62,015 103 487 158,50
Losns payabis o - 87,426 449,107 536,533
R8T 175 TRS M35 449 B552 So4 E1ET ART 20
"Exchaditng grevarmmant payables
2015
bore than
Ondemand  Within 1 year 1 yoar Totsl
Firamia! geseis:
Gash E15 070 672 - F—  E158reET
Trade and octher receivablas 62 .921,811 28,886 407 - &1, 788 408
Dl Irom related parbes H,E 5aT - EH-.H,I,E?‘B T EEEIIET.'r
BE17.283 180 B8 866 407 W26 563,678 B17Z.718.365
Firrarelal Kobiifins:
Aocounts pavable and acened
expenses® R128,208 447 [ B 126 206 487
Due 1o related parties 238,078,380 - = 238,078,380
Future ivlerest on bans payabie - 778,780 - T8, 780

= 44500 000

__Loans payatie - 44 500 000
P364 284 BET  R45.278 750 B Rang 563,817
“Exuiuding goverrimen naysives




ﬂu&mpmmhmhmmmmhlﬂmmu. mambahuummammh?
slockhaldars are sufficient to miligate the effects of Auctuation in cash flow and 1o cover dishursemants for the

Lredit rigk is the risk of financig! less to mﬁm:pﬂimmurmunlﬂpm 0@ finencal instrument fails to
mlhmmmmwmmlmiMMMMMadmummmmﬂm

partiss

The lallowng tables show the aging analysis of the Group's financial sssats as of
Uscember 31, 2017, 2018 and 2015,

2017

Mether past
due nor  Past due but Past dus and

impaired not impaired _impaired Total

Financlal assets:
Cash P10,694 186 B P-  F{DES4 198
Trade and other recaivables 1408596 186 534,628 13832882 181,776 116
__Dua from related partles 274977844 55985 258 - 123453012
u,mau HIFJ-H,HH 13832892 3 5823 124
_2018
Nefher pasi dus Past due but  Past due and
OOt mpared nol impeired __impared Toal
Finandial assafs:
Cash B4, 306,419 B B~ 4356 419
Trade and athar rEcetvables 12,100,288 103422 082 13838447 170380 815
Due from relatad parties 27000711 72485 743 = BB.50% 4%
B41.527 416 P175.027 405 F13.835 447 m233 <51 BER
2015
Nafher st due  Pasi dus but Pasi dus and
norimpsired  not ired impaired Texlal
Financial aasals
Gash F15979.872 - B—  ®iSgTaRr?
Trade and ofher recaivables 15512, 713 65 275 BoS 13,150,762 B4 839170

Due from resated parties 28563878 43,386 507 = __T4B50275
Fﬂiﬂﬂﬂa F114:ﬁ&2'§m ®13 150 782 W185.856.117

The Group eonsidens ite financial sssels that are neiher Dast due nor mpaired amounting io
B39.600,538. R4 527 418 and R58,086,083 as of Decomber 31, 20 7. 2016 and 2015 as high grade financia



-85 .

FESES;

The Group considers its financal assels hat are past due buf rest impaired amounting 1o
FZ62 480 BOS, P175.927 826 and P1 14,882 207 as of December 31, 2017, 2048 and 2015 & standard gade
financial aasets

Thi Group has impaired recnivablas amouning o P13 832 gog, F13836.447 and #13,150 782 a= of Decembar
31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respactively,

air Value of Financial instruments
The hnmwmmwmﬁm.mmmmhmﬂwmrwm of each class of financiz!
inEiru s for '-m:hil:pnui:nﬂ-nnmhnmunmlm:

Cash, Trade and Qther Recsivables, Dug from Related Parties, Accounts Fayabie ond Accried Exponses
Laans Payable and Due o Related Padiag

The camying amounts of cash, frade and other recevables, due fram relaled parties, accounts payatie and

SLUUBT EXpANSes, inans payabie and due o reizled parties approsimata their fair vakies due ho B shitT-term

malurity of these financial instrumanis,

AFS Finarmsil Asssls

Linguoted squity securlty is carred st oS! Since feir value of this AFS investment cannot be rellably determinsg
a5 thes i ot lisled in active market, have no avallable bid price and the range of reasonabis fair valys
measwremant of e AFS investrmant is g ;

waiﬂmﬂwmwm

The fair value of noncurrent amounis dus from related party were besed an dscouning vafus of fulure cash flows
g applicable cred-adusted risk-free rates of 5.7%, 5.9% and 5 T% as of

Docember 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively (Level 3). The fair value of noncurment amaunts dus from
relatéd party amounisd io F24,793,312, #24, 144,645 and FE2.T42 540 as of

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, fespaciivaly. The carrying value of noncurrent amounts dus from relatad
ey amowunled (o B3T £07 T4, M2T.030,711 and F2S 563 6TH as of December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2078

respactivaly

Loans Payabia

he carrying amourd ahmmuﬁmaum?mmmm estimaded using the
wescounted cash fiow Mhﬂrznpﬂmﬂnﬂﬂﬂ-iﬁwtadﬂh&murmdﬁ?%iM5Eﬁ
respeciively (Leval J) Tha camying amount and air value of kans a i

B4 500,000 as of Decomiar 41, 2016 is the same. mammwﬂmmahhmnmu
Fmﬂﬂand%uﬂmnfﬂmmﬂi. 2017 and 2018, . The camrying value of loang payabis



The fokowing mamhmmmnmmeFMhmummm i yean
ended Decamber 31, 2017 and 2016, with ail other variables heid constant in the Group's incoeme befare
Medme

Increase
Increase (Docrease) (Dacrease) on
in income Before
. Bass prirts Income Tax_
Decembar 31, 2017 +100 (18,868}
-160 18,868
December 31, 2016 100 (Ra73)
-100 673
December 31, 2016 =100 {R5a 455)
100 B8.455

L:apital Managemen

The Group considers the equity presanted in the consalidated statemant of financial posion a5 e core caplls=
The primary otjective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it mnirtabng stong eredit rating and
stabis capital ratios i arder to support #8 business and maximize sharshalders’ value

On Oetober 28, 2010, mEM:mwwmmhmﬂummmmmmml
listed companies. Based on the memarandum, lisled companies shall, 31 all bmes, mantain @ minrmum
mwwwmnmmam percent {10%;) of the listed companses’ issued and

45 of Docember 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, tha Group was able o meet ts capital management abjsctives.

N Business Sagment Information

The Group's operating sagments are orpanized and managed saparsely according o Ehe nature of the senices
offered as follows:

IT Manpower and Resource mum-mummmanmmm cllents
. Sunmmuwmdsmhm—mmmnnmm“d-mmmmu
. WM—mmwmmenufupm 700 Mbgrs o cligreis.



Managaman momitors the oparating resulis of As business unifs saparately for the purposs of
performance assessment, Segment performance is evakiaisd

about resource allocation and
prof or loas

-57.

making decisony
based on operating

Financial inforrmution on he oparations. of the various business segments s ummarizsed as folows

2017
IT Manpower and
Resource Software Licenses Broadband
Augmentation and services _Benvices Total
Sarvice feas R4z a4 212 B5D BTH 820 F24,513. 068 125 666201
Bales - 21,598,063 - 21, B8R 061
Ehiers - 610,181 - B0, 161
Total revenus P42 274,212 REZ 157,144 P24,513088  M148.674 425
Costs of sales and servicos =31 588 240 P45 B45 047 F7.386.184 PES.EO3 47D
Genural and administrative
EAPENEaS B,524 463 47,553 307 - 54,077 B0
Provision for income tax 1.680,187 1,080,771 - 2,670,958
Het income (Ioss) 2,365 997 (13,202 659) 17,126,878 6,280, 116
Cthar Infarmation
Capital expanditures 83,672 1,285,658 5.088.B1T 6,458,047
Segmant assets 18,318,317 369,082,215 5088817 182 468,340
linaliocated AFS
financial asset 1,288,278,350
Segment liabilitiss 18,207 376 2B6, 763,180 - 315,070,555
Depreciation and
amortization 80,535 1,150,281 3,170,208 4411004
Unallocated interest
eupensg and othar
charges = - - 131,813
2018
IT Manpower and
Resource Soffware Licenses Broadband
A and sarvicos BEMViCaE fotsi
Service foes B43 412 2385 a4 230,384 =5 881,141 Pal 823 T57
Zales - 13,043 AR5 - 13,048 BES
Dthers 2 485 1. 762 078 - 1,764,541
Total revenus B43.414 700 R56.041,142 B3OA1 141  #i06456003
Costs of sales and sanices 35,610,332 #16.831 080 B3,204 524 W56 646 042
Goneral and adminisiraive
SXpEnEaY 6,258 534 J7.032 602 - 43 401 138
Provision fof inooms fax 1,289 428 803 835 - 2. 193 264
Mat incomie (loss) (841, Tag) 3,738 2,778 520 2,458 506
Dihar infosmation
Capital mxpendimes 133.828 870, 358 4,347,551 54571837
Fegmisnt gugets 2,458 753 251 840 186 3447 034 E57 838 81
Unallocated AFS
financial asse - - - 1,286.278,350
Segmant kabdibes 32,070,489 182 269 220 =~ 104, %30 850
Depraciation and
Amortizaton 38,082 1,269,880 805,517 2,214 565
Unsifocated Interesi
Expanse and other
charges = = - 5ET, 132
2015
IT Manpower and  Software Licenses Tl
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Resolrs and pefvicos
A :
Servica feen B39.421, 080 W27 BAE C4 7 BET 0B 027
Saks - 47 331371 A7 331374
Cihaes 5834 859 B854 4579
Tatal revenin F3B,426 604 ﬁ.ﬂﬂ?’m 115 383 88
Cosls of sales and services B33674 327 Ba1 526 0zs BTS00 352
Canaral and administative Gy =TT 544 021 24205 8oa 31,241 830
Provision for income fax B2 173 5t 1.508 8B40
Net ncome (lass) (2,150,137 T.385.5T0 6235 417
Qther iMormedion
Capifal axpenditures - 236,078 235078
CETRY 13,446 324 185,627 411 200.073 7a5
Unallocated AFS fnancial assot 1.280 278 350
Segmant kabdites 53,782,558 361,732 883 415 500 421
Depreciation and amortization 625,520 2,842 158 A 567 &TH
Linadincated interes
eRpEnss and othap
charges 1,837,376

build-up and technical sarvices Thess revenues werg reportad under “Software licenses and senvices”
fsgmant Mo revenue from transaciions with a single exleral customer or courterpany amsured to 10% o
miore of the Group’s lotal revenue in 2015 and 2014

ummﬁmw&mwmhm

n 2015, noncash financng aciivily consists of debil 1o equity transacson from Velarda, Inc ‘s advances
amnuriting o F200,000,000 for 200,000,000 Parent Company common shares with o par vakie of #1 which has
been approved on Decembar 17, 2015 (see Note 12).

20l

Changes in Liabilities Ariging fram Financing Activities

January 1, 2017 Cash flows Decomber 31, 2017
Due to rolated parties BTT. 520,582 PT3,933 763 B151 454 345
Loans payable 536,533 {87,582 448,951
Tatal Natlities from
financing
BT8,057,115 181 ®151,903 296
il Dthar Mater

amaurding fo BS0,000,000 with an Werest rate of 4. 80% per annum. The loan, including the

On January 30, 2018, the Paent Company satured & shori-term loan agreement with Land Bank of the
Fhlippines
irarests incurmed, will mature ot July 27, 2018,
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MOW CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDARIES

RECOMNCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Daficit. as adpsted 1o avadable for daidend distribution, beginning [R431 153 6
Hei income during the peried 3,594 FA2
Deficit (w417 831 B8}

item . Mansgement's Discusslon and Analysls of Fimancial Conditien and Results of Opemation.

¢ Tolal Consolidated revenues in the first quarter of 2016 i Phpd3.845 Million, increased by 3.38% or
Php1 110 MilSion from last year's first quarter revenue of Phpd2 734 M#lion. The increase is due o the
increase in Broadband Revanue from Php3 054 Milkon fast year, if goes up 1o Php 8553 Millian this
year. Service Revenus increased by PhpD.181 million from last year figure of Phot9 777 millan, 4
amauntad (o Php19.858 milion In 2018 first quarier. Service revenues persins maindy o lees or
income aamed fraom the deployment by the Company of professionals 1o iz clients 1o render | T-related
solutions and services.

# Cosl and Expensas for the fisl quarter of 2018 is Php28.852 Milllon, which |8 B decrease from as! yvears
rosi and expense of Phpd1.722 Milion. This was brought about by decrease in cost of saies and ssrices
of Phg 4.314 milion from Php13.377 million in 2017 fo Php 8,083 in 2018 Other edpenses wheh hes &
significant incraase ere Salaries and other banefits which has a Php3 080 million increasa. rantal which has
o Phpt 780 milion increasa and representation expense which has an inciease of Phpd.672 million

* As of March 31, 2018, the total consolidated assels of the Company stood at Fhpl 740 Billon comparad
wilh |asl years Php1547 Billon or an increase of Php174.067 Million. Current Assals Increased by
Php 166 842 Milllon or 73.21% from Php22B.028 Million 2017 fto Php384 970 Million in 2018, This wes dus
Io the increass in Trade and ather receivables by Php 86476 Million, from last year's Phpt 16 800 Milllon
incressed to this year's Php 183.078 Mlllion, Amounts owad to related parties increased by Pripsia 238
milicn from last year's Php 77073 incraased to this year's Php 140308 Milion Other current asseds
increasad by Php23 357 millkon, Cash incressed by Php 13 874 Milkon, from PhpS.414 Mllion in
2047 It Wncreases to to Php 19.289 Million in 2018, Won-Current Assets Increased to Phpl, 354

Bilon from last year's Php 1.348 Billion,

= Curenl Esbiiies increased by Phpi6.TT0 Milion or T3T5% from Php223408 Milon in 2007 1o
Pho2dd.178 Milkon in 2018, Accounts Payabie and accrued sxpenses increased by Phpd 553 Mison or
5.33%, from Php123.038 Milion in 2017 it increased o Phoi25.588 Milion in 2018, Loars payabie -
cutfent porlion increased by Php 50.00 Million due to a short tarm lean with a local bank amounbing e
PhaS50.000 millon recesved during January 2018,

¢ On December 9. 2013, the bank has approved B conversion of the shod-lerm loans in the amount of
Phipd4 50 inlo a two-year teim loan. The principal balance of the koen i payable on Japuary 19 2015 Thes
was paid in June 2018,

¢ On Decamber 22 2015, e Company aviled 8 charel mongage amaunting fo PhpSBL4K from & local
unhversal benk for the purchase of @ vehicle, which senes as the property morigage. The new oan requires
B0 rmonthly repeyments undl November 23, 2021



*  Un January 2018, the Company avaited & shoet term loan amounting io PhpS0 million with an intereat rate

* As of March 31, 2018, the tolal Assets stood af Fhp1.748 Billlon, Lisbiites af Php38s 540 Millien ans
Equity at Php1 350 Biffon

Farl Il. Other Information

lem 1. Financial Soundness Indicators

Sea Annex "A°

on e Compary's liquidity, nor any events that will irigger direct or cantingent financial ob¥gation that Is mszaria| e
the Company, including any dedaiull or acceleration of an obdigation

Thmummmuﬁt}ru':rﬁmllrufhmmwmm‘lhu Cormpany.
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SIGNATURES

Fummlu!l'-mqmrlfmdh %Hmwmmmmmmmmu raport i
b sagnedd on its behalf by the %

2T
Slgnaturs i President
Dt May 11, 2018

Z s At
Principal Financialidccounting Oficer/Caniraker MR, VICENTE |, PENANUEVA
—__Chisf Finangial OMficer

Signature and Title

Date May 11, 2018
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ANMEX =a~
Schedule of Financial Indicators
For the Period March 218 and 2047

H-Mar
2018 207
Liguidity Current Ratia 1047 1.021
Suolvency Debt to Equity Ratio 0.288 0.168
[Equlty | Asset to Equily Ratio _1.286 1.168
Interest Rate Coveraga
Irnferegt Ratio 23445 rasg
Frofitabilty | Proft Margin 13.22% 57.28%
Retumn of Assets 0.0020% 0 D006
Return of Equity 0.0025% 0.0007%
Book \Velus per thare Deas 0.EB0
Eamings per share 0.0023 0.0007
The Financsal indcators are computed as follows
Curreni Ratio = Curment Assets/Currant
Liguidiny: Lisbilifies
Salvency: Dbt io Equity Riafio = Totsi Liabilities/Todal SEockholders Equity
Equity; Assal fo Equily Ratio = Total AssetsTotai Stockneidomns' Equity

Interest Fate Coverage Hafio = Eamings Bafore Intesest and Taxesinieres
irdareat Expe=nses

Profitability: Prodt Marngin 5% Profi margin = Gross ProfitTotal Revenus x 100
Reduin on Assets %: Return on gasets = Net Incame/Total Assets x 100
Feturm on Eguity % = Nal freameTolal Stockhalders' Exquity x 100
Book Value per share = Total Stockholdery' Equityldverage Ouitstanding Shares
Eaming per share = Nat Income/Average Outstanding Shares



